LARGE FILING SEPARATOR SHEET

CASE NUMBER: 10-458-EL-CRS

FILE DATE: 3/13/2012

SECTION: 1 of 2

NUMBER OF PAGES: 200
DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT:

Renewal Application

crm m o s e ees omaestdng ave an
F This % H t"" :’-"_'-:":5‘ - o S _.,:..‘ ;‘~L ﬁ@ﬂ&‘;—, €ila
oo m: gl ' . CeL et BUSinas8.

Goce ot doidup | o



Woodbridge, NJ 07095

O R l Gl NA L HESS CORPORRATION
1 Hess Plaza

JAY L. KOOPER

Director of Regulatory Affairs - Electric
Energy Marketing

(732) 750-7048

FAX: (¥32) 750-6670
S
March 12,2012 -
VIA OVERNIGHT MAIL T 3
Public Utilities Commission of Ohio O
Docketing Division O
13™ Floor O -
180 East Broad Street 6
(%]
[ )

Columbus, OH 43215-3793

RE:  Case No. 10-458-EL-CRS -- Hess Corporation:
Renewal Application For Its Certification as a Competitive Retail
Electric Service (CRES) Provider

Dear Sir/Madam:

Pursuant to Chapters 4901:1-24, 4901:1-21 of the Ohio Admimstrative Code and
Section 4928.08 of the Ohio Revised Code, enclosed please find one original and 10 full
copies of Hess Corporation’s Renewal Application for Certification as a Competitive Retail
Electric Service (CRES) Provider in the State of Ohio.

In order to assist in our record keeping, please file stamp the additional copy of this
cover letter and return it to me in the enclosed self-addressed attempted envelope provided
for that purpose. Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me on
my direct extension at (732) 750-7048. Thank you very much in advance for your attention
to this matter.

Sincerely,

Jay L. KOW

oper
Director of Regulatory Affairs

Enclosures
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Original CRS ‘
Case Number Ve'_'Sl(m
The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio o 258 ..EL.CRS August v

RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR RETAIL GENERATION PROVIDERS
AND POWER MARKETERS

Please print or type all required information. [dentify all attachments with an exhibit label and
title (Example: Exhibit A-11 Corporate Structure). All attachments should bear the legal name
of the Applicant. Applicants should file completed applications and all related correspondence
with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, Docketing Division; 180 East Broad Street,
Columbus, Ohio 43215-3793.

'This PDF form is designed so that yon may input information directly onto the form.
You may aiso download the form, by saving it to your local disk, for later use.

A. RENEWAL INFORMATION

A-1  Applicant intends to be renewed as: (check all that apply)

[“1Retail Generation Provider OPower Broker
dPower Marketer L Aggregator

A-2  Applicant’s legal name, address, felephone number, PUCQO certificate number, and
web site address

Legal Name_Hess Corporation

Address One Hess Plaza, Woodbridge, NJ 07095

PUCO Certificate # and Date Certified_10-208E{1) {Certified May 10, 2014)
Telephone #(732) 750-6000_ Web site address (if any) www.hessenergy.com

A-3  List name, address, telephone number and we b site address under which Applicant
does business in Ohio

Legal Name_Hess Corporation
Address One Hess Plaza, Woodbridge, NJ 07095
Telephone #(732) 750-6000 _ Web site address (if any)_www.hessenergy.com



http://www.liessenergy.com
http://www.hessenergy.com

A-4  List all names under which the applicant does business in North America
Please see Exhibit A-11

A-5  Contact person for regulatory or emergency matters

Name Jay L. Kooper

Title Director of Regulatory Affairs

Business address One Hess Plaza, Woodbridge, NJ 07095

Telephone # (732) 750-7048 Fax # (732) 750-6670
E-mail address (if any) _jkooper@hess.com

A-6  Contact person for Commission Staff use in investigating customer complaints

Name Jay L. Kooper

Title Director of Regulatory Affairs

Business address One Hess Plaza, Woodbridge, NJ 07095

Telephone # (732) 750-7048 Fax # (732) 750-6670
E-mail address (if any)_jkooper{@hess.com

A-7  Applicant's address and toll-free number for customer service and complaints

Customer Service address One Hess Plaza, Woodbridge, NJ 07095
Toll-free Telephone #_(800) 437-7265 Fax # (732) 750-6899
E-mail address (if any) qesteam@hess.com

A-8  Applicant's federal employer identification number # 134921002

A-9  Applicant’s form of ownership (check one)

USole Proprietorship ClPartnership
OLimited Liability Partnership (LLP) OLimited Liability Company (LLC)
[“1Corporation O Other

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED:

A-10E _xhibit A10 "Principal Officers, Directors & Partners' provide the names, titles,
addresses and telephone numbers of the applicant’s principal officers, directors, partners,
or other similar officials.

A-11Ex__hibit A-11 "Corporate Structure,” provide a description of the applicant’s corporate
structure, including a graphical depiction of such structure, and a list of all affiliate and
subsidiary companies that supply retail or wholesale electricity or natural gas to
customers in North America.



mailto:ikooper@hess.coni

B-1

B-5

C-1

MANAGERIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED:

Exhibit B-1 “Jurisdictions of Operation,” provide a kst of all jurisdictions in which
the applicant or any affiliated interest of the applicant is, at the date of filing the
application, certified, licensed, registered, or otherwise authorized to provide retail or
wholesale electric services.

Exhibit B-2 "Experience & Plans,"” provide a description of the applicant’s experience
and plan for contracting with customers, providing contracted services, providing billing
statements, and responding to customer inquiries and complaints in accordance with
Commission rules adopted pursuant to Section 4928.10 of the Revised Code.

Exhibit B-3 "Disclosure of Liabilities and Investigations," provide a description of all
existing, pending or past rulings, judgments, contingent liabilities, revocation of
authority, regulatory investigations, or any other matter that could adversely impact the
applicant’s financial or operational status or ability to provide the services it is seeking to
be certitied to provide.

Disclose whether the applicant, a predecessor of the applicant, or any principal officer of
the applicant have ever been convicted or held liable for fraud or for violation of any

consumer protection or antitrust laws within the past five years.
No O Yes

If yes, provide a separate attachment labeled as Exhibit B-4 "Disclosure of Consumer
Protection Violations™ detailing such violation(s) and providing all relevant documents.

Disclose whether the applicant or a predecessor of the applicant has had any certification,
license, or application to provide retail or wholesale electric service denied, curtailed,

suspended, revoked, or cancelled within the past two years.
No O Yes

If yes, provide a separate attachment labeled as Exhibit B-5 "Disclosure of
Certification Denial, Curtailment, Suspension, or Revocation” detailing such
action(s) and providing all relevant documents.

FINANCIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED:

Exhibit_C-1 “Annual Reports,” provide the two most recent Annual Reports to
Sharcholders. If applicant does not have annual reports, the applicant should provide
similar information in Exhibit C-1 or indicate that Exhibit C-1 is not applicable and why.




C-8

Exhibit G2 “SEC Filings,” provide the most recent 10-K/8-K Filings with the SEC, If
applicant does not have such filings, it may submit those of its parent company. If the
applicant does not have such f{ilings, then the applicant may indicate in Exhibit C-2 that
the applicant is not required to file with the SEC and why.

Exhibit C-3 “Financial Statements,” provide copies of the applicant’s two most recent
years of audited financial statements (balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow
statement). If audited financial statements are not available, provide officer certified
financial statements. If the applicant has not been in business long enough to satisty this
requirement, it shall file audited or officer certified financial satements covering the life
of the business.

Exhibit C-4 “Financial Arrangements,” provide copies of the applicant's financial
arrangements to conduct CRES as a business activity (e.g., guarantees, bank
commitments, contractual arrangements, credit agreements, etc.,).

Exhibit C-5 “Forecasted Financial Statements,” provide two vears of forecasted
financial statements (balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow statement) for the
applicant’s CRES operation, along with a list of assumptions, and the name, address, e-
mail address, and telephone number of the preparer.

Exhibit C-6 “Credit Rating,” provide a statement disclosing the applicant’s credit rating
as reported by two of the following organizations: Duff & Phelps, Dun and Bradstreet
Information Services, Fitch IBCA, Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poors, or a
similar organization. In instances where an applicant does not have its own credit ratings,
it may substitute the credit ratings of a parent or affiliate organization, povided the
applicant submits a statement signed by a principal officer of the applicant’s parent or
affiliate organization that guarantees the obligations of the applicant.

Exhibit C-7 “Credit Report,” provide a copy of the applicant’s credit report from
Experion, Dun and Bradstreet or a similar organization.

Exhibit_ C-8 “Bankruptcy Information,” provide a list and description of any
reorganizations, protection from creditors or any other form of bankruptey filings made
by the applicant, a parent or affiliate organization that guarantees the obligations of the
applicant or any officer of the applicant in the current year or within the two most recent
years preceding the application.

Exhibit G9 “Merger Information,” provide a statement describing any dissolution or
merger or acquisition of the applicant within the five most recent years preceding the
application.




D. TECHNICAL CAPABILITY

D-1

D2

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED:

Exhibit D-1 “Operations” provide a written description of the operational nature of the
applicant’s business. Please include whether the applicant’s operations include the
generation of power for retail sales, the scheduling of retail power for transmission and
delivery, the provision of retail ancillary services as well as other services used to arrange
for the purchase and delivery of electricity to retail customers.

Exhibit_D-2 “Operations Expertise,” given the operational nature of the applicant’s
business, provide evidence of the applicant’s experience and technical expertise in
performing such operations.

Exhibit D-3 “Key Technical Personnel,” provide the names, titles, e-mail addresses,
telephone numbers, and the background of key personnel involved in the operational
aspects of the applicant’s business.

Exhibit D-4 “FERC Power Marketer License Number,” provide a statement
disclosing the applicant’s FERC Power Marketer License number. (Power Marketers

only)
- P Bl Y7 §

Signature of Applicant and Title

Sworn and subscribed before me this S“I-h day of V) [ae AT 2(;/.3
Month Year

i o COLLEEN M. FROST
éf(‘.-ﬁi,,h.(wu ..4;<:7H . %—dt ID No. 2208543

Signature of official administering oath P h i
¥ Commission Expires Ap. 1, 2013

My commission expires on




State of Ngg{ _)‘?(5(3,.[ :
County of M\\;}J!S FN
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AFFIDAVIT
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nt, being duly sworn/affirmed according to law. deposes and says that:

He/She is theﬁ&&@\ﬁi (Office of Affiant) of j:‘!é% CSJQ{M ) me of Applicant);

OREATIONS

That he/she is authorized to and does make this affidavit for said Applicant,

The Applicant herein, attests under penalty of false statement that all statements made in the
application for certification renewal are true and complete and that it will amend its application while
the application is pending if any substantial changes occur regarding the intormation provided in the
application.

The Applicant herein, attests it will timely file an annual report with the Public Utilities Commission
of Ohiv of its intrastate gross receipts, gross earnings, and sales of kilowatt-hours of electricity
pursuant to Division (A) of Section 4905.10, Division (A) of Section 4911.18, and Division (F) of
Section 4928.06 of the Revised Code.

The Applicant herein, attests that it will timely pay any assessments made pursuant te Secticns
4905.10, 4911.18, or Division F of Section 4928.06 of the Revised Code.

The Applicant herein, attests that it will comply with all Public Utilities Commission of Ohio rules or
orders as adopted pursuant to Chapter 4928 of the Revised Code.

The Applicant herein, attests that it will cooperate fully with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio,
and its Staff on any utility matter including the investigation of any consumer complzaint regarding any
service offered or provided by the Applicant.

The Applicant herein, attests that it will comply with all state and/or federal rules and regulations
concerning consumer protection, the environment. and advertising/promotions.

The Applicant herein, attests that it will fully comply with Section 4928.09 of the Revised Code
regarding consent to the jurisdiction of Ohio Courts and the service of process.

The Applicant herein, attests that it will use its best efforts to verify that any entily with whom it has a
contractual relationship to purchase power is in compliance with all applicable licensing requirements
of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and the Public Utilities Commission of Chio.

The Applicant herein, attests that it will cooperate fully with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio,
the electric distribution eompanies, the regional transmission entities, and other electric suppliers in the
event of an emergency condition that may jeopardize the safety and reliability of the electric service in
accordance with the emergency plans and other procedures as may be determined appropriate by the
Comntission.

. If applicable to the service(s) the Applicant will provide, the Applicant herein, attests that it will adhere

to the reliability standards of (1) the North American Electric Reliability Councit (NERC), (2) the
appropriate regional reliability council{s), and (3} the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. (Only
applicable if pertains to the services the Applicant is offering)



11. The Applicant herein, attests that it will inform the Commission of any material change to the

information supplied in the renewal application within 30 days of such material change, including any

change in contact person for regulatory purpeses or contact person for Staff use in investigating
custemer complaints.

That the facts above set forth are true and correct to the best of his/her knowledge, information, and belief and that
he/she expectg a4l to be able to prove the same at any hearing hereof.

Signature of Aftiant & Title

Sworn and subscribed before me this %*’h day of Niarck vieli=Y
Month

- Year
/r' ) - ) \\_' . 2

Collisn 7). SFomat COLLEEN FROST

Signature of official administering oath Print 1B 2098543

NOTARY PUBLIC OF NEW JERSEY
My Commission Expires Apr. 1, 2013

My commission expires on




Hess Corporation
Exhibit A-10
Principal Officers, Directors and Partners

HESS CORPORATION
EXHIBIT A-10

Exhibit A-10 *“Principal Officers, Directors and Partners: Provide the names, titles,
addresses and telephone numbers of the applicant’s principal officers, directors and
other similar officials.

Response: Please see below for the list of the Principal Officers for Hess’ Electric
Marketing Department and the enclosed excerpt page from Hess” 2010 Annual
Report (also contained in Exhibit C-1) for the Principal Officers and Directors of
Hess Corporation.

PRINCIPAL OFFICERS

John B. Hess

Chairman of the Board and CEO
Hess Corporation

1185 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10036

Phone: (212) 997-8500

Fax: (212) 536-8390

Timothy Goodell

General Counsel

Hess Corporation

1185 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10036

Phone: (212) 997-8500

Fax: (212) 536-8390

John P. Rielly

Senior Vice President and CFO
Hess Corporation’

1185 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10036

Phone: (212) 997-8500

Fax: (212) 536-83%0



F. Borden Walker

Executive Vice President — Marketing and Refining
Hess Corporation

One Hess Plaza

Woodbridge, NJ 07095

Phone: (732) 750-6000

Fax: (732) 750-7165

Christopher Baldwin

Senior Vice President — Retail & Energy Marketing
Hess Corporation

One Hess Plaza

Woodbridge, NJ 07095

Phone: (732) 750-6350

Fax: (732) 750-6670

John A. Gartman

Senior Vice President — Energy Marketing
Hess Corporation

One Hess Plaza

Woodbridge, NJ 07095

Phone: (732) 750-6650

Fax: (732) 750-6670

John Schultz

Vice President — Energy Marketing Operations
Hess Corporation

One Hess Plaza

Woodbridge, NJ 07095

Phone: (732) 750-6197

Fax: (732) 750-6670

Hess Corporation
Exhibit A-10
Principal Officers, Directors and Partners



HESS

CORPORATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

John B Haas®
Chalrman of the Board and
Chief Execitive Officer

Samuel W, Bodman M@

Former Secretary of the United States
Department of Energy.

Former Deputy Secretary of the United
States Departiment of the Treasury

Nicholas F. Bragy01o®
Chalrman, Choptank Partners, Inc.;
Former Secretary of the United States
Departmant of the Treasury;

Former Chairman,

Dilon, Read & Co., inc.

Gragory P Hil
Executive Vice President;
Praesident, Worlawide
Exploration & Production

Edith E, Moliday®®

Corporate Director and Truslee;
Former Assistant to the FPresident and
Secretary of the Cabinet,

Forner Gengral Counget of the United
States Department of the Treasury

CORPORATE OFFICERS

Thomas H. Kegnie®

Prasident, THK Consulting, LLC;
Former President, Orew University;
Former Governor, State of New Jersey

Riga Lavizzo-Mourey®
President and Chief Exscutive Officer,
The Robert Wood Johnson Foundation

Sraig G, Matthews ®
Former Vice Chalman

and Chief Operating Officer,
KeySpan Corporation;

Former Chief Executive Officer
and President, NUI. Inc,

John M. Muliin @

Chairman, Ridgeway Farm LLC,
Former Managing Director,
Ditlon, Read & Co., Inc.

Frank A, Olson @@

Former Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer,
The Hertz Corporation

Ernst M. von Mstzsch®
Managing Member,
Cambrian Capital, L.P.;
Former Senior Vice President
and Partner, Wellington
Management Company

¥, Borden Walker
Executive Vice President;
President, Marketing and Hefining

Hobert N, Wiigon s
Chairman, Stiff River Systems;
Former Vice Chairman

of the Board of Directors,
Jotnson & Jobnson

Memiber of Executive Committas

o

2) Mernber of Audit Committes

(&

Member of Compensalion and
Menagement Deveiopiment Commiittes

{4 Marnber ol Corporate Governances

and Norminating Commitias

John B Mess
Chalrman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Gregory P il
Executive Vice President;
President, Worldwidcle
Expioration & Production

F. Borden Walker
Execitive Vice President;
President, Marketing and Refining

SENIOR WVIC SENTE VIO PRESIDENTS

Christopher J. Baldwin Johin P Rislly George C. Barry Harold 1. Smalt

Gary A. Boubel Chief Financial Officer Secretary Jonathan C. Stein

William T, Drennen John J. Sceifo Robert M. Biglin Jetfery L. Steinhorn
Treasurer

John A, Gartrman

Timothy B. Goodell
General Counset

Scott M. Heck
Lawrence H. Ornstein
Howard Paver

R. Gordon Shearer
John V. Simon
Darius Swest
Michae! R. Turner
Mykel J. Ziolo

Gerald 1. Bresnick
C. Martin Dunagin
David K. Kirshner
Richard J. Lawlor
Jonathon L. Pepper

Kevin B. Wilcox
Controller

Jay R. Wilson



Hess Corporation
Exhibit A-11
Corporate Structure

HESS CORPORATION
EXHIBIT A-11

Exhibit A-11 “Corporate Structure”: Provide a description of the applicant’s
corporate striucture, including a graphical depiction of such structure, and a list of all
affiliate and subsidiary companies that supply retail or wholesale electricity or natural
gas to customers in North America

Response: Please see the following list describing Hess Corporation’s corporate
structure and please see the Hess Corporation Annual Reports contained in Exhibit
C-1. Please note that Hess Energy Marketing, which is the division that contains
Hess’ retail and wholesale electric marketing operations, is not a separately
incorporated division — rather, it is a division contained within the parent entity
Hess Corporation. Therefore, Hess Corporation is the entity seeking renewal of its
CRES certification through this application.
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Hess Corporation
Exhibit B-1
Jurisdictions of Operation

HESS CORPORATION
EXHIBIT B-1

Exhibit B-1 “Jurisdictions of Operation”: Provide a list of all jurisdictions in which
the applicant or any affiliated interest of the applicant is, at the date of the filing of the
application, certified, licensed, registered or otherwise autharized to provide retail or
wholesale electric services.

Response: Hess is authorized to provide retail electric services in: New York, New
Jersey, Pennsylvania, Delaware, Maryland, District of Columbia, Connecticut,
Rhode Island, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, Maine and Ohio.

Hess is a wholesale power marketer with market-based rate authorization granted
by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and is authorized to operate in the
New York Independent System Operator, ISO New England, PJM Interconnection,
and Midwest Independent System Operator wholesale markets.



Hess Corporation
Exhibit B-2
Experience & Plans

HESS CORPORATION
EXHIBIT B-2

Exhibit B-2 “Experience & Plans”: Provide a description of the applicant’s
experience and plan for contracting with customers, providing contracted services,
providing billing statements, and responding to customer inquiries and complaints in
accordance with Commission rules adopted pursuant to Section 4928.10 of the Revised
Cade.

Response: Hess Corporation is a leading total energy provider in the Eastern
United States. Hess is a retail electricity provider for approximately 4,000
commercial and industrial customers located in 12 states and 36 electric distribution
company service territories within its retail electric marketing footprint. Through
our experiences in serving these customers over since entering the retail electric
marketing business in 1999, Hess is experienced in the full business cycle of electric
marketing including: contracting, contract administration, load aggregation,
procurement, forecasting and scheduling, risk management, energy management,
customer service and billing and all other customer protections enumerated in
Section 4928.10 of the Revised Code. Beginning in 2012, Hess plans to actively serve
retail electric customer load in all Ohio electric distribution company service
territories.

With respect to customer billing, Hess operates a proprietary customer information
system that proeduces billing statements for its customers and contains the
information needed to respond to customer inquiries and complaints. The system
retains customer information for a minimum of three years.

With respect to customer inquiries, customers interested in obtaining information
about Hess Corporation’s services have a variety of options through Hess’: (1)
Website (www.hessenergy.com); (2) Toll-Free Number (800-Hess-AOK or 800-437-
7265); (3) Sales Representatives in the Region (Samuel Perry, Regional Sales
Manager, Phone: (412) 494-7209, Fax: (412) 494-7201, E-Mail: seperrv@hess.com).

With respect to customer service, our toll-free call center and local marketing
representatives are available during normal business hours and Hess’ website can
be accessed 24 hours a day.

With respect to customer complaints and dispute resolution, customers may contact
our toll-free number or e-mail the Hess Quality Service Department at
gesteam@hess.com. Complaints or disputes not settled within 60 days may be
submitted to the Ohio Public Utility Commission for resolution and Hess will fully
comply with any additional rules and requirements set forth by the PUC with
respect to customer complaints and dispute resolution process.



http://www.hessenergv.com

Hess Corporation
Exhibit B-3
Disclosure of Liabilities and Investigations

HESS CORPORATION
EXHIBIT B-3

Exhibit B-5 “Disclosure of Liabilities and Investigations”: Provide a description of
all existing, pending or past rulings, judgments, contingent liabilities, revocation of
authority, regulatory investigations, or any other matter that could adversely impact the
applicant’s financial or operational status or ability to provide the services it is seeking
to be certified to provide.

Response: None.



Hess Corporation
Exhibit C-1
Annual Reports

HESS CORPORATION
EXHIBIT C-1

Exhibit C-1 “Annual Reports”: Provide the two most recent Annual Reports to
Shareholders.

Response: Enclosed please find Hess Corporation’s 2010 Annual Report and 2009
Annual Report,



HESS CORPORATION

2010 Annual Report




OUR
COMPANY

Hess Corporation is a leading global imagpendent energy
company engaged in the exploration ior and produztion ot crude
oil and natural gas. as well as in refining and in markeling refined
petroteum products, natural gas and clectrncity, Our strategy is
1o bulld a company that will sustain profitable growth and create

signifiicant sharecholder value.

We are commilicd to meeting the bighest standards of corporate
citizenship by protecting the health and safety of cur employces.
safeguarding the environment and making a positive impact on the

comnmunities in which we do business.
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS

HESS CORPORATION

Ameunts in millions, except per share data

FINANCIAL — FOR THE YEAR 2010 2009
Sales and other operating revenues $33,862 % 29,614
Net income attributable to Hess Corporation $ 2125 $ 740
Net income per share diluted $ 6.47 $ 227
Common stock dividends per share $ 40 $ .40
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 4,530 $ 3,046
Capital and exploratory expenditures $ 5,855 $ 3,245
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding 323.3 326.0
FINANCIAL — AT YEAR END 2010 2009
Total assets $35,396 $29,465
Total debt $ 5,583 $ 4,467
Total equity $16,209 $ 13,528
Debt to capitalization ratio® 24 9% 24 8%
Common stock price $ 76.54 $ 60.50
OPERATING — FOR THE YEAR 2010 2009
Production — net
Crude 0il and natural gas liquids (thousands of barreis per day)
United States 89 71
International 218 222
Total 307 293
Natural gas (thousands of mcf per day)
United States 108 53
International 561 597
Total 669 690
Barrels of oil equivalent (thousands of barrels per day) 418 408
Marketing and Refining (thousands of barrels per day)
Refining crude runs — HOVENSA LL.C® 195 201
Refined products sold 471 473

fa) Total debt as a percentage of the sum of total debt and total equity.
{b) Reflacts the Corporation's 50% share of HOVENSA's crude runs.
See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results.



LETTER TO

STOCKHOLDERS
|

John B, Hess
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

In 2010, our company delivered improved financial
results, increased reserves and production and made
significant progress in strategically positioning our
business for fong-term profitable growth,

For the year, our company achieved earnings of $2.1 billion,
or $68.47 per share, reflecting higher crude il seling prices
and increased rataill and energy marketing earnings, which

more than offset the impact of weaker refining results.

Exploration and Production earned $2.7 billion including
net nonrecurring after-tax income of $732 miliion, primarily
gains from asset sales. We produced 418,000 barrels of
oil equivalent per day, a 2.5 percent improvement over
the previous year, and replaced 176 percent of production
at a finding, development and acquisition cost of about
$23 per barrel of oil equivalent. At year end, our proved
reserves rose to 1.54 billion barrels of il equivalent and
our reserve life increased to 9.9 years.

Marketing and Refining lost $231 million including an after-
tax charge of $282 milion to reduce the carrying value of
our interest in the HOVENSA joint venture refinery in St.
Croix in the U8, Virgin Islands; the write-down reflects our
outlook for continued weakness in refining margins. Energy
Marketing generated stronger earnings primarily as a result
of improved margins in our natural gas and efectricity
businesses. Retail Marksting convenience store sales were
up more than 4 percent while average fuel volumes per
station wara lower by about 1 percant.

Cur financial position remaing strong. Our debt io
capitalization ratio at year end was 24.9 percent, essentially
unchanged from 2008. In August 2010 we issued $1.25
hillion of 30-year notas, with proceeds used to acquire an
additional 8 percent staks in the Valhall Field in Norway

and for the acquisition of acreage from TRZ Energy in

the Bakken shale oil play in North Dakota. In December,
we issued 8.8 million shares of stock to complete the
acquisition of American Qil & Gas, which was also

positioned in the Bakken.

We are committed to maintaining a strong batance sheet so
that we are able to fund our portfolio of attractive investment
opportunities. Our company's capital and exploratory
expenditures budgeat for 2011 is $5.6 billion. Substantially

all of our spending will be targeted to Exploration and
Production, with $3.1 billien for production, $1.6 billion for
devetopments and $300 million for exploration. We plan

to invest approximately $1.8 billion in the Bakken, up from
about $800 miflion last year excluding acquisitions.

EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION

Our company made significant progress in 2010 in
increasing our reserves and production and building our
position in unconventional resaurces. In addition to the
American Oi & Gas and TRZ Energy acquisitions in the
Bakken, we acquired about 90,000 net acres in the Eagle
Ford in South Texas, formed a partnership with Toreador
Resources to explore the Paris Basin in France and signed
joint study agreements with PetroChina and Sinopec in
China. During the vear, we also increased our interest in
the Valhall Field in Norway ¢ 64 percent from 28 percent
and doubled our working interest in the Tubular Belts Field
in the Gulf of Mexico to 40 percent and became operator,

Production growth in 2010 was underpinned by the
Bakken, where we exited the year at our targeted rate of
20,000 barrels of oil equivatent per day, the deepwater
Gulf of Mexica and strong operating performance across
the portfolio. We made great progress throughout

the year advancing key developments, including the



expansion of our Tioga gas plant in North Dakota, the
continuing redevelapment of the Valhall Field, front-end
engineering and design plans for the Pony and Tubular
Bells Fields in the Gulf of Mexico, and the appraisal of
Biock WA-390-P offshore Australia. In exploration, we
drilled three wells in the Eagle Ford shale and began
drilling in the North Red Sea in Egypt.

MARKETING AND REFINING

Refining results were weaker than the previous year

for both HOVENSA and our Port Reading, New Jersey
facility. Both facilities completed major turnarounds of
their FCC units during the year. In addition, HOVENSA
was negatively impacted by a weak margin environment,
higher fuel costs and unplanned downtime. It announced
plans in January 2011 to reduce crude ofl distillation
capacity to 350,000 barrels per day from 500,000
barrels per day by shutting down older, less efficient
units. This action éhould increase the percentage of
higher margin products, improve efficiency and reliability
and reduce operating costs.

Energy Marketing, which provides natural gas,
elactricity and fuel oil te more than 21,000 commercial
and industrial customers in the eastern United States,
intreduced Hess Small Businiess Services and Hess
Energy Solutions to expand both our customer base
and service offerings. We also began coenstruction

in New Jersey of our joint venture Bayonne Energy
Center, a 512-megawatt, natural gas fueled power
plant that will provide electricity to New York City.

Retail Marketing, which has 1,362 gasoline and
convenience stores along the East Coast of the United
States, increased convenience store sales partly
through The continued addition of Dunkin' Donuts, now
offered in more than a third of our locations.

SAFETY AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In 2010, we improved our safety performance for the
sixth consecutive year. Qur progress is the result
of the commitment of our entire work force and the

success of our management systems in building a
culture of safety, an achievement that was recently

recognized by the LJ.S. National Safety Council.

Our company is committed to making a long-lasting positive
impact on the communities where we operate. In Equatorial
Guinea, we completed the fourth year of a successful
partnership with the government to help transform primary
education through teacher training, the development of
model schools and improving the education infrastructure.
In 2010, nearly 1,000 primary school teachers graduated
from a two-year certification course and 1,400 first grade
teachers, trainers and school inspectors completed an
intensive training course in active learning methodology. The
company supported community development initiatives in
more than 20 countries, including vocational skills training

in Indonesia and youth development in Egypt and Norway.
Hess has also made a major gift to the New York Public
Library to support community and research libraries and

upgrade information technology.

Our company received recoegnition for cur efforts to build
a sustainable enterprise. Our Corporate Sustainability
Report earned an A+ under the Global Reporting
Initiative. We were ranked first in the Carbon Disclosure
Project’s Global 500 Energy Sector and 10th among top
corporate citizens by Corporate Responsibility Officer
magazine. We were also ranked in the Dow Jones
Sustainability Index for North America and included in
NASDAQ CRD Analytics Glebal Sustainability Index.

We deeply appreciate the hard work and dedication of
our employees to build a company to sustain profitable
growth. Wa are grateful, as always, for the cutstanding
advice and guidance of our Board of Directors. We
especially want to thank you, our stockholders, for
your continued interest and support.

3&6%«

John B. Hess
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
March 2, 2011
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PRODUCTION

In 2010, net production averaged 418,000 barrels of
oil equivalent per day, up 2.5 percent from 408,000
barrels of oil equivalent per day in 2009. This increase
resulted from production growth in the North Dakota
Bakken shale oil play, Russia and the L lano Field in the
deepwater Guif of Mexico.

In the Bakken, we continued to build on our strong
position. We increased our land holdings and drilled 44
wells. Additionally, Hess completed two key Bakken
acquisitions. The acquisition of American Qil & Gas for
coemmon stock increased Hess' strategic position by
approximately 85,000 net acres, The $1.08 billion
purchase of TRZ Energy added approximately 167,000
net acres near Hess’ existing holdings. Excluding the two
acquisitions, Hess’ Bakken production exited the year at
its targeted rate of 20,000 barrels of oil aquivalent per day.

Seminole, Texas

In Russia, continued development drilling in
conjunction with strang reservoir performance raised
net production to 44,000 barrels of oil equivalent per
day at year end. The dritling program in the Llano Field

(Hess 50%) raised net production to approximately
16,000 barrets of ¢il equivalent per day at year end.

In September, the company completed a strategic
asset trade in which Hess assumed Shell's 28 percent
interest in the Valhall Field and 25 percent interest

in the satellite Hod Field offshore Norway. In return,
Shell assumed Hess' 9 percent interast in the Clair
Fietd in the United Kingdom and all of Hess' interests
in Gabon. Alsc in September, Hess completed the
acquisition of Total's 8 percent interest in Valhall and
12.5 percent interest in Hod. These transactions
brought Hess’ interest in Vathall and Hod up to 64
percent and 62.5 percent, respectively,

DEVELOPMENTS

In suppoert of the growing Bakken shale oil development
in the Williston Basin in North Dakota, the company
sanctioned the expansion of the Tioga Gas Plant,

the addition of three compressor stations and a rail
loading terminal,

At the Hess operated Pony Field (Hess 100%) in the
deepwater Gulf of Mexico, we signed a letter of intent
with the Knotty Head partners {0 jointly develop the
Pony and Knotty Heads Fields. Also at Peny, we spud
an additional appraisal well on Green Canyon Block
459 to test the eastern extent of the structure; drilling
has been suspended since the second quarter. A
plan for reentry in the second half of 2011 has been
developed subject to receipt of necessary permits
from the U.S. Bureau of Ocean Energy Management,

Ancther key development in the Gulf of Mexico was
our agreement to double our interest in the Tubular
Belis Field by acquiring an additional 20 percent from
BP, bringing our interest to 40 percent and assuming
operatorship. Transition of the project from BP to Hess
is complete and we signed a letter of award for a third
party ownad production facility.
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in the Norwegian North Sea, the Valhall redevelopment
project achieved major milestones with the installation of the
main deck and personne! accommodations. In the Danish
North Sea, the company sanctioned the South Arne
Phase 3 development. Production starhup is planned for 2013.

In indonesia, the company continued development of
the Ujung Pangkah Field (Hess 75%) with installation

of a second welthead platform. Drilling operations from
the new platform commenced in September. The main
central processing platform and the accommadation and
utility platform will be installed during 2011. In addition, the
Natuna wellhead platform was installed and development
drilling commenced in the Gajah Baru Field (Hess 23%,).
In Malaysia, we continued to progress the development of
the Belud (Hess 40%) and PM301 {Hess 50%) assets.

EXPLORATION

We continue to strengthen our portfolio with
unconventional resources becoming an increasing
preportion of our mix and commanding a significant
portion of our investment program. In 2010, we expanded
into new unconventional hydrocarbon areas by acquiring
acreage in the Eagle Ford play in South Texas and the
Paris Basin in France.

At year end, Hess had acquired approximately 0,000 net
acres in the Eagle Ford. Exploration drilling commenced
in the fourth quarter and additional exploraticn and
appraisal activities are planned throughout 2011,

In France, Hess formed a partnership with Toreador
Resources to explere the unconventional oil potential of
the Paris Basin. Crilling is expected to commence in 2011.

In Australia, we complsted the 16th and final
commitment well on our WA-390-P Block (Hess 100%)
resulting in 13 natural gas discoveries, An appraisal
program that includes additional drilling and flow
testing wells commenced in the fourth quarter and will
continue into 2011,

Following resolution of a boundary dispute between
Brunei and Malaysia, plans ars now proceeding to

commence exploration drilling on Block CA-1 (Hess
13.5%), offshore Brunei, in the second half of 2011.

In Peru, drilling operations on Block 64 (Hess 50%)
concluded appraising & prior well and a successful well
test. Planning is underway to determine the best way to
develop the discovered resources,

Samara-Nafta operations, Russia

The successful exploitation program on our Samara-
Nafta licenses {Hess 85%]) in Russia continued and
included the drilling of a significant discovery at the
Moretskoye prospect. This discovery was tied into the
existing field infrastructure and brought into production.

in December we spud a well on our Cherry prospect on
Narth Red Sea Block 1, in which Hess has an 80 percent
working interest. A sacond well is planned on the block
following completion of drilling at Chetry.

1
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REFINING

Our HOVENSA joint venture refinery in the United
States Virgin Islands is jointly owned by Hess and
Petroleos de Venezuela S.A. In January 2011,
HOVENSA announced its decision to reduce crude
distillation capacity to 350,000 barrels per day from
500,000 barrels per day, by shutting down older,
less efficient units. This reconfiguration is expected
to improve the refinery's competitive position and
reliability. HOVENSA's 150,000 barrel per day fiuid
catalytic cracking unit (FCC) and the 58,000 barrel
per day delayed coking unit are not affected by this
change. Gross crude runs at the refinery averaged
390,000 barrels per day in 2010 versus 402,000
barrels per day in 2008. Crude runs were below
2009 levels primarily as a result of the weak margin
environment, the planned turnaround of the refinery’'s
FCC unit and unplanned maintenance.

Our Port Reading, New Jersey, FCC facility located

near New York Harbor produces gasoline and fuel oil
primarily for markets in the Northeast United States. The
facility averaged feedstack runs of about 55,000 barrels
per day in 2010 versus 63,000 barrels per day in 2009,
Feedstock runs were lower in 2010 primarily as a result
af a planned turnaround of the FCC unit.

SUPPLY & TERMINALS

Hess operates a network of 20 refined product terminals
on the East Coast of the United States, as well as an
oil storage facility in St. Lucia. Our £ast Coast terminals
provide the company a compestitive advantage in the
supply of refined products to cur Retail and Energy
Marketing businesses.

In 2010, the Hess terminal in Port Reading, New
Jersey started marketing marine diesel fuel and our
marine bunker fuels business continued to show

profitable growth. Third-party utilization of our
storage tanks increased during the year, generating
incramental revenue for the Hess terminal network.

ENERGY MARKETING

Hess Energy Marketing is a major supplier of fuel oil,
natural gas and electricity to commercial, industrial and
utility customers in the Eastern United States. In 2010,
natural gas and electricity volumes remained strong
and margins improved. Customer relationships, multi-
commeaedity product offerings and new lines of business
position Hess Energy Marketing for future growth.

In 2010 construction began in New Jersey on the
Bayonne Energy Center, a 512-megawatt, natural
gas fueled electric power plant jointly owned by Hess
Corporation and Arclight Capital Parthers, Once
operational in 2012, the facility will generate enough
electricity to power approximately 500,000 homes in
the New York City area.

RETAIL MARKETING

Hess is the leading independent gasoline convenience
store retailer on the East Coast with 1,362 Hess branded
locations. Annual convenience store revenues in 2010,
excluding petroleurn products, were approximately
$1.2 billion, an increase of 4 percent from 2008, In
addition {o convenience store sales growth, Hess
Retail Marketing reduced overall expenses and
delivered record safety performance.

During the year, tha company cpened three new
HESS EXPRESS locations and expanded its Dunkin’
Conuts offering to a total of 454 Hess locations.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Our company is committed to supplying energy to help
meet global demand in a manner that safeguards our
employees, preserves the environment and makes a
positive impact on the communities where we operate.
We strive each day to be a trusted energy partner to
communities, employees, business partners, customers
and investors through sustainable business practices.

in 2010 we improved our safety performance for the
sixth consecutive year. Qur progress is the result of the
commitment of our entire work force and the success
of our management systems. We are proud of our
achievements and remain focused on continuing to
improve our safety performance and operating our
facilities in a manner that protects the health and safety
of our employees, our partners and the community.

The company continued to make progress on climate
change initiatives. In 2010 we announced a goal of a 20
percent reduction in greenhouse gas emission intensity
based on a 2008 bassline. Preliminary estimates of
reductions are encouraging and we continue to reduce
fiaring in Aigeria and Equatorial Guinea while increasing
overall production. We also achieved our 2010 target
of obtaining 10 percent of the electricity used company
wide from renewable sources,

Although we have robust processes and systems in
place designed to prevent spills and releases, we have
further strengthened our emergency plans, personnel
and equipment to rapidly respond if necessary. In 2010,
both the volume and number of spills were negligible
and spills were rapidly mitigated.

Hess partners with government and local communities
where we operate to create lasting improvements

in education and health. In Equatorial Guinea we are
entering our fifth year of successtul partnership to help

transform primary education through teacher training,
preparation of learning materials and development of
model schools. In addition, the company supported a
number of community development initiatives in more
than 20 countries ranging from vocational skills training in
Indonesia tc youth development in Egypt and Norway.

R
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Teacher Training Program, Equatorial Gulnea

Since 2002 we have been active participants in multi-
stakeholder voluntary initiatives designed to promote
universal human rights, protect the environment and
encourage financial transparency including the United
Nations Global Compact, the Voluntary Principles on
Security and Human Rights and the Extractive Industries
Transparency Initiative. In 2010 we developed a Human
Rights Policy, conducted human rights risk assessments
in West and North Africa and conducted training in
compliance with our human rights commitments in
Malaysia, Indonesia, Algeria and Equatorial Guinea.

We are proud of our achievements in 2010 and will
continue to execute our strategy to improve our
performance in all aspects of sustainability.




20

HESS

CORPORATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Johty B, Hess ™
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Samuel W. Bedman @ ®

Former Secretary of the United States
Department of Energy;

Former Deputy Sscretary of the United
States Department of the Treasury

Nicholas F. Brady &

Chairman, Choptank Partners, Inc.;
Former Secretary of the United States
Department of the Troasury;

Former Chairman,

Dillon, Read & Co., Inc.

Gregory P. Hill
Executive Vice President;
Presidant, Worldwide
Exploration & Producticn

Edith E. Holiday @*

Corporate Director and Trustee;
Former Assistant to the President and
Secretary of the Cabinet;

Former General Counsel of the United
States Department of the Treasury

CORPORATE OFFICERS

Thomas H. Kean™®®

President, THK Consulting, LLC;
Former President, Drew University;
Former Governor, State of New Jersey

Risa Lavizzo-Mourey @
President and Chief Executive Officer,
The Robert Wood Johnson Foundation

Craig G. Matthews ®
Former Vice Chairman

and Chief Operating Officer,
KeySpan Corporation;

Former Chief Executive Cfficer
and President, NUI, Inc.

John H. Mullin @

Chairman, Ridgeway Farm LLC;
Former Managing Director,
Dilfon, Read & Co., inc.

Frank A. Qlson @ ®

Former Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer,
The Hertz Corporation

Ernst H. von Metzsch®
Managing Member,
Cambrian Capital, L.P.;
Former Senior Vice President
and Partner, Wellington
Management Company

F. Borden Walker
Executive Vice President;
President, Marketing and Refining

Robert N. Wilson®@®
Chairman, Still River Systems;
Former Vice Chairman

of the Board of Directors,
Johnson & Johnson

(1) Member of Exscutive Committee
(2) Member of Aucdit Committee

(3) Member of Compensation and
Management Development Committee:

(4) Member of Corporate Governance
and Nominating Commitiee

John B. Hess
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive QOfficer

SENIOR VICE PRESIDENTS

Gregory P. Hill
Executive Vice President;
President, Worldwide
Exploration & Production

F. Borden Walker
Executive Vice President;
President, Marketing and Refining

VICE PRESIDENTS

Christopher J. Baldwin
Gary A. Boubel
William T. Drennen
John A, Gartman

Timothy B, Goodell
General Counsel

Scott M. Heck
Lawrence H, Ornstein
Howard Paver

John P, Rielly
Chief Financial Officer

John J. Scelfo

R. Gordon Shearer
John V. Simon
Darius Sweet
Michael R. Turner
Mykel J. Ziolo

Secretary

Treasurer

George C. Barry
Robert M. Biglin

Gerald |. Bresnick
C. Martin Dunagin
David K. Kirghner
Richard J. Lawior
Jonathon L. Pepper

Harold |. Small
Jonathan C. Stein
Jeffery L. Steinhorn

Kevin B. Wilcox
Controiler

Jay R. Wilscn




ANNUAL REPORT
FORM 10-K




UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010

or

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 1-1204

Hess Corporation

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

DELAWARE 13-4921002
(State or other jurisdiction of (L.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organizafion) Identification Number)
1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, 10036
NEW YORK, N.Y. (Zip Code)

(Address of principal executive offices)
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code, is (212} 997-8500)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered
Common Stock (par value $1.00) New York Stock Exchange
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities
Act. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d} of the
Exchange Act. Yes [l No

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months {(or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to
file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant submitted electronically and posted on its Corporate website, if any, every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter)
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such
files). Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Ttem 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein,
and will not be contained, to the best of Registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or informatton statements incorporated by
reference in Part TI1 of this Ferm 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. 0O —_

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a
smaller reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company™
in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer O Non-accelerated filer U Smaller reporting company L[]
(Do not check if a smatler reporiing company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act). Yes O No

The aggregate market value of voting stock held by non-affiliates of the Registrant amounted to $14,497,000,000
computed using the outstanding common shares and closing market price on June 30, 2010.

At December 31, 2010, there were 337,680,780 shares of Common Stock outstanding.
Part IIT is incorporated by reference from the Proxy Statement for the armual meeting of stockholders to be held on May 4, 2011,




Item No.

1. and 2.
1A,

10.
11.
12,

13.
14.

15.

HESS CORPORATION
Form 10-K
TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART I
Business and Properties . . ... ..o ov i e e e s
Risk Factors Related to Our Business and Operations . . ... . ....... ... oo aaoo.
Legal Proceedings . .. oo .o v . i e et e
PART II

Market for the Registrant’s Common Stock, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities .. .. ... ... .. ... . i i i e

Selected Financial Data. . . . oo i e e
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations . .
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk. . .. ... ... ... ... ... ...
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data .. .. .. ... ... .. ... .. i
Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure. .
Controls and Procedures . . .. ... .. ... i e

Other InfOIMAation . . . ..ottt e ettt e e e e e e e et e et e e e e e
PART 111

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate GOVernance ... .........c..oetonvnann..

Executive Compensation . . . ... .. ittt it iyt et e e

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters. . . ...ttt et i e e e e e e

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence . ...........
Principal Accounting Fees and Services . . .. ... i iiit it

PART IV
Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules. . .. ... ... .. .. . . i i e
A S L L o . Lt et e e

19
21
22
42
45
99
99
99



PART I

Items 1 and 2. Business and Properties

Hess Corporation (the Registrant) is a Delaware corporation, incorporated in 1920. The Registrant and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the Corporation or Hess) is a global integrated energy company that operates
in two segments, Exploration and Production (E&P) and Marketing and Refining (M&R). The E&P segment
explores for, develops, produces, purchases, transports and sells crude oil and natural gas. These exploration and
production activities take place principally in Algeria, Australia, Azerbaijan, Brazil, Brunei, China, Colombia,
Denmark, Egypt, Equatorial Guinea, France, Ghana, Indonesia, Libya, Malaysia, Norway, Peru, Russia, Thailand,
the United Kingdom and the United States. The M&R segment manufactures refined petroleum products and
purchases, markets and trades refined petroleum products, natural gas and electricity. The Corporation owns 50% of
a refinery joint venture in the United States Virgin Islands. An additional refining facility, terminals and retail
gasoline stations, most of which include convenience stores, are located on the East Coast of the United States.

Exploration and Production

The Corporation’s total proved developed and undeveloped reserves at December 31 were as follows:

Crude Oil, Total Barrels of
Condensate & 0il
Natural Gas Equivalent
Liquids (c) Natural Gas (BOE)(a)
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
(Millions of barrels) (Millions of mcf) {Millions of barrels)
Developed
United States ......... 180 t54 199 205 213 188
Europe(). . . ... ..v... 210 171 424 417 281 241
Africa .............. 215 241 54 59 224 251
Asia................ 22 27 638 864 128 170
627 593 1,315 1,545 846 850
Undeveloped
United States ......... 124 95 81 101 138 112
Europe(b)............ 256 159 295 225 305 197
Africa .............. 55 73 9 12 56 75
Asia. ... .. oL, 42 47 898 938 192 203
477 374 1,283 1,276 691 587
Total
United States . ........ 304 249 280 306 351 300
Burope(b). ........... 466 330 719 642 586 438
Africa .............. 270 314 63 71 280 326
Asia................ 64 74 1,536 1,802 320 373
1,104 967 2,598 2,821 1,537 1,437

(a) Reflects natural gas reserves converted on the basis of relutive energy content (six mcf equals one barrel). Barrel of oil equivalence does not
necessarily result in price equivalence as the equivalent price of natural gas on a barrel of oil equivalent basis has been substantially lower
than the corresponding price for crude oil over the recent past. See the average selling prices in the fable on page 8,



{b) Asaresult of acquisitions in 2010, proved reserves in Norway represent 22% of the Corporation’s total reserves. Proved reserves in Norway

(¢}

at December 31, 2010 were as follows:

Crude Oil and Total Barrels of
Natwral Ges Liguids Natural Gas 0il Equivalent (BOE)
(Millions of barrels) (Millions of mcf) (Millions of barrels)
Developed. . . .. ... e e e 97 157 123
Undeveloped . . . . .. .. . e 167 247 208

7 264 404 33

Total natwral gas liquids reserves ar December 31, 2010, were 102 million barrels (54 million barrels developed and 48 million barrels
undeveloped). Total natural gas liquids reserves at December 31, 2009, were 71 million barrels (41 million barrels developed and
30 million barrels undeveloped).

On a barrel of oil equivalent (boe) basis, 45% of the Corporation’s worldwide proved reserves are undeveloped

at December 31, 2010 (41% at December 31, 2009). Proved reserves held under production sharing contracts at
December 31, 2010 totaled 15% of crude oil and natural gas liquids and 51% of natural gas reserves (24% and 57%,
respectively, at December 31, 2009).

The Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) revised its 0il and gas reserve estimation and disclosure

standards effective December 31, 2009. See the Supplementary Oil and Gas Data on pages 88 through 97 in the
accompanying financial statements for additional information on the Corporation’s oil and gas reserves.

Worldwide crude oil, natural gas liquids and natural gas production was as follows:
2010 2009 2008

Crude oil (thousands of barrels per day)
United States

10511110 (- N 52 39 i5
Onshore. .. ... . e 23 2 17
75 60 R
Europe
United Kingdom .. ... ...ttt et e st e e iiaaaaans 19 21 29
oWy ™ o i e e e 16 13 16
Denmark . .. ... e 11 12 11
S P 42 37 27
88 8 B
Africa
Equatorial Guinea . ....... ..ottt e i e e 69 70 72
Algeria . . e e 11 14 15
GabOm . . L e 10 14 14
Labya, o e 3 22 B
u3 120 124
Asia
Azerbatjan. . . .. ... e e e 7 8 7
Other. . ..o e e e _6 8 _ 6
13 16 13
Total . . e e e 289 279 252

||

Natural gas liquids (thousands of barrels per day)
United States

Offshore ... e 7 4 3
Onshore. ... e e e e e 7 1 _1
14 1 10

Burope™® . ... e 3 3 4
A L e e e e 1 - —
Total . .. e e 18 14 14



2010 2009 2008
Natural gas (thousands of mef per day)

United States
L1 110 70 55 37
0,1 2 T ¢ 38 38 41
108 93 78
Europe
United Kingdom . . ...... .. .. ittt ainrinnaannn 93 118 223
NOrWaY ™ . i e e e e e e 29 21 22
Denmark . .. .. e e e e 12 12 10

134 151 255
Asia and Other

Joint Development Arca of Malaysia/Thailand (JDA) ............... ... 282 294 185
Thailand . ... ... e e 85 85 87
INdOnesia. .. oottt e e e e e 50 65 32
1 11 10 2 2
427 446 356

L Y A PPN 669 690 689
Barrels of oil equivalent (perdayy™*................. ... ... 0.0 418 408 381

*  Norway production for 2010 included 14 thousand barrels per day of crude oil, I thousand barrels per day of natural gas liguids and 13
thousand mcf per day of natural gas from the Valhall Field.

** Reflects natural gas production converted on the basis of relative energy content (six mcf equals one barret). Barrel of oil equivalence does
not necessarily result in price equivalence as the equivalent price of natural gas on a barrel of oil equivalent basis has been substantially
lower than the corresponding price for crude oil over the recent past. See the average selling prices in the iable on page 8.

A description of our significant E&P operations follows:

United States

At December 31, 2010, 23% of the Corporation’s total proved reserves were located in the United States.
During 2010, 29% of the Corporation’s crude oil and natural gas liquids production and 16% of its natural gas
production were from United States operations. The Corporation’s production in the United States was from
properties offshore in the Gulf of Mexico, as well as onshore properties in the Williston Basin of North Dakota and
in the Permian Basin of Texas.

Offshore: The Corporation’s production offshore the United States was principally from the Shenzi (Hess
28%), Llano (Hess 50%), Conger (Hess 38%), Baldpate (Hess 50%), Hack Wilson (Hess 25%) and Penn State (Hess
50%) fields. At the Shenzi Field, the operator is pursuing water injection and additional development drilling
opportunities, However, development and exploration activities are currently being affected by the uncertain
regulatory environment in the Gulf of Mexico. See Gulf of Mexico Update on page 12.

At the Pony project on Green Canyon Block 468 (Hess 100%), the Corporation has signed a non-binding
agreement in principle with the owners on adjacent Green Canyon Block 512 that outlines a proposal to jointly develop
the Pony and Knotty Head fields. Negotiation of a joint operating agreement and planning for field development are
underway. The agreement in principle provides that Hess will be operator of the joint development. The Corporation
also commenced and subsequently suspended drilling the Pony 3 appraisal well on Green Canyon Block 469 in 2010.
The Corporation is planning to resume drilling in 2011 contingent upon receipt of necessary permits.

In the third quarter of 2010, the Corporation acquired an additional 20% interest in the Tubular Bells cil and
gas field in the Gulf of Mexico. The Corporation now has a 40% working interest in the field and is operator.
Engineering and design work for the field development progressed during 2010 and will continue in 2011.

At December 31, 2010, the Corporation had interests in 306 blocks in the Gulf of Mexico, of which 272 were
exploration blocks comprising 1,069,000 net undeveloped acres, with an additional 78,000 net acres held for
production and development operations.



Onshore: In North Dakota, the Corporation holds more than 300,000 net acres in the Bakken oil shale play
(Bakken). In December 2010, the Corporation acquired approximately 85,000 net acres in the Bakken through the
purchase of American Oil & Gas Inc. (American Oil & Gas) through the issuance of approximately 8.6 million
shares of the Corporation’s stock. Further, in December 2014, the Corporation acquired an additional 167,000 net
acres in the Bakken from TRZ Energy, LLC for $1,075 million in cash. The Corporation is currently operating 18
drilling rigs in the Bakken and is expanding production and export facilities to accommodate future production
growth, In 2011, the Corporation plans to invest $1.8 billion for drilling and infrastructure in the Bakken,

In Texas, the Corporation holds a 34% interest in the Seminole-San Andres Unit and is operator. The
Corporation is developing a part of this producing field using tertiary CO- flooding operations.

During 2010, the Corporation acquired approximately 90,000 net acres in the Eagle Ford shale formation in
Texas. The Corporation plans to drill an initial six exploration wells, which wili be followed by 12 appraisal wells,
Exploration drilling commenced in the fourth quarter of 2010,

In the Marcellus gas shale formation in Pennsylvania, the Corporation is operator and holds a 100% interest on
approximately 53,000 net acres and holds a 50% non-operated interest in approximately 38,000 net acres. There is
currently a drilling moratorium in the Delaware River Basin area, where the majority of the Corporation’s acreage is
located. The moratorium is expected to remain in place until the Delaware River Basin Commission establishes new
drilling regulations.

Europe

At December 31, 2010, 38% of the Corporation’s total proved reserves were located in Europe
{United Kingdom 6%, Norway 22%, Denmark 3% and Russia 7%). During 2010, 30% of the Corporation’s
crude oil and natural gas liquids production and 20% of its natural gas production were from European operations.

United Kingdom: Production of crude oil and natural gas liquids from the United Kingdom North Sea was
principally from the Corporation’s non-operated interests in the Nevis (Hess 27%), Bittern (Hess 28%),
Schiehallion (Hess 16%) and Beryl (Hess 22%) fields. Natural gas production from the United Kingdom was
primarily from the Bacton Area (Hess 23%), Easington Catchment Area (Hess 30%), Everest (Hess 19%), Beryl
(Hess 22%). Nevis (Hess 27%) and Lomond (Hess 17%) fields. The Corporation also has an 18% interest in the
Central Area Transmission System (CATS) pipeline and interests in the Atlantic (Hess 23%) and Cromarty (Hess
90%) fields.

In September 2010, the Corporation disposed of all of its interests in the Clair Field as part of an exchange for
additional interests in the Valhall and Hod fields in Norway as further described below.

In February 2011, the Corporation completed the previously announced sale of a package of natural gas
producing assets in the United Kingdom North Sea including its interests in the Easington Catchment Area, the
Bacton Area, the Everest Field and the Lomond Field for approximately $350 million, after closing adjustments.
The sale of the Corporation’s interest in the CATS pipeline is expected to close in the second quarter of 2011,

Norway: Substantially all of the 2010 Norwegian production was from the Corporation’s interest in the
Valhall Field (Hess 64%). The Corporation also holds an interest in the Hod (Hess 63%), Snohvit (Hess 3%) and
Snorre (Hess 19%) fields. All four of the Corporation’s Norwegian field interests are located offshore.

In September 2010, the Corporation exchanged its interests in Gabon and the Clair Field in the
United Kingdom for additional interesis of 28% and 25%, respectively, in the Valhall and Hod fields in
Norway. Also in September 2010, the Corporation completed the acquisition of an additional 8% interest in
the Valhall Field and 13% interest in the Hod Field for $507 million. After these transactions, the Corporation’s
interests in the Valhall and Hod fields are now 64% and 63%, respectively.

A field redevelopment for Valhall commenced in 2007 and the Valhall Flank Gas Lift project was sanctioned in
2009. In 2010, the operator continued work on these projects, which are expected to be completed and
commissioned in 2011, In 2011, further drilling is planned for Valhall, which will include the addition of a
jack-up rig during the second half of the year.



Denmark: Crude oil and natural gas production comes from the Corporation’s operated interest in the South
Ame Field (Hess 58%). In 2010, the Corporation drilled two new production wells and sanctioned an additional
development phase at South Arne, which will include design, construction and installation of two new platforms
and related infrastructure.

Russia: The Corporation’s activities in Russia are conducted through its interest in a subsidiary operating in
the Volga-Urals region, In the third quarter of 2010, the Corporation acquired an additional 5% interest in its
subsidiary, increasing its ownership to 85%. As of December 31, 2010, this subsidiary had exploration and
production rights in 18 license areas in the Samara and Ulyanovsk territories.

France: In 2010, the Corporation entered into an agreement with Toreador Resources Corporation
(Toreador) under which it can invest in an initial exploration phase and earn up to a 50% working interest in,
and become operator of, Toreador’s Paris Basin acreage. An initial six exploration well program is scheduled to
begin in 2011, with the first well expected to spud in the first half of 2011.

Africa

At December 31, 2010, 18% of the Corporation’s total proved reserves were located in Africa (Equatorial
Guinea 6%, Algeria 1% and Libya 11%). During 2010, 37% of the Corporation’s crude o0il and natural gas liquids
production was from African operations. In September 2010, the Corporation disposed of all of its interests in
Gabon as part of the exchange for additional interests in the Valhall and Hod fields in Norway.

Equatorial Guinea: The Corporation is the operator and owns an interest in Block G (Hess 85%) which
contains the Ceiba Field and Okume Complex. In 2010, a 4D seismic survey was acquired covering the Okume
Complex and the Ceiba Field. This seismic data will be processed and evaluvated in 2011 in preparation for potential
further development drilling.

Algeria: The Corporation has a 49% interest in a venture with the Algerian national oil company that
redeveloped three oil fields. The Corporation also has an interest in Bir E1 Msana (BMS) Block 401C,

Libya: The Corporation, in conjunction with its Qasis Group partners, has oil and gas production operations
in the Waha concessions in Libya (Hess 8%). The Corporation also owns a 100% interest in offshore exploration
Area 54 in the Mediterranean Sea, where a successful exploration well was drilled in 2008. In 2009, the Corporation
successfully drilled a down-dip appraisal well. In 2010, the Corporation received a five year extension to the Area
54 license,

Egypt: The Corporation has an interest in the West Mediterranean Block 1 concession (West Med Block)
(Hess 55%). In September 2010, the Corporation recorded an after-tax charge of $347 million to fully impair the
carrying value of its interest in the West Med Block and to expense a previously capitalized well, See further
discussion in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations on page 29,
The Corporation also owns a 100% interest in Block 1 offshore Egypt in the North Red Sea. The Corporation spud
an exploration well on the North Red Sea block in late December 2010, the completion of which may be delayed by
the curent political unrest in Egypt. In December 2010, the Corporation entered a farm-out agreement that will,
subject to government approval, reduce its interest in the block from 100% to 80%.

Ghana: The Corporation holds a 100% interest in the Deepwater Tano Cape Three Points License. In 2010,
the Corporation acquired additional 3D seismic data and plans to drill a second exploration well on this block in
2011.

Asia

At December 31, 2010, 21% of the Corporation’s total proved reserves were located in the Asia region (JDA
9%, Indonesia 6%, Thailand 3%, Azerbaijan 2% and Malaysia 19%). During 2010, 4% of the Corporation’s crude oil
and natural gas liquids production and 64% of its natural gas production were from its Asian operations.

Joint Development Area of Malaysia/Thailand (JDA): The Corporation owns an interest in Block A-18 of
the JDA (Hess 50%j) in the Gulf of Thailand. In 2011, the operator will continue development of the block with
further drilling and construction of additional platform facilities.
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Malaysia: The Corporation’s production in Malaysia comes from its interest in Block PM301 (Hess 50%}),
which is adjacent to Block A-18 of the JDA where the natural gas is processed. The Corporation also owns an
interest in Block PM302 (Hess 50%) and Belud — Block SB302 (Hess 40%). Through December 31, 2010 the
Corporation has drilled two wells on Block 8B302 which were natural gas discoveries. Technical and commercial
evaluations are underway to assess the development alternatives for this block.

Indonesia: The Corporation’s natural gas production in Indonesia primarily comes from its interests
offshore in the Ujung Pangkah project (Hess 75%), and the Natuna A Field (Hess 23%). In 2010, the
Corporation installed a new wellhead platform at Ujung Pangkah and will install a new central processing
platform in 2011 to expand oil and water handling capacity. At the Natuna A Field the operator is constructing a
secand wellhead platform and a central processing platform, which is expected to be placed in service in 2011. The
Corporation also holds a 100% working interest in the offshore Semai V Block, where it plans to drill three
exploration wells beginning in 2011. The Corporation owns a 100% working interest in the offshore South Sesulu
Block and a 49% interest in the West Timor Block. In 2010, the Corporation sold its interest in the Jambi Merang
onshore natural gas development project,

Thailand: The Corporation’s natural gas production in Thailand primarily comes from the offshore Pailin
Field (Hess 15%) and the onshore Sinphuhorm Block (Hess 35%).

Azerbaijan; The Corporation has an interest in the Azeri-Chirag-Guneshli (ACGQ) fields (Hess 3%} in the
Caspian Sea and also owns an interest in the Baku-Tiblisi-Ceyhan cil transportation pipeline (Hess 2%). In 2010,
the Corporation sanctioned the Chirag Oil Development project at ACG. This project includes construction and
installation of a production, drilling and living-quarters platform and further development drilling.

Brunei: The Corporation has a 14% interest in Block CA-1 {previously known as Block J). The Corporation
expects the operator to begin exploration drilling in the second half of 2011.

China: The Corporation has signed a joint study agreement with China National Petroleum Corporation and
two joint study agreements with Sinopec to evaluate unconventional oil and gas resource opportunities in China.

Other Exploration Areas

Australia: The Corporation holds a 100% interest in an exploration license covering 780,000 acres in the
Carnarvon basin offshore Western Australia (WA-390-P Block). The Corporation has drilled all of the 16
commitment wells on the block, 13 of which were natural gas discoveries. In the fourth quarter of 2010, the
Corporation commenced an appraisal program that includes further driiling and flow testing certain wells. In
November 2010, the Corporation sold its 50% interest in the WA-404-P Block located offshore Western Australia.

Brazil: The Corporation has a 40% interest in block BM-S-22 located offshore Brazil. In early 2011, the
operator completed drilling of a third exploration well on this block, which did not encounter commercial quantities
of hydrocarbons. See further discussion in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations on page 23. The Corporation also had an interest in Block BM-ES-30 but reassigned its 30%
interest in 2010, pending government approval.

Peru: The Corporation has an interest in Block 64 in Peru (Hess 50%). In 2010, the Corporation successfully
drilled a sidetrack to an exploration well on this block. Further evaluation work is planned for 2011.

Colombia: The Corporation has interests in offshore Blocks RC 6 and RC 7 (Hess 30%).

Sales Commitments

In the E&P segment, the Corporation has no contracts or agreements to sell fixed quantities of its crude oil
production. The Corporation has contracts to supply fixed quantities of natural gas, principally relating to producing
fields in Asia. The most significant of these commitments relates to the JDA where the minimum contract quantity
of natural gas is estimated at 107 million mcf per year based on current entitlements under a natural gas sales
contract expiring in 2027. There are additional natural gas supply commitments on producing fields in Thailand and
Indonesia which currently total approximately 42 million mcf per year under contracts expiring in years 2021
through 2029. The Corporation is also currently committed to supply 7 million mef per year of natural gas from its
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share of production to a liquefied natural gas (LNG) processing facility in Norway under a contract expiring in
2026. The estimated total volume of natural gas subject to sales commitments under these contracts is
approximately 2,700 million mcf. The Corporation has not experienced any significant constraints in satisfying
the committed quantities under these natural gas sales contracts and it anficipates being able to meet future
requirements from available proved and probable reserves. In the United States there are no long-term sales
contracts for natural gas production from the E&P segment.

Natural gas is marketed by the M&R segment on a spot basis and under contracts for varying periods of time to
local distribution companies, and commercial, industrial and other purchasers. These natural gas marketing
activities are primarily conducted in the eastern portion of the United States, where the principal source of supply is
purchased natural gas, not the Corporation’s production from the E&P segment. The Corporation has not
experienced any significant constraints in obtaining the required supply of purchased natural gas.

Average selling prices and average production costs

2010 2009 2008
Average selling prices(a)
Crude oil (per bartel)
United States . . . ... ... e e $75.02 36067 $96.82
Burope(B) . ... oot e e e 58.11 47.02 78.75
Affica . . e 65.02 43.91 78.72
< 79.23 63.01 97.07
Worldwide . . ... . ... .. e 66.20 51.62 82.04
Natural gas Liquids {per barrel)
United States. . . ... .o it i e $47.92  $3657  $64.98
Europe(b) .. ... e e 59.23 43.23 74.63
ASIR o e e e 63.50 46.48 —
Worldwide . . . ... .o e 50.49 38.47 67.61
Natural gas {per mcf) '
United SIS . oo e et ettt e e i $370 $336 § 861
BEurope(h) ... oo e e e e 6.23 5.15 9.44
Asiaandother......... .. ... . ..t 5.93 5.06 5.24
Worldwide. .. ... ... e e 5.63 4.85 7.17
Average production (lifting) costs per bairel of oil equivalent
produced(c)
Umited SIS . . . o\ ottt ettt it e e $12.61 $13.72 $18.46
Europe(b) .. ..ot e 17.55 15.77 17.12
AfTICa . . e e e e e 11.00 10.93 10.22
ASIR . e e e e 8.16 7.65 8.48
Worldwide . . . ... ... e e 12.61 12.12 13.43

(a} Includes inter-company transfers valued at approximate market prices and the effect of the Corporation’s hedging activities.

(b) The average selling prices in Norway for 2010 were $79.47 per barrel for crude oil, $52.26 per barrel for natural gas liguids and $7.32 per
mef for natural gas. The average production (lifting) cost in Norway was 318.33 per barrel of oil equivalent produced.

(¢) Production (lifring} costs consist of amounts incurred to operate and maintain the Corporation's producing oil and gas wells, related
equipment and facilities, transportation costs and production and severance taxes. The average production costs per barrel of oil equivalent
reflect the crude oil equivalent of natural gas production converted on the basis of relative energy content (six mof equals one barrel).

The table above does not include costs of finding and developing proved oil and gas reserves, or the costs of
related general and administrative expenses, interest expense and income taxes.
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Gross and net undeveloped acreage at December 31, 2010

Undeveloped
Acreage(n)

Gross Net

(In thousands)
United States . . . .. e e e e e e e 3,650 2,478
L ()T (o 2,922 1,260
AT . i i e e e e e e e 9,619 6,282
Asiaand Other . . ... . i e e e 9,958 5,247
Totallb) ... e e et 26,149 15,267

{a) Includes acreage held under production sharing contracts.

(b) Licenses covering approximately 19% of the Corporation’s net undeveloped acreage held at December 31, 2010 are scheduled to expire during the
next three years pending the results of exploration activities. These scheduled expivations are largely in South America, Africa and the United States.

(¢} Gross and net undeveloped acreage in Norway was 1,143 thousand and 259 thousand, respectively.

Gross and net developed acreage and productive wells at December 31, 2010

Developed
Ap‘;f?(.:‘;?)gl: to Productive Wells*
Productive Wells Oil Gas
Gross Net Gross Net Gross  Net
{In thousands)
United States . . .. ..ot ittt ee s 628 538 1,114 573 61 46
Europe®**, . ... .. ... 1,381 847 289 158 151 31
Affica ... ... e e 9,831 933 9035 132 — —
Asiaandother............ ... ... .. 0., 2,200 630 74 7 468 98
Total ... . e 14,040 2948 2382 870 680 173

*  Includes multiple completion wells (wells producing from different formations in the same bore hole ) totaling 20 gross wells and I5 net wells.

** Gross and net developed acreage in Norway was 161 thousand and 45 thousand, respectively. Gross and net productive oil wells in Norway
were 74 and 29, respectively. Gross and ner productive gas wells in Norway were 9 and 1, respectively.

Number of net exploratory and development weils drilled

Net Exploratory Net Development
Wells Wells

2010 2000 2008 2000 2009 2008

Productive wells
United States . ... ... .ottt iie e — —_ 2 83 44 50
Burope*. ... .. e e 1 7 11 18 12 11
Africa ... .. . e 1 1 1 11 23 23
Asiaandother .. ... .. .. it 6 8 5 7 12 25
8 16 19 me o1 109

Dry holes

United States . .. .o ..ot i it e e e 5 4 — — — 1
BEurope®. .. .. i e e e — — 3 —_ - —
Affica . ... e e 2 — 2 1 — —
Asia and Othel' .............................. __2__ _"_2_ _i- o _ —
% 6 6 1 = _1
Total ... e 17 22 25 120 91 110

*  Includes one net productive development well drilled in Norway in 2010.
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Number of wells in process of drilling at December 31, 2010:

Gross Net

Wells  Wells

United States . . . vttt e e e e e e e e e e e 41 17
BOOPE . . ottt e e e e 11 10
- iy Tz R S 16 2
Astaand other . ... ... e e 12 3
B 0] P 80 32

Number of net waterfloods and pressure maintenance projects in process of installation at December 31, 2010 — 1

Marketing and Relining
Refining

The Corporation owns a 50% interest in HOVENSA L.L.C. (HOVENSA), a refining joint venture in the United
States Virgin Islands with a subsidiary of Petroleos de Venezuela S.A. (PDVSA). In addition, it owns and operates a
refining facility in Port Reading, New Jersey.

HOVENSA: Refining operations at HOVENSA consist of crude units, a fluid catalytic cracking upit (FCC)
and a delayed coker unit.

The following table summarizes capacity and utilization rates for HOVENSA:

Refinery Refinery Utilization
Capacity 2010 2009 2008
{Thousands of
barrels per day)
Crude. . ... e 500 78.0% B80.3% 83.2%
Fluid catalytic cracker ... ... ... .. ... .. ... ... ..... 150 66.5% 70.2% T2.7%
L 04 < o A 58 783% B8l.6% 924%

In Janvary 2011, HOVENSA announced plans to shut down certain older and smaller processing units on the
west side of its refinery, which will reduce the refinery’s crude oil distillation capacity from 500,000 to
350,000 barrels per day, with no impact on the capacity of its coker or FCC unit, This reconfiguration, which
is expected to be completed in the first quarter of 2011, is being undertaken to improve efficiency, reliability and
competitiveness. In 2010, the Corporation recorded an impairment charge related to its investment in HOVENSA.
For discussion of the impairment charge, see Note 4, Refining Joint Venture in the notes to the financial statements
on page 59.

The delayed coker unit permits HOVENSA to run lower-cost heavy crude oil. HOVENSA has long-term
supply contracts with PDVSA to purchase 115,000 barrels per day of Venezuelan Merey heavy crude oil and
155,000 barrels per day of Venezuelan Mesa medium gravity crude oil. The remaining crude oil requirements are
purchased mainly under contracts of one year or less from third parties and through spot purchases on the open
market. After sales of refined products by HOVENSA to third parties, the Corporation purchases 50% of
HOVENSA’s remaining production at market prices.

Gross crude runs at HOVENSA averaged 320,000 barrels per day in 2010 compared with 402,000 barrels per
day in 2009 and 441,000 barrels per day in 2008, The 2010 and 2009 utilization rates for HOVENSA reflect weaker
refining margins, higher fuel costs and planned and unplanned maintenance. During the first quarter of 2010, the
fluid catalytic cracking unit at HOVENSA was shut down for a scheduled turnaround. The 2008 utilization rates
reflect a refinery wide shut down for Hurricane Omar.

Port Reading Facility: The Corporation owns and operates a fluid catalytic cracking facility in Port Reading,
New Jersey, with a capacity of 70,000 barrels per day. This facility, which processes residual fuel oil and vacuum
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gas oil, operated at a rate of approximately 35,000 barrels per day in 2010 compared with 63,000 barrels per day in
2009 and 64,000 barrels per day in 2008. Substantially all of Port Reading’s production is gasoline and heating oil.
During 2010, the Port Reading refining facility was shutdown for 41 days for a scheduled turnaround.

Marketing

The Corperation markets refined petroleum products, natural gas and electricity on the East Coast of the
United States to the motoring public, wholesale distributors, industrial and commercial users, other petroleum
companies, governmental agencies and public utilities.

The Corporation had 1,362 HESS® gasoline stations at December 31, 2010, including stations owned by its
WilcoHess joint venture (Hess 44%). Approximately 92% of the gasoline stations are operated by the Corporation
or WilcoHess. Of the operated stations, 94% have convenience stores on the sites. Most of the Corporation’s
gasoline stations are in New York, New Jersey, Pennsylvania, Florida, Massachusetts, North Carclina and South
Carolina.

The table below summarizes marketing sales volumes:

2010 2009* 2008+

Refined Product sales (thousands of barrels per day)

Gasoling . . ... .. . e e 242 236 234
Distillates . . .. ... .o e e e 120 134 143
Residuals . ... ... i i i e e e e 69 67 56
Other . ... e e e e e 40 36 39
Total refined product sales. ... .. ... ... ... .. . . .. 471 473 472
Natural gas (thousands of mefperday)........ ... .. ... ... ... 2,016 2010 1,955
Electricity (megawatts round the clack). ... ... ... ... .. ... ... ... 4,140 4306 3,152

* Of rotal refined products sold, approximately 41%, 45% and 50% was obtained from HOVENSA and Port Reading in 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively, The Corporation purchased the balance from third parties under short-term supply contracts and spot purchases.

The Corporation owns 20 terminals with an aggregate storage capacity of 22 million barrels in its East Coast
marketing arcas. The Corporation also owns a terminal in St. Lucia with a storage capacity of 9 million barrels,
which is operated for third party storage.

The Corporation has a 50% interest in Bayonne Energy Center, LLC, a joint venture established to build and
operate a 512-megawatt natural gas fueled electric generating station in Bayonne, New Jersey, The joint venture
plans to sell electricity into the New York City market by a direct connection with the Con Edison Gowanus
substation. Construction of the facility began in mid-2010 and operations are expected to commence in 2012,

The Corporation has a 50% voting interest in a consolidated partnership that trades energy commodities and
derivatives. The Corporation also takes energy commodity and derivative trading positions for its own account.

The Corporation is pursuing opportunities for LNG import terminals in Shannon, Ireland and on the East Coast
of the United States. In addition, a subsidiary of the Corporation is exploring the development of fuel cell and
hydrogen reforming technologies.

For additional financial information by segment see Note 18, Segment Information in the notes to the financial
statements.
Competition and Market Conditions

See Item 1A, Risk Factors Related to Our Business and Operations, for a discussion of competition and market
conditions.
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Other Items

Gulf of Mexico Update:  In April 2010, an accident occurred on the Transocean Deepwater Horizon drilling
rig at the BP p.Lc. (BP) operated Macondo prospect in the Gulf of Mexico, resulting in loss of life, the sinking of the
rig and a significant crude oil spill, The Corporation was not a participant in the well. As a result of the accident, a
temporary dritling moratorium was imposed in the Gulf of Mexico. In October 2010, the drilling moratorium was
lifted by the United States Department of the Interior’s Bureau of Ocean Energy Management, Regulation and
Enforcement (BOEMRE) provided operators complied with all rules and requirements, including a series of new
drilling and safety rules issned by BOEMRE, The Corporation is currently evaluating the impact of these new
requirements on its activities in the Gulf of Mexico, as well as seeking approvals for plans and permits submitted in
connection with planned activities. However, the new regulatory environment is expected to result in a longer
permitting process and higher costs.

The moratorium impacted development drilling at the Shenzi Field, in which the Corporation has a 28%
interest. A production well that was being drilled was suspended and the drilling of a second production well that
was planned for 2010 was postponed. The Corporation estimates that these delays reduced 2010 production by
approximately 2,000 barrels of oil equivalent per day (boepd) and will likely reduce 2011 production by
approximately 4,000 boepd. In 2010, the Corporation’s only operated drilling rig in the Gulf of Mexico, the
Stena Forth, left the Pony project on Green Canyon 469 as part of a preexisting agreement for a one well farm-out of
the rig to another operator.

In January 2011, the BOEMRE announced that supplementary environmental reviews will not be required of
13 companies to resume work on the 16 wells that were in progress when the moratorium took effect, including the
aforementioned suspended Shenzi and Pony wells. However, these projects must comply with the new safety rules
and regulations before work can resume. As a result, the Corporation does not anticipate that it wiil be able to re-
commence these operations before the second half of 2011,

Additionally, the Corporation has filed Suspension of Operations (SO0} applications with the BOEMRE for
several exploration block licenses in the Gulf of Mexico that are due to expire in 2011 and may file additional
applications as deemed necessary. These SOC applications seek approval for extension of the lease expiration terms
due to circumstances outside the control of the Corporation that have delayed activities required to hold the licenses.

Remediation Plans and Procedures: The Corporation has in place a series of asset-specific emergency
response and continuity plans which detail procedures for rapid and effective emergency response and
environmental mitigation activities for its global offshore operations. These plans are maintained, reviewed and
updated annually to ensure their accuracy and suitability.

Where appropriate, plans are reviewed and approved by the relevant host government authorities on a periodic
basis. The Corporation has a current oil spill response plan for its Gulf of Mexico operations that has been approved
by the BOEMRE. This plan sets forth expectations for response training, drills and capabilities and the strategies,
procedures and methods that will be employed in the event of a spill covering the following topics: spill response
organization, incident command post, communications and notifications, spill detection and assessment (including
worst case discharge scenarios), identification and protection of environmental resources, strategic response
planning, mobilization and deployment of spill response equipment and personnel, oil and debris removal and
disposal, the use of dispersants and chemical and biological agents, in-situ burning of oil, wildlife rehabilitation and
documentation requirements.

Responder training and drills are routinely held worldwide to assess and continually improve the effectiveness
of the Corporation’s plans. The Corporation’s contractors, service providers, representatives from government
agencies and, where applicable, joint venture partners participate in the drills to ensure that emergency procedures
are comprehensive and can be effectively implemented.

To complement internal capabilities, the Corporation maintains membership contracts with cil spill response
organizations to provide coverage for its global drilling and production operations. These organizations are Clean
Gulf Associates, National Response Corporation (NRC) and Oil Spill Response (OSR). Clean Gulf Associates is a
regional spill response organization for the Gulf of Mexico; NRC and OSR are global response corporations and are
available to assist the Corporation when needed anywhere in the world. In addition to owning response assets in
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their own right, these organizations maintain business relationships that provide immediate access to additional
critical response support services if required. These owned response assets include nearly 300 recovery and storage
vessels and barges, more than 250 skimmers, over 300,000 feet of boom, and significant quantities of dispersants
and other ancillary equipment, including aircraft. If the Corporation were to request these organizations to obtain
additional critical response support services, it would provide the funding for such services and seek reimbursement
under its insurance coverages described below, In certain circumstances, the Corporation pursues and enfers into
mutual aid agreements with other companies and government cooperatives to receive and provide oil spill response
equipment and personnel suppott. [t also has representation on the Executive Committee of Clean Gulf Associates
and the Board of Directors of OSR, maintaining close associations with these organizations.

In light of the recent events in the Gulf of Mexico, the Corporation is participating in a number of industry-
wide task forces that are studying better ways to assess the risk of and prevent offshore incidents, access and control
blowouts in subsea environments, and improve containment and recovery methods. The task forces are working
closely with the oil and gas industry and international government agencies to implement improvements and
increase the effectiveness of oil spill prevention, preparedness, response and recovery processes.

Insurance Coverage and Indemnification: The Corporation maintains insurance coverage that includes
coverage for physical damage to its property, third party liability, workers’ compensation and employers’ liability,
general liability, sudden and accidental pollution, and other coverage. This insurance coverage is subject to
deductibles, exclusions and limitations and there is no assurance that such coverage will adequately protect the
Corporation against liability from all potential consequences and damages.

The amount of insurance covering physical damage 1o the Corporation’s property and liability related to
negative environmental effects resulting from a sudden and accidental pollution event, excluding windstorm
coverage in the Gulf of Mexico where it is self insured, varies by asset, based on the asset’s estimated replacement
value or the estimated maximum loss. In the case of a catastrophic event, first party coverage consists of two tiers of
insurance. The first $250 million of coverage is provided through an industry mutual insurance group. Above this
$250 miltion threshold, insurance is carried which ranges in value to over $1.9 billion in total, depending on the
asset coverage level, as described above, Additionally, the Corporation carries insurance which provides third party
coverage for general liability, and sudden and accidental pollution, up to $995 million,

Other insurance policies provide coverage for, among other things: charterer’s legal liability, in the amount of
$500 million per occurrence and aircraft Lability, in the amount of $300 million per occurrence.

The Corporation’s insurance policies renew at various dates each year. Future insurance coverage for the
industry could increase in cost and may include higher deductibles or retentions, or additional exclusions or
limitations. In addition, some forms of insurance may become unavailable in the future or unavailable on terms that
are deemed economically acceptable.

Generally, the Corporation’s drilling contracts (and most of its other offshore services contracts) provide for a
mutual hold harmless indemnity structure whereby each party to the contract (the Corporation and Contractor)
indemnifies the other party for injuries or damages to their personnel and property regardless of fault. Variations
include indemnity exclusions to the extent a claim is attributable to the gross negligence and/or willful misconduct
of a party. Third-party claims, on the other hand, are generally allocated on a fault basis.

The Corporation is customarily responsible for, and indemnifies the Contractor against, all claims, including
those from third-parties, to the extent attributable to pollution or contamination by substances originating from its
reservoirs or other property (regardless of fault, including gross negligence and willful misconduct) and the
Contractor is responsibie for and indemnifies the Corporation for all claims attributable to pollution emanating from
the Contractor’s property. Additionally, the Corporation is generally liable for all of its own losses and most third-
party claims associated with catastrophic losses such as blowouts, cratering and loss of hole, regardless of cause,
although exceptions for Josses attributable to gross negligence andfor willful misconduct do exist. Lastly, many
offshore services contracts include overall limitations of the Contractor’s liability equal to the value of the contract
or a fixed amount, whichever is greater.

Under a standard joint operating agreement (JOA), each party is liable for all claims arising under the JOA, not
covered by or in excess of insurance carried by the JOA, to the extent of its participating interest (operator or non-
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operator), Variations include indemnity exclustons where the claim is based upon the gross negligence and/or
willful misconduct of a party in which case such party is solely liable.

Environmental: Compliance with various existing environmental and pollution control regulations
imposed by federal, state, local and foreign governments is not expected to have a material adverse effect on
the Corporation’s financial condition or results of operations. The Corporation spent $13 million in 2010 for
environmental remediation. For further discussion of environmental matters see the Environment, Health and
Safety section of Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Number of Employees: The number of persons employed by the Corporation at year-end was
approximately 13,800 in 2010 and 13,300 in 2009,

Other: The Corporation’s Internet address is www.hess.com. On its website, the Corporation makes
available free of charge its annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on
Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursvant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange
Act as soon as reasonably practicable after the Corporation electronically files with or furnishes such material to the
Securities and Exchange Commission. The contents of the Corporation’s website are not incorporated by reference
in this report. Copies of the Corporation’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, its Corporate Governance
Guidelines and the charters of the Audit Committee, the Compensation and Management Development Commitiee
and the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee of the Board of Directors are available on the
Corporation’s website and are also available free of charge upon request to the Secretary of the Corporation at
its principal executive offices. The Corporation has also filed with the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) its annual
certification that the Corporation’s chief executive officer is unaware of any violation of the NYSE’s corporate
governance standards.

Item 1A, Risk Factors Related to Our Business and Operations

Our business activities and the value of our securities are subject to significant risk factors, including those
described below. The risk factors described below could negatively affect our operations, financial condition,
liquidity and results of operations, and as a result, holders and purchasers of our securities could lose part or all of
their investments. It is possible additional risks relating to our securities may be described in a prospectus
supptement if we issue securities in the future.

Our business and operating results are highly dependent on the market prices of crude oil, natural gas,
refined petrolewm products and electricity, which can be very volatile. Our estimated proved reserves,
revenue, operating cash flows, operating margins, future earnings and trading operations are highly dependent on
the prices of crude oil, natural gas, refined petroleum products and electricity, which are influenced by numerous
factors beyond our control. Historically these prices have been very volatile, The major foreign oil producing
countries, including members of the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries (OPEC), exert considerable
influence over the supply and price of crude oil and refined petroleum products. Their ability or inability to agree on
a common policy on rates of production and other matters has a significant impact on the oil markets. The
commodities trading markets as well as other supply and demand factors may also influence the selling prices of
crude oil, natural gas, refined petroleum products and electricity, To the extent that we engage in hedging activities
to mitigate commodity price volatility, we may not realize the benefit of price increases above the hedged price.
Changes in commodity prices can also have a material impact on collateral and margin requirements under our
derivative contracts. In addition, we utilize significant bank credit facilities to support these collateral and margin
requirements. An inability to renew or replace such credit facilities as they mature would negatively impact our
liquidity.

If we fail to successfully increase our reserves, our future crude oil and natural gas production will be
adversely impacted. We own or have access to a finite amount of oil and gas reserves which will be depleted over
time. Replacement of oil and gas production and reserves, including proved undeveloped reserves, is subject to
successful exploration drilling, development activities, and enhanced recovery programs. Therefore, future cil and
gas production is dependent on fechnical success in finding and developing additional hydrocarbon reserves.
Exploration activity involves the interpretation of seismic and other geological and geophysical data, which does
not always successfully predict the presence of commercial quantities of hydrocarbons. Drilling risks include
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unexpected adverse conditions, irregularities in pressure or formations, equipment failure, blowouts and weather
interruptions, Future developments may be affected by unforeseen reservoir conditions which negatively affect
recovery factors or flow rates. The costs of drilling and development activities have increased in recent years which
could negatively affect expected economic returns. Reserve replacement can also be achieved through acquisition.
Although due diligence is used in evaluating acquired oil and gas properties, similar risks may be encountered in the
production of oil and gas on properties acquired from others.

There are inherent uncertainties in estimating quantities of proved reserves and discounted future net
cash flow, and actual quantities may be lower than estimated. Numerous uncertainties exist in estimating
quantities of proved reserves and future net revenues from those reserves. Actual future production, oil and gas
prices, revenues, taxes, capital expenditures, operating expenses, and quantities of recoverable oil and gas reserves
may vary substantially from those assumed in the estimates and could materially affect the estimated quantities of
our proved reserves and the related future net revenues. In addition, reserve estimates may be subject to downward
or vpward revisions based on production performance, purchases or sales of properties, results of future
development, prevailing oil and gas prices, production sharing contracts, which may decrease reserves as crude
oil and natural gas prices increase, and other factors.

We are subject to changing laws and regulations and other governmental actions that can significantly
and adversely affect our business. Federal, state, local, territorial and foreign laws and regulations relating to tax
increases and retroactive tax claims, expropriation or nationalization of property, mandatory govemment
participation, cancellation or amendment of contract rights, and changes in import and export regulations,
limitations on access to exploration and development opportunities, as well as other political developments
may affect our operations. We also market motor fuels through lessee-dealers and wholesalers in certain states
where legislation prohibits producers or refiners of crude oil from directly engaging in retail marketing of motor
fuels. Similar legislation has been periodically proposed in various other states. As a result of the accident in April
2010 at the BP-operated Macondo prospect in the Gulf of Mexico (in which the Corporation was not a participant)
and the ensuing significant oil spilt, a temporary drilling moratorinm was imposed in the Gulf of Mexico. While this
moratorium has since been lifted, significant new regulations have been imposed and further legislation and
regulations may be proposed, including an increase in the potential liability in the event of an oil spill. Uncertainty
continues to exist as to the conditions under which future drilling in the Gulf of Mexico will occur. However, the
new regulatory environment is expected to result in a longer permitting process and higher costs.

Political instability in areas where we operate can adversely affect our business. Some of the
international areas in which we operate, and the partners with whom we operate, are politically less stable
than other areas and partners, Current political unrest in North Africa and the Middle East may affect our operations
in these areas as well as oil and gas markets generally. The threat of terrorism around the world also poses additional
risks to the operations of the oil and gas industry.

Our oil and gas operations are subject to environmental risks and environmental laws and regulations
that can result in significant costs and liabilities. Our oil and gas operations, like those of the industry, are
subject to environmental risk such as oil spills, produced water spills, gas leaks and ruptures and discharges of
substances or gases that could expose us to substantial liability for pollution or other environmental damage. For
example, the accident at the BP-operated Macondo prospect in April 2010 resulted in a significant release of crude
oil which caused extensive environmental and economic damage. Our operations are also subject to numerous
United States federal, state, local and foreign environmental laws and regulations. Non-compliance with these laws
and regulations may subject us to administrative, civil or criminal penalties, remedial clean-ups and natural resource
damages or other liabilities. In addition, increasingly stringent environmental regulations, particularly relating to
the production of motor and other fuels, have resulted and will likely continue to result in higher capital
expenditures and operating expenses for us and the oil and gas industry in general.

Concerns have been raised in certain jurisdictions where we have operations concerning the safety and
environmental impact of the drilling and development of unconventional oil and gas resources, particularly using
the process of hydraulic fracturing. While we believe that these operations can be conducted safely and with
minimal impact on the environment, regulatory bodies are responding to these concerns and may impose temporary
moratoriums and new regulations on such drilling operations that would likely have the effect of delaying and
increasing the cost of such operations.
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Concerns about climate change may resuit in significant operational changes and expenditures and
reduced demand for our products. We recognize that climate change is a global environmental concern.
Continuing political and social attention 10 the issue of climate change has resulted in both existing and pending
international agreements and national, regional or local legislation and regulatory measures to limit greenhouse gas
emissions. These agreements and measures may require significant equipment modifications, operational changes,
taxes, or purchase of emission credits to reduce emission of greenhouse gases from our operations, which may result
in substantial capital expenditures and compliance, operating, maintenance and remediation costs. In addition, we
manufacture petroleum fuels, which through normal customer use result in the emission of greenhouse gases,
Regulatory initiatives to reduce the use of these fuels may reduce our sales of, and revenues from, these products,
Finally, to the extent that climate change may result in more extreme weather related events, we could experience
increased costs related to prevention, maintenance and remediation of affected operations in addition to costs and
lost evenues related to delays and shutdowns.

Our industry is highly cempetitive and many of our competitors are larger and have greater resources than
us. The petroleum industry is highly competitive and very capital intensive. We encounter competition from numerous
companies in each of our activities, including acquiring rights to explore for crude oil and natural gas, and in purchasing
and marketing of refined products, natural gas and electricity. Many competitors, including national oil companies, are
larger and have substantially greater resources. We are also in competition with producers and marketers of other forms
of energy. Increased competition for worldwide oil and gas assets has significantly increased the cost of acquisitions. In
addition, competition for drilling services, technical expertise and equipinent has, in the recent past, affected the
availability of technical personnel and drilling rigs, resulting in increased capital and operating costs.

Catastrophic events, whether naturally occurring or man-made, may materially affect our operations
and financial conditions. Our oil and gas operations are subject to unforeseen occurrences which have affected
us from time to time and which may damage or destroy assets, interrupt operations and have other significant
adverse effects. Examples of catastrophic risks include hurricanes, fires, explosions and blowouts, such as the
accident at the Macondo prospect operated by BP in the Gulf of Mexico. Although we maintain a level of insurance
coverage consistent with industry practices against property and casualty losses, there can be no assurance that such
insurance will adequately protect the Corporation against liability from all potential conseguences and damages.
Moreover, some forms of insurance may be unavailable in the future or be available only on terms that are deemed
economically unacceptable.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Corporation, along with many other companies engaged in refining and marketing of gasofine, has been a
party to lawsuits and claims related to the use of methy! tertiary butyl ether (MTBE} in gasoline. A series of similar
lawsuits, many involving water utilities or governmental entities, were filed in jurisdictions across the United States
against producers of MTBE and petroleum refiners who produced gasoline containing MTBE, including the
Corporation. The principal allegation in all cases is that gasoline containing MTBE is a defective product and that
these parties are strictly liable in proportion to their share of the gasoline market for damage to groundwater
resources and are required 1o take remedial action to ameliorate the alleged effects on the environment of releases of
MTBE. In 2008, the majority of the cases against the Corporation were settled. In 2010, additional cases were
settled, and three new cases were filed. The six unresolved cases consist of five cases that have been consolidated for
pre-trial purposes in the Southern District of New York as part of a multi-district litigation proceeding and an action
brought in state court by the State of New Hampshire. In 2007, a pre-tax charge of $40 million was recorded to cover
all of the known MTBE cases against the Corporation.

Over the last several years, many refiners have entered into consent agreements to resolve the United States
Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) assertions that refining facilities were modified or expanded without
complying with New Source Review regulations that require permils and new emission controls in certain
circumstances and other regulations that impose emissions control requirements. These consent agreements,
which arise out of an EPA enforcement initiative focusing on petroleum refiners and utilities, have typically
imposed substantial civil fines and penalties and required (i) significant capital expenditures to install emissions
control equipment over a three to eight year time period and (ii) changes to operations which resulted in increased
operating costs. The capital expenditures, penalties and supplemental environmental projects for individual
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refineries covered by the settlements can vary significantly, depending on the size and configuration of the refinery,
the circumstances of the alleged modifications and whether the refinery has previously installed more advanced
pollution controls. In January 2011, HOVENSA signed a Consent Decree with EPA to resolve its claims. Under the
terms of the Consent Decree, HOVENSA will pay a penalty of approximately $5 million and spend approximately
$700 million over the next 10 years to install equipment and implement additional operating procedures at the
HOVENSA refinery to reduce emissions. In addition, the Consent Decree requires HOVENSA to spend
approximately $5 million to fund an environmental project to be determined at a later date by the Virgin
Islands and $500,000 to assist the Virgin Islands Water and Power Authority with monitoring. The Consent
Decree has been lodged with the United States District Court for the Virgin Islands and approval is pending. In
addition, substantial progress has been made towards resolving this matter for the Port Reading refining facility,
which is not expected to have a material adverse impact on the Corporation’s financial position or results of
operations.

On September 13, 2007, HOVENSA received a Notice Of Violation (NOV) pursuant to section 113(a)(i) of the
Clean Air Act (Act) from the EPA finding that HOVENSA failed to obtain proper permitting for the construction
and operation of its delayed coking unit in accordance with applicable law and regulations. HOVENSA believes it
properly obtained all necessary permits for this project. The NOV states that the EPA has authority to issue an
administrative order assessing penalties for violation of the Act. This matter is resolved by the Consent Decree
discussed above, provided that the Consent Decree is entered by the court.

In December 2006, HOVENSA received a NOV from the EPA alleging non-compliance with emissions limits
in a permit issued by the Virgin Islands Department of Planning and Natural Resources (DPNR) for the two process
heaters in the delayed coking unit. The NOV was issued in response to a voluntary investigation and submission by
HOVENSA regarding potential non-compliance with the permit emissions limits for two pollutants. Any
exceedances were minor from the perspective of the amount of pollutants emitted in excess of the limits. This
matter is resolved by the Consent Decree discussed above, provided that the Consent Decree is entered by the court.

On December 16, 2010, the Virgin Islands Department of Planning and Natural Resources commenced four
separate enforcement actions against HOVENSA by issuance of documents titled “Notice Of Violation, Order For
Corrective Action, Notice Of Assessment Of Civil Penalty, Notice Of Opportunity For Hearing” (the “NOVs”). The
NOVs assert violations of Virgin Islands Air Pollution Control laws and regulations arising out of air release
incidents at the HOVENSA refinery in 2009 and 2010 and propose total penalties of $1,355,000. HOVENSA
intends to vigorously defend this matter.

The Corporation received a directive from the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (NJDEP)
to remediate contamination in the sediments of the lower Passaic River and NJDEP is also seeking natural resource
damages. The directive, insofar as it affects the Corporation, relates to alleged releases from a petroleum bulk
storage terminal in Newark, New Jersey now owned by the Corporation. The Corporation and over 70 companies
entered into an Administrative Order on Consent with the EPA to study the same contamination. NJDEP has also
sued several other companies linked to a facility considered by the State to be the largest contributor to river
contamination. In January 2009, these companies added third party defendants, including the Corporation, to that
case. In June 2007, the EPA issued a draft study which evaluated six alternatives for early action, with costs ranging
from $900 million to $2.3 billion. Based on adverse comments from the Corporation and others, the EPA is
reevaluating its alternatives. In addition, the federal trustees for natural resources have begun a separate assessment
of damages to natural resources in the Passaic River. Given the ongoing studies, remedial costs cannot be reliably
estimated at this time. Based on currently known facts and circumstances, the Corporation does not believe that this
matter will result in a material liability because its terminal could not have contributed contamination along most of
the river’s length and did not store or use contaminants which are of the greatest concern in the river sediments, and
because there are numerous other parties who will likely share in the cost of remediation and damages.

In Tuly 2004, Hess Qil Virgin Islands Corp. (HOVIC), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Corporation, and
HOVENSA, each received a letter from the Commissioner of the Virgin Islands Department of Planning and
Natural Resources and Natural Resources Trustees, advising of the Trustee’s intention to bring suit against HOVIC
and HOVENSA under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA).
The letter alleges that HOVIC and HOVENSA are potentially responsible for damages to natural resources arising
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from releases of hazardous substances from the HOVENSA Refinery, which had been operated by HOVIC until
October 1998. An action was filed on May 5, 2005 in the District Court of the Virgin Islands against HOVENSA,
HOVIC and other companies that operated industrial facilities on the south shore of St. Croix asserting that the
defendants are liable under CERCLA and territorial statutory and common law for damages to namral resources.
HOVIC and HOVENSA do not believe that this matter will result in a material liability as they believe that they have
strong defenses to this complaint, and they intend to vigorously defend this matter.

The Corporation periodically receives notices from EPA that it is a “potential responsible party” under the
Superfund legislation with respect to various waste disposal sites. Under this legislation, all potentially responsible
parties are jointly and severally liable. For certain sites, EPA’s claims or assertions of liability against the
Corporation relating to these sites have not been fully developed. With respect to the remaining sites, EPA’s
claims have been settled, or a proposed settlement is under consideration, in all cases for amounts that are not
material. The ultimate impact of these proceedings, and of any related proceedings by private parties, on the
business or accounts of the Corporation cannot be predicted at this time due to the large number of other potentially
responsible parties and the speculative nature of clean-up cost estimates, but is not expected to be material.

The Corporation is from time to time involved in other judicial and administrative proceedings, including
proceedings relating to other environmental matters. The Corporation cannot predict with certainty if, how or when
such proceedings will be resolved or what the eventual relief, if any, may be, particularly for proceedings that are in
their early stages of development or where plaintiffs seek indeterminate damages. Numerous issues may need to be
resolved, including through potentially lengthy discovery and determination of important factual matters before a
loss or range of loss can be reasonably estimated for any proceeding. Subject to the foregoing, in management’s
opinion, based upon currently known facts and circumstances, the outcome of such proceedings will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Corporation, although the outcome of such proceedings
could be material to the Corporation’s results of operations and cash flows for a particular period depending on,
among other things, the level of the Corporation’s net income for such period.
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PART 11
Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Stock, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities
Stock Market Information

The common stock of Hess Corporation is traded principally on the New York Stock Exchange (ticker symbol:
HES). High and low sales prices were as follows:

2010 2069
Quarter Ended Bigh_low  Wigh Low_
March 31. ... .. e $66.49 $55.89 $66.84 34928
June 30 . .. e e 66.22 48.70 69.74 49.72
September 30 ... ... . 59.79 48.71 57.83 46.33
December 31.. ... ... .. ... 76.98 59.23 62.18 51.41

Performance Graph

Set forth below is a line graph comparing the five-year shareholder return on a $100 investment in the
Corporation’s common stock assuming reinvestment of dividends, against the cumulative total returns for the
following indexes:

» Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index, which includes the Corporation, and

» AMEX Qil Index, which is comprised of companies involved in various phases of the oil industry including
the Corporation.

Comparison of Five-Year Sharcholder Returns
Years Ended December 31,

$o 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
=—{— Hess Corporation 100.00 118.00 242.00 12%.00 147.00 187.00
——dh—- S &P 500 100.00 116.00 122.00 77.00 $7.00 112.00
—-=-@-- Amex Oii Index 100.00 123.00 165.00 106.00 120.00 141.00

Holders

At December 31, 2010, there were 5,791 stockholders (based on number of holders of record) who owned a
total of 337,680,780 shares of common stock.

Dividends
Cash dividends on common stock totaled $0.40 per share ($0.10 per quarter) during 2010, 2009 and 2008.
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Eguity Compensation Plans
Following is information on the Registrant’s equity compensation plans at December 31, 2014(:

Number of
Securities
Remaining
Availahle for
Number of Future Issnance
Securities to Weighted Under Equity
be Issued Average Compensation
Upon Exercise  Exercise Price Plans
of Qutstanding  of Outstanding (Excluding
Options, Options, Securities
Warrants and ~ Warrants and Reflected in
Rights Rights Colummn (a)}
Plan Category (a) (b} (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by security
[ D 13,420,000  $55.73 11,507,000%
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders** .. ... ... . .. . . i — — —

¥ These securities may be awarded as stock options, restricted stock or ather awards permitted under the Registrant's equity compensation plan.
#* The Corporation has a Stock Award Program pursuant to which each non-employee direcior receives approximately $150,000 in value of the
Corporation’s common stock each year. These awards are made from shares purchased by the Corporation in the open market.

See Note 10, Share-Based Compensation, in the notes to the financial statements for further discussion of the

Corporation’s equity compensation plans.
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Item 6. Selected Financiel Data

A five-year summary of selected financial data follows®:

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(Millions of dollars, except per share amounts)

Sales and other operating revenues

Crude oil and natural gas liquids .............. $ 7235 $5665 $7764 $6303 $ 5307
Natural gas (including sales of purchased gas) . ... 5,723 5,894 8,800 6,877 6,826
Refined petroleum products .. ................ 16,103 12,931 19,765 14,741 13,339
Electricity .. ... ... 3,165 3,408 3451 2,322 1,072
Convenience store sales and other operating
TEVETIUES. « o vt v en vt v ees et e can et 1,636 1,716 1,354 1,484 1,632
Total ... e $33,862 $29,614 841,134  $31,727  $28,176
Net income attributable to Hess Corporation. . .. . ... $ 2,125(a) $ 740(b) § 2,360(c) $ 1,832(d) § 1,920(e)
Less: preferred stock dividends .............. ... — — — — 44
Net income applicable to Hess Corporation common
sharcholders. . . ... ... . ... ... L. oL, $2125 $§ 740 $ 2360 $ 1832 § 1876
Earnings per share
Basic......... . .o il $ 652 % 228 § 735 % 586 $ 675
Diluted ...... ... o $ 647 $ 227 § 724 8§ 574 § 608
Total assets . . ... ... ... ... i e, $35396  $29,465 528,589  $26,131 $22442
Totaldebt . ........ ... .. il 5,583 4,467 3,955 3,980 3,772
Total equity. . . ..o it e 16,809 13,528 12,391 10,000 8,376
Dividends per share of common stock ............ $ 40 $ 40 $ 40 $ 40 % 40

¥ Reflects the retrospective adoption of a new accounting standard for noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidiaries.

(a) Includes after-tax income of $1,130 million relating to gains on asset dispositions, partially gffset by charges totaling $694 million for an
asset impairment, an impairment of the Corporation’s equity investment in HOVENSA LL.C, dry hole expense and premiums on
repurchases of fixed-rate notes.

{b) Includes afier-tax expenses totaling 3104 million relating to repurchases of fixed-rate notes, retirement benefits, employee severance costs
and asset impairments, partially offset by after-tax income totaling $101 million principally relating to the resolution of a United States
royalty dispute.

(e} Includes after-tax expenses totaling $26 million primarily relating to asset impairments and hurricanes in the Gulf of Mexico.

(d} Includes net after-tax expenses of $75 million primarily relating to asset impairments, estimated production imbalance settlements and a
charge for MTBE litigation, partially offset by income from LIFO inventory liquidations and gains from asset sales.

(e) Includes net after-tax income of $173 million primarily from sales of assets, partially offset by income tax adjustments and accrued leased
affice closing costs.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Overview

The Corporation is a global integrated energy company that operates in two segments, Exploration and
Production (E&P) and Marketing and Refining (M&R). The E&P segment explores for, develops, produces,
" purchases, transports and sells crude oil and natural gas. The M&R segment manufactures refined petrolenm
products and purchases, markets and trades refined petroleum products, natural gas and electricity.

Net income in 2010 was $2,125 million compared with $740 million in 2009 and $2,360 million in 2008,
Diluted earnings per share were $6.47 in 2010 compared with $2.27 in 2009 and $7.24 in 2008. A table of items
affecting comparability between periods is shown on page 25.

Exploration and Production

The Corporation’s strategy for the E&P segment is to profitably grow reserves and production in a sustainable
and financially disciplined manner. The Corporation’s total proved reserves were 1,537 million barrels of oil
equivalent (boe) at December 31, 2010 compared with 1,437 million boe at December 31, 2009 and [,432 million
boe at December 31, 2008.

E&P earnings were $2,736 million in 2010, $1,042 million in 2009 and $2,423 million in 2008. Average
realized crude oil selling prices were $66.20 per barrel in 2010, $51.62 in 2009, and $82.04 in 2008, including the
impact of hedging. Production averaged 418,000 barrels of oil equivalent per day (boepd) in 2010, an increase of
10,000 boepd or 2.5% from 2009, Production averaged 408,000 boepd in 2009, an increase of 27,000 boepd or 7%
from 381,000 boepd in 2008. The Corporation estimates that total worldwide production will average between
415,000 and 425,000 boepd in 2011.

The following is an update of significant E&P activities during 2010:

+ In December, the Corporation acquired approximately 167,000 net acres in the Bakken oil shale play
(Bakken) in North Dakota for $1,075 million in cash from TRZ Energy, LLC. The Corporation also
completed the acquisition of American Qil & Gas Inc. (American Oil & Gas) through the issuance of
approximately 8.6 million shares of the Corporation’s stock, which further increased its acreage position in
the Bakken by approximately 85,000 net acres. After these acquisitions, the Corporation holds more than
900,000 net acres in the Bakken. The properties acquired are located near the Corporation’s existing acreage.

In September, the Corporation completed the exchange of its interests in Gabon and the Clair Field in the
United Kingdom for additional interests in the Valhall and Hod fields of 28% and 25%, respectively. This
non-monetary exchange, which was recorded at fair value, resulied in a pre-tax gain of $1,150 million
(31,072 million after income taxes). The Corporation also completed the acquisition of an additional 8%
interest in the Valhall Field and 13% interest in the Hod Field for $507 million in cash. As a result of these
transactions, the Corporation’s interests in the Valhall and Hod fields increased to 64% and 63%,
respectively.

In the fourth quarter, the Corporation completed the acquisition of an additionat 20% interest in the Tubular
Bells oil and gas field in the Gulf of Mexico for approximately $40 million. The Corporation now has a 40%
working interest and is operator of the field.

» In January, the Corporation completed the sale of its interest in the Jambi Merang natural gas development
project in Indonesia (Hess 25%) for cash proceeds of $183 million. The transaction resulted in a gain of
$58 million,

+ In March, the Corporation agreed to the sale of its interests in a package of natural gas production and
transportation assets in the United Kingdom North Sea. The package includes the Corporation’s interests in
the Easington Catchment Area (Hess 30%), the Bacton Arca (Hess 23%), the Everest Field (Hess 19%), the
Lomond Field (Hess 17%) and the Central Area Transmission System (CATS) pipeline (Hess 18%). In
February 2011, the Corporation completed the sale of the producing assets for approximately $350 million,
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after closing adjustments. The sale of the Corporation’s interest in the CATS pipeline is expected to close in
the second quarter of 2011.

In September, the Corporation recorded an impairment charge and dry hole expense totaling $554 million
before income taxes ($347 million after income taxes) to reduce the carrying value of unproved property and
suspended well costs relating to its 533% interest in the West Mediterranean Block 1 Concession (West Med
Block), located offshore Egypt,

In the Carnarvon basin offshore Western Australia, the Corporation drilled 4 exploration wells in 2010 on
WA-390-P Block (Hess 100%). The Corporation has drilled all 16 commitment wells on the block, 13 of
which were natural gas discoveries. In the fourth quarter of 2010, the Corporation commenced an appraisal
program that includes further drilling and flow testing certain wells.

* On the Pony project in Green Canyon Block 468 (Hess 100%) in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico, the
Corporation has signed a non-binding agreement in principle with the owners on the adjacent Green Canyon
Block 512 that outlines a proposal to jointly develop the Pony and Knotty Head fields. The Corporation also
spud and subsequently suspended an appraisal well on the Pony prospect in 2010. The Corporation is
planning to resume drilling of the Pony appraisal well in 2011 contingent upon receipt of necessary drilling
permits.

+ In November, the third exploration well was spud on Block BM-S-22 (Hess 40%) offshore Brazil which
encountered noncommercial quantities of hydrocarbons. As aresult, dry hole expenses totaling $111 million
($72 million after-tax) were recorded relating to this well and the previously suspended Azuldo well, which
was drilled in 2009.

Gulf of Mexico Update: 1In April 2010, an accident occurred on the Transocean Deepwater Horizon drilling
rig at the BP p.l.c. (BP) operated Macondo prospect in the Gulf of Mexico, resulting in loss of life, the sinking of the
rig and a significant crude oil spill. The Corporation was not a participant in the well. As a result of the accident, a
temporary drilling moratorium was imposed in the Gulf of Mexico. In October 2010, the drilling moratorium was
lifted by the United States Department of the Interior’s Bureau of Ocean Energy Management, Regulation and
Enforcement (BOEMRE) provided operators complied with all rules and requirements, including a series of new
drilling and safety rules issued by BOEMRE, The Corporaticn is currently evaloating the impact of these new
requirements on its activities in the Gulf of Mexico, as well as seeking approvals for plans and permits submitted in
connection with planned activities. However, the new regulatory environment is expected to result in a longer
permitting process and higher costs.

The moratorium impacted development drilling at the Shenzi Field, in which the Corporation has a 28%
interest. A production well that was being drilled was suspended and the drilling of a second production well that
was planned for 2010 was postponed. The Corporation estimates that these delays reduced 2010 production by
approximately 2,000 boepd and will likely reduce 2011 production by approximately 4,000 boepd. In 2010, the
Corporation’s only operated drilling rig in the Gulf of Mexico, the Stena Forth, left the Pony project on Green
Canyon 469 as part of a preexisting agreement for a one well farm-out of the rig to another operator.

In January 2011, the BOEMRE announced that supplementary environmental reviews will not be required of
13 companies to resume work on the 16 wells that were in progress when the moratorium took effect, including the
aforementioned suspended Shenzi and Pony wells. However, these projects must comply with the new safety rules
and regulations before work can resume. As a result, the Corporation does not anticipate that it will be able to re-
commence these operations before the second half of 2011.

Additionally, the Corporation has filed Suspension of Operations (S0OO) applications with the BOEMRE for
several exploration block licenses in the Gulf of Mexico that are due to expire in 2011 and may file additional
applications as deemed necessary. These SOQ applications seek approval for extension of the lease expiration terms
due to circumstances outside the control of the Corporation that have delayed activities required to hold the licenses.
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Marketing and Refining

The Corporation’s strategy for the M&R segment is to deliver consistent operating performance and generate
free cash flow. M&R earnings (losses) were $(231) million in 2010, $127 million in 2009 and $277 million in 2008.
Refining operations generated losses of $445 million in 2010 and $87 million in 2009 and income of $73 million in
2008. Refining results for 2010 include an after-tax impairment charge of $289 million ($300 million pre-tax) to
reduce the carrying value of the Corporation’s investment in HOVENSA 1L L.C. to the estimated fair value. The
refining results in 2010 and 2009 also reflect weak refining margins and lower volumes. Marketing earnings were
$215 million in 2010, $168 million in 2009 and $240 million in 2008,

Liquidity and Capital and Exploratory Expenditures

Net cash provided by operating activities was $4,530 million in 2010, $3,046 million in 2009 and
$4,688 million in 2008, principally reflecting fluctnations in earnings. At December 31, 2010, cash and cash
equivalents totaled $1,608 million compared with $1,362 million at December 31, 2009, Total debt was
$5,583 mallion at December 31, 2010 compared with $4,467 million at December 31, 2009, In August 2010,
the Corporation issued $1,250 million of 30 year fixed-rate notes with a coupon of 5.6% that are scheduled to
matare in 2041. The proceeds were used for the acquisition of additional acreage in the Bakken and additional
interests in the Valhall and Hed fields. In January 2010, the Corporation completed the repurchase of the remaining
$116 million of notes that were scheduled to mature in 2011. The Corporation’s debt to capitalization ratio at
December 31, 2010 was 24.9% compared with 24.8% at the end of 2009,

Capital and exploratory expenditures were as follows for the years ended December 31:

2010 2009
(Millions of dollars)
Exploration and Production

United StALES . . ..ot ittt ettt e e e $2,935 $1.200
Intemational . . . ..t e e e e e 2,822 1,927
Total Exploration and Production. .. .. ... ... ... .. .., . .. . ... ...... 5,757 3,127
Marketing, Refining and Corporate .. ...... ... ... ... ... ... ...... e 98 118
Total capital and exploratory expenditures . . .. ... ....... ... . ... .. ..., $5,855 $3,245

Exploration expenses charged to income included above:
United States . ... i vttt e e e i $ 154 § 144
Intermational . . .. .. ... e e e e 209 183
Total exploration expenses charged to income included above ... .......... $ 363 § 327

The Corporation anticipates investing $3.6 billion in capital and exploratory expenditures in 2011,
substantially all of which relates to E&P operations,

Consolidated Results of Operations

The after-tax results by major operating activity are summarized below:
2010 2009 2008

(Millions of dollars,
except per share data)

Exploration and Production . . .......... ... . .o . il $2,736  $1,042  $2,423
Marketing and Refining. . ......... ... .. . oo i, (23D 127 277
COrporate . . . ... e e e 159) (205) (173)
Interest @XPEMSE ... vttt i e e e (221) (224) (167)
Net income attributable to Hess Corporation ... ................. $2,125 § 740 $2,360
Net income per share —diluted. . . .. ... ... .. .. .. ... ... ... $ 647 $227 $ 724
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The following table summarizes, on an after-tax basis, iterns of income (expense) that are included in net income
and affect comparability between periods. The items in the table below are explained on pages 28 through 31,

2010 2009 2008
{Millions of dollars)
Exploration and Production . . . .. .. ... . .. .. . . e, $ 732 % 45 % (26)
Marketing and Refining. . . ... ... ... i (289) 12 —
L0/0) ¢ s c:1 1 OO (7) (60} —

$ 436 3 (3 § (26

In the discussion that follows, the financial effects of certain transactions are disclosed on an after-tax basis.
Management reviews segment earnings on an after-tax basis and uses after-tax amounts in its review of variances in
segment earnings. Management believes that after-tax amounts are a preferable method of explaining variances in
earnings, since they show the entire effect of a transaction rather than only the pre-tax amount. After-tax amounts
are determined by applying the income tax rate in each tax jurisdiction to pre-tax amounts.

Comparison of Results
Exploration and Production
Following is a sumimarized income statement of the Corporation’s E&P operations;

2010 2009 2008
(Millions of dollars)
Sales and other operating revenues®. . .. ..... ... .. ... ... .. .. ... $8,744 $6,835 $9.806
Other, BEt . . ..o e e 1,233 207 {167)
Total revenues and non operating incoImne . . ... .............. 9977 7,042 9,639
Costs and expenses
Production expenses, including related taxes. . . ................ 1,924 1,805 1,872
Exploration expenses, including dry holes and lease impairment . . . . 8§65 829 725
General, administrative and other expenses. .. ... .............. 281 255 302
Depreciation, depletion and amortization .. ...... ... ......... 2,222 2,113 1,922
ASSELITPairments . .. . . ... .. 532 54 30
Total costs and expenses . .......... ...t ... 5,824 5,056 4,851
Results of operations before income taxes . ..................... 4,153 1,986 4,788
Provision forincome taxes .. ... ... ... i e 1,417 944 2,365
Results of operations attributable to Hess Corporation ............. $2,736 $1,042 $2423

* Amounts differ from E&P operating revenues in Note 18, Segment Information, primarily due to the exclusion of sales of hydrocarbons
purchased from third pariies.

After considering the E&P items in the table on page 28, the remaining changes in E&P earnings are primartly
attributable to changes in selling prices, production and sales volumes, operating costs, exploration expenses,
foreign exchange, and income taxes, as discussed below.

Selling prices: Higher average selling prices increased E&P revenues by approximately $1,775 million in
2010 compared with 2009. Lower average selling prices reduced E&P revenues by approximately $4.000 million in
2009 compared with 2008.
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The Corporation’s average selling prices were as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Crude oil-per barrel (including hedging)
United States. . .. .. ..o e e e $75.02 $60.67 $96.82
BUrOpe . . .o e e, 58.11 47.02 78.75
F N o T P 65.02 4891 78.72
N T 79.23 63.01 97.07
Worldwide. .. . .. ... e 66.20 51.62 82.04
Crude oil-per barrel (excluding hedging)
United StateS. . ..ottt et e e $75.02  $60.67  $96.82
BUrope . . .. e e 58.11 47.02 78.75
AfTCA . L e e 78.31 60.79 93.57
N - 79.23 63.01 97.07
Worldwide. ... ... e 71.40 56.74 89.23
Natural gas liquids-per barrel
United STateS. . .ottt i e e $47.92  $36.57 $64.98
BUPOPE . . i e e e 59,23 43.23 74.63
AR . L e 63.50 46.48 —_
Worldwide. . ... ... e 50.49 38.47 67.61
Natuoral gas-per mef (including hedging)
United States. . . ... ..o in i e e $370 8336 $ 86l
B0 . ot i e e e e e e e 6.23 5.15 9.44
Asiaandother. . ... . ... ... L 5.93 5.06 5.24
Worldwide. . . ... . e e 5.63 4.85 7.17
Natural gas-per mcf (excluding hedging)
United States. . ... ..ot e $370 $336 $ 861
BUrope ... e e 6.23 515 9.79
Asinand other. . .. ... ... . i e e 593 5.06 5.24
Worldwide. . . ... ... e 5.63 4.85 7.30

In October 2008, the Corporation closed its Brent crude oil hedges, covering 24,000 barrels per day from 2009
though 2012, by entering into offsetting contracts with the same counterparty. The deferred after-tax loss as of the
date the hedge positions were closed will be recorded in earnings as the contracts mature. The estimated annual
after-tax loss from the closed positions will be approximately $330 million in 2011 and 2012. Crude oil hedges
reduced E&P earnings by $338 million ($533 million before income taxes) in 2010 and $337 million ($533 miltion
before income taxes) in 2009. Crude oil and natural gas hedges reduced E&P earnings by $423 million
($685 million before income taxes) in 2008,

Production and sales volumes: The Corporation’s crude oil and natural gas production was 418,000 boepd
in 2010 compared with 408,000 boepd in 2009 and 381,000 boepd in 2008. Approximately 73% in 2010, 72% in
2009 and 70% in 2008 of the Corporation’s production was from crude oil and natural gas liquids. The Corporation
currently estimates that its 2011 production will average between 415,000 and 425,000 boepd, after a reduction of
approximately 4,000 boepd due to drilling delays at the Shenzi Field in the Gulf of Mexico as well as the effect of
the sale in February 2011 of natural gas producing assets in the United Kingdom North Sea.
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The Corporation’s net daily worldwide production was as follows:
2010 2009 2008

(In lhmands)
Crude oil (barrels per day)
L= B 7 O 75 60 32
BUEODE. . . oot ittt e e e 88 83 83
AfTICa . L e e e e e e 113 120 124
T 13 16 13
Total . ... e 289 279 252
Natural gas liquids (barrels per day)
United Stales . - . ... .. e e e 14 11 10
Y 07 o~ 3 3 4
3 T 1 = =
Total ... 18 14 14
Natural gas (mef per day)
United States . . . ... ... e e e 108 93 78
BUrO . . . it e e 134 151 255
Asiaandother. . ..... .. ... .o e 427 446 356
8+ 669 690 689
Barrels of oil equivalent* (barrels perday). . .......... .. ... ..ot 418 408 381

* Reflects natural gas production converted on the basis of relative energy content (six mcf equals one barrel). Barrel of oil equivalence does not
necessarily result in price equivalence as the equivalent price of natural gas on a barrel of oil equivalent busis has been subssantially lower
than the corresponding price for crude il over the recent past. See the average selling prices in the table above.

United States: Crude oil and natural gas production in the United States was higher in 2010 compared with
2009, primarily due to production from the Shenzi, Llano, Conger and Bakken fields. Crude cil and natural gas
production was higher in 2009 compared with 2008, primarily due to new production from the Shenzi Field and
production resuming after the 2008 hurricanes. Hurricane impacts reduced full year 2008 production by an
estimated 7,000 boepd.

Europe: Crude oil production was higher in 2010 compared with 2009, due to higher production in Russia
and an increase in Norway following the acquisition of additional interests in the Valhall and Hod fields, partially
offset by lower production in the United Kingdom North Sea following the exchange of Clair for additional Norway
interests. Crude oil production was comparable in 2009 and 2008, as higher production in Russia offset lower
production in the United Kingdom North Sea. Natural gas production was lower in 2010 compared with 2009,
primarily due to downtime at certain United Kingdom gas fields. Natural gas production was lower in 2009
compared with 2008, primarily due to decline and subsequent cessation of production at the Atlantic and Cromarty
fields.

Africa: Crude oil production decreased in 2010 compared with 2009 following the exchange of Gabon for
additional interests in the Valhall and Hod fields in Norway in the third quarter and lower entitlement to Algerian
production. Crude oil production decreased in 2009 compared with 2008, primarily due to lower production from
the Ceiba Field.

Asia and other: Natural gas production in 2010 was lower than in 2009, primarily due to downtime at the
Pangkah Field and a temporary shut-in at the Bumi Field in the Joint Development Area of Malaysia/Thailand
{JDA). Natural gas production in 2009 was higher than in 2008, primarily due to a full year of Phase 2 sales from
JDA. The decrease in crude oil production in 2010 from 2009 principally reflects changes to the Corporation’s
entitlement to production in Azerbaijan.
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Sales volumes: Higher sales volumes and other operating revenues increased revenue by approximately
$133 million in 2010 compared with 2009 and $1,030 million in 2009 compared with 2008.

Operating costs and depreciation, depletion and amortization:  Cash operating costs, consisting of
production expenses and general and administrative expenses, increased by $145 million in 2010 compared
with 2009 and decreased by $114 million in 2009 compared with 2008. The increase in 2010 compared with 2009
was primarily due to higher producticon taxes as a result of higher selling prices. The decrease in 2009 compared
with 2008 was primarily due to lower production taxes (due to lower realized selling prices), the cessation of
production at several United Kingdom North Sea fields, the favorable impact of foreign exchange rates and cost
savings initiatives, partially offset by the impact of higher production volumes.

Depreciation, depletion and amortization charges increased by $109 million in 2010 and $191 miltion in 2009,
compared with the corresponding amounts in prior years. The increases in both 2010 and 2009 were primarily due to
higher production volumes and per barrel costs, reflecting higher finding and development costs.

Excluding items affecting comparability between periods, cash operating costs per barrel of oil equivalent
were $14.45 in 2010, $13.70 in 2009 and $15.49 in 2008. Cash operating costs in 2011 are estimated to be in the
range of $15.00 to $16.00 per barrel of oil equivalent. Depreciation, depletion and amortization costs per basre] of
oil equivalent were $14.56 in 2010, $14.19 in 2009 and $13.79 in 2008. Depreciation, depletion and amortization
costs for 2011 are estimated to be in the range of $14.50 to $15.50 per barrel of oil equivalent.

Effective December 31, 2009, the Securitics and Exchange Commission (SEC) issued updated standards for
oil and gas reserve estimation and disclosure. The new rules allow, among other changes, the use of penmitted
technology in determining oil and gas reserve estimates. Since it was not practical to calculate reserve estimates
under both the old and the new reserve estimation standards, it was not possible to precisely measure the effect of
adopting the new SEC requirements on total proved reserves at December 31, 2009. However, the Corporation
estimates that applying the new rules increased income during 2010 by approximately $80 million, after income
taxes, due to lower depreciation, depletion and amortization expense.

Exploration expenses: Exploration expenses increased in 2010 from 2009, primarily due to higher lease
amortization. Exploration expenses-increased in 2009 compared to 2008, mainly due to higher dry hole costs and
lease amortization.

Income taxes: Excluding the impact of items affecting comparability, the effective income tax rates for E&P
operations were 44% in 2010, 48% in 2009 and 49% in 2008. The effective income tax rate for E&P operations in
2011 is estimated to be in the range of 45% to 49%.

Foreign Exchange: The afier-tax foreign currency losses were $9 million in 2010, $10 million in 200% and
$80 million in 2008. The foreign currency loss in 2008 reflects the net effect of significant exchange rate
movements in the fourth quarter of 2008 on the remeasurement of assets, liabilities and foreign currency forward
contracts by certain foreign businesses.

Reported E&P earnings include the following items affecting comparability of income (expense) before and
after income taxes:

Before Income Taxes After Income Taxes
2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 08
(Millions of doBars)
Gainsonassetsales ................... $1208 $ — $— %1130 $ — 5 —
Royalty dispute resolution. . .. ........... —_ 143 — — 89 —
Agsetimpairments . ............... ..., (532) (54) 30) 334) (26) (17}
Dryholeexpense .. ..........0ovvuuin, {101) — — (64) — —
Reductions in carrying values of assets . . . . . — (23) — — (18) —
Hurmicane related costs . ... ............. — — (15) — — (9

$ 575 $66 $(45 $ T2 5 45 $(26)
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2010:  The Corporation completed the exchange of its interests in Gabon and the Clair Field in the
United Kingdom for additional interests of 28% and 25%, respectively, in the Valhall and Hod fields in Norway.
This non-monetary transaction, which was recorded at fair value, resulted in a pre-tax gain of $1,150 million
{31,072 million after income taxes). The Corporation also completed the sale of its interest in the Jambi Merang
natural gas development project in Indonesia for a gain of $58 million.

The Corporation recorded a charge of $532 million ($334 million after income taxes) to fully impair the
carrying value of its 55% interest in the West Med Block, located offshore Egypt. This interest was acquired in 2006
and included four natural gas discoveries and additional exploration prospects. The Corporation and its partners
subsequently explored and further evaluated the area, made a fifth discovery, conducted development planning, and
held negotiations with the Egyptian authorities to amend the existing gas sales agreement. In September 2010, the
Corporation and its partners notified the Egyptian authorities of their decision to cease exploration activities and to
relinquish a significant portion of the block. As a result, the Corporation fully impaired the carrying value of its
interests in the West Med Block.

The Corporation recorded $101 million ($64 million after income taxes) of dry hole expenses related to
previously suspended well costs on the West Med Block offshore Egypt and Block BM-S-22 offshore Brazil, both of
which were drilled prior to 2010.

2009: The U.S. Supreme Court decided it would not review the decision of the 5th Circuit Court of Appeals
against the U.S. Minerals Management Service (predecessor to the Bureauw of Ocean Energy Management,
Regulation and Enforcement) relating to royaity relief under the Deep Water Royalty Relief Act of 1995. As a
result, the Corporation recognized after-tax income of $89 million to reverse all previously recorded royalties
covering the periods from 2003 to 2009. The pre-tax amount of $143 million was reported in Other, net in the
Statement of Consolidated [ncome.

The Corporation recorded total asset impairment charges of $54 million ($26 million after income taxes) to
reduce the carrying value of two-short lived fields in the United Kingdom North Sea.

Pre-tax charges of approximately $25 million ($18 million after income taxes) were recorded to impair the
carrying values of production equipment and to write down materials inventories in Equatorial Guinea and the
United States. The pre-tax amount of most of the inventory write downs was reported in Production expenses in the
Statement of Consolidated Income.

2008: Pre-tax charges of $30 million ($17 million after income taxes) were recorded to impair the carrying
values of mature fields in the United States and the United Kingdom North Sea.

Pre-tax charges of $13 million ($9 million after income taxes) were recorded to expense costs associated with
Hurricanes Gustay and Ike in the Gulf of Mexico. The pre-tax amount of the charges totaling $15 million were
reported in Production expenses in the Statement of Consolidated Income,

The Corporation’s future E&P earnings may be impacted by external factors, such as volatility in the selling
prices of crude oil and natural gas, reserve and production changes, exploration expenses, industry cost inflation,
changes in foreign exchange rates and income tax rates, the effects of weather, political risk, environmental risk and
catastrophic risk. In addition, as a result of the oil spill in 2010 at the BP operated Macondo prospect in the Gulf of
Mexico, there have been and there may be further changes in laws and regulations that could impact the
Corporation’s future drilling operations and increase its potential liability in the event of an oil spill. For a
more comprehensive description of the risks that may affect the Corporation’s E&P business, see Item 1A. Risk
Factors Related to Our Business and Operations.

Marketing and Refining

Earnings (losses) from M&R activities amounted to $(231) million in 2010, $127 million in 2009 and
$277 million in 2008. Excluding the items affecting comparability reflected in the table on page 25 and discussed
below, the earnings were $58 million, $115 million and $277 million, respectively.
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Refining: Refining earnings (losses), which consist of the Corporation’s share of HOVENSA's results, Port
Reading earnings and results of other miscellaneous operating activities, were $(445) million in 2010 (including the
$289 million after-tax impairment charge discussed below), $(87) million in 2009 (including a benefit of
$12 million due to an income tax adjustment) and $73 million in 2008,

In December 2010, the Corporation recorded an impairment charge of $300 million before income taxes
($289 million after income taxes) to reduce the carrying value of its equity investment in HOVENSA, which was
recorded in Income (loss) from equity investment in HOVENSA L.L.C. The investment had been adversely affected
by consecutive annual operating losses resulting from continued weak refining margins and refinery utilization, and
a fourth quarter 2010 debt rating downgrade. As a result of a strategic assessment in 2010, HOVENSA decided to
lower crude oil refining capacity from 300,000 to 350,000 barrels per day. The Corporation performed an
impairment analysis and concluded that its investment had experienced an other than temporary decline in
value. For discussion of the impairment charge, see Note 4, Refining Joint Venture in the notes to the financial
statements on page 59. As a result of cumulative net operating losses in the Jast two years, the Corporation is not
recognizing a full income tax benefit on the impairment charge.

The Corporation’s share of HOVENSA’s results was a loss of $138 million in 2010 ($222 million before
income taxes) excluding the impairment charge, a loss of $142 million ($229 million before income taxes) in 2009,
and income of $27 million ($44 million before income taxes) in 2008. These results reflect lower refining margins
and lower sales volumes. The 2010 and 2009 utilization rates for HOVENSA reflect weaker refining margins and
planned and unplanned maintenance. The 2008 utilization rates also reflect a refinery wide shut down for Hurricane
Omar. During 2010, the fluid catalytic cracking unit at HOVENSA was shut down for a scheduled turnaround. The
Corporation’s share of HOVENSA’s turnaround expenses was approximately $20 million after income taxes.

Other after-tax refining results, principally from Port Reading operations, were a loss of $18 million in 2010
and income of $43 million in both 2009 and 2008. During 2010, the Port Reading refining facility was shutdown for
41 days for a scheduled turnaround. The after-tax expenses for the Port Reading tumaround were approximately
$30 million. The turnaround expenses are included in Other operating expenses, in the Statement of Consolidated
Income.

The following table summarizes refinery utilization rates:

Refinery Refinery Utilization
Capacity 2010 2009 2008
(Thousands of
barrels per day)
HOVENSA
Crude. .. ... e 500 78.0% 80.3% 828.2%
Fluid catalytic cracker ........................... 150 66.5% 70.2% 72.7%
Coker. ... e 58 783% 81.6% 92.4%
PortReading . ........... ... it 70 781% 90.2% 90.7%

In January 2011, HOVENSA announced plans to shut down certain older and smaller processing units on the
west side of its refinery, which will reduce the refinery’s crude oil distillation capacity from 500,000 to
350,000 barrels per day, with no impact on the capacity of its coker or FCC unit. This reconfiguration, which
is expected to be completed in the first quarter of 2011, is being undertaken to improve efficiency, reliability and
competitiveness.

Marketing: Marketing operations, which consist principally of retail gasoline and energy marketing
activities, generated income of $213 million in 2010, $168 million in 2009 and $240 million in 2008. The
increase in earnings in 2010 compared with 2009 reflects improved margins from the weak economic environment
in 2009,
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The table below summarizes marketing sales volumes:
2010 200% 2008

Refined product sales (thousands of barrels perday) ................. 471 473 472
Natural gas (thousands of mefperday) . ... ... oo o oo i L. 2016 2,010 1,955
Electricity (megawatts round the clock). .. ... . oo it 4,140 4306 3,152

The Corporation has a 50% voting interest in a consolidated partnership that trades energy commodities and
energy derivatives. The Corporation also takes trading positions for its own account. The Corporation’s after-tax
results from trading activities, including its share of the results of the trading partnership, amounted to a loss of
$1 million in 2010, earnings of $46 million in 2002 and a loss of $36 million in 2008.

Marketing expenses increased in 2010 compared with 2009 and decreased in 2009 as compared with 2008,
principally reflecting changes in retail credit card fees.

The Corporation’s future M&R earnings may be impacted by supply and demand factors, volatility in margins,
credit risks, the effects of weather, competitive industry conditions, political risk, environmental risk and
catastrophic risk. For a more comprehensive description of the risks that may affect the Corporation’s M&R
business, see Item 1A. Risk Factors Related to Our Business and Operations.

Corporate

The following table summarizes corporate expenses:
2010 2009 2008

(Millions of doltars)
Corporate expenses (excluding items affecting comparability) ... ........ $ 256 $227  $260
Income taxes (benefits) . ... .. civ it it i e e s (104) (82) (87)
Net COTPOIAE EXPEISES . « o v v v vt n s e eem e e er et anereennenns 152 145 173
Items affecting comparability between periods, after-tax .. ............. 7 60 —
Total corporate expenses, after-taX .. ... ...veueriannenrennenan. $159 5205 $173

Excluding items affecting comparability between periods, the increase in corporate expenses in 2010
compared with 2009 primarily reflects higher employee and insurance costs, and bank facility fees. The
decrease in corporate expenses in 2009 compared with 2008 primarily reflects gains on supplemental pension
related investments and lower employee and professional costs. After-tax corporate expenses in 2011 are estimated
to be in the range of $165 to $175 million.

Tn 2009, the Corporation recorded pre-tax charges of $54 million ($34 million after income taxes) related to the
repurchase of $546 million in fixed-rate notes that were scheduled to mature in 2011 and $42 million ($26 million
after income taxes) relating to retirement benefits and employee severance costs. In 2010, the Corporation recorded
a pre-tax charge of $11 million ($7 million after income taxes) related to the repurchase of the remaining
$116 million of notes that were scheduled to mature in 2011, The pre-tax charges in connection with the debt
repurchases were recorded in Other, net, and the pre-tax amounts of the retirement benefits and severance costs
were recorded in General and administrative expenses within the Statement of Consolidated Income.
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Interest

Interest expense was as follows:

2010 2000 2008
{Millions of dollars)

Total interest incurred . .. ... ... .. ... e $366 %366 § 274
Less capitalized interest . . . ... .. ...ttt e e 5 6 7
Interest expense before income taxes ... ...... ..ot nnn 361 360 267
Less INCOME TAXES . ..o v ot s e i enr ce i maa s naaneeeansenn 140 136 100
After-tax interest eXpPense . . . . . ... oo e $221 $224 $ 167

Interest expense was comparable in 2010 and 2009. The increase in interest expense in 2009 compared to 2008
primarily reflects higher debt and fees for letters of credit. After-tax interest expense in 2011 is expected to be in the
range of $240 to $250 million.

Sales and Other Operaling Revenues

Sales and other operating revenues totaled $33,862 million in 2010, $29,614 million in 2009 and
$41,134 million in 2008, In 2010, sales and other operating revenues increased by 14% compared with 2009,
In 2009, sales and other operating revenues decreased by 28% compared with 2008. The fluctuations in each year
primarily reflect changes in crude oil and refined product selling prices.

The change in cost of goods sold in each year principally reflects the change in sales volumes and purchase
prices of refined products, natural gas and electricity.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following table sets forth certain relevant measures of the Corporation’s liquidity and capital resources as
of December 31:

2010 2009

(Millions of dollars)
Cash and cash equivalents. . . ... ...t on it ci i $ 1,608 § 1,362
Short-term debt and current maturities of long-term debt , . ... .........,.. $ 46 § 148
Total debt. . . .. oo oo e $ 5583 § 4467
Total equity . .. ..o e $16,809 $13,528
Debt to capitalization Tatio™ .. ... ... . ... . e 24.9% 24.8%

* Total debt as a percentage of the sum of total debr plus equiry.

Cash Flows

The following table sets forth a summary of the Corporation’s cash flows:

2010 2009 2008
(Millions of dolars)

Net cash provided by (used in):

Operaling activities . . ... .. .ottt et $4530 $3046 $4,688
Investing activities. . ... v ot ittt it (5,259 (2929) (4,444
Financing activities . . ... .. o e it e i e 975 332 57
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents. . ... _............... $ 246 $ 454 % 301
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Operating Activities: Net cash provided by operating activities, including changes in operating assets and
liabilities, was $4,530 million in 2010 compared with $3,046 million in 2009, reflecting higher earnings. Operating
cash flow decreased to $3,046 million in 2009 from $4,688 million in 2008 reflecting lower earnings.

Investing Activities: The following table summarizes the Corporation’s capital expenditures:

2010 2009 2008
(Millions of dollars)

Exploration and Production

EXploration . ., ..ottt e e $ 552 § 611 $ 744
"Production and development .. ..... ... .. ... . . e, 2,592 1,927 2,523
Acquisitions (including leaseholds) . ......... .. ... ... .. .. 2,250 262 984
5,394 2,800 4,251

Marketing, Refining and Corporate .. .. .................... ... 98 118 187
L $5,492 $2,918 $4.438

Capital expenditares in 2010 include acquisitions of 167,000 net acres in the Bakken oil shale play in North
Dakota from TRZ Energy, LLC for $1,075 million in cash and additional interests of 8% and 13% in the Valhall and
Hod fields, respectively, for $307 million in cash,

Capital expenditures in 2009 include acquisitions of $188 million for unproved leaseholds and $74 million for
a 50% interest in blocks PM301 and PM302 in Malaysia, which are adjacent to Block A-18 of the JDA. Capital
expenditures in 2008 include $600 million for leasehold acquisitions in the United States and $210 million for the
acquisition of the remaining 22.5% interest in the Corporation’s Gabonese subsidiary. In 2008, the Corporation also
selectively expanded its energy marketing business by acquiring fuel oil, natural gas, and electricity customer
accounts, and a terminal and related assets, for an aggregate of approximately $100 million,

Financing Activities: During 2010, net proceeds from borrowings were $1,098 million. In August 2010, the
Corporation issued $1,250 million of 30 year fixed-rate notes with a coupon of 5.6% scheduled to mature in 2041.
The proceeds were used to purchase additional acreage in the Bakken and additional interests in the Valhall and Hod
fields. In Tanuary 2010, the Corporation completed the repurchase of the remaining $116 million of notes that were
scheduled to mature in 201 1. During 2009, net proceeds from borrowings were $447 million, compared with net
repayments of debt of $32 million in 2008.

Total common stock dividends paid were $131 million in 2010 and 2009 and $130 million in 2008. The
Corporation received net proceeds from the exercise of stock options, including related income tax benefits of
$54 million, $18 million and $340 million in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Future Capital Reguirements and Resources

The Corporation anticipates investing a total of approximately $5.6 billion in capital and exploratory
expenditures during 201 1, substantially all of which is targeted for E&P operations. In the Corporation’s M&R
operations, refining margins continue to be weak, which have adversely affected HOVENSA's liquidity position.
The Corperation intends to provide its share of financial support for HOVENSA. The Corporation expects to fund
its 2011 operations, including capital expenditures, dividends, pension contributions, required debt repayments and
financial support for HOVENSA, with existing cash on-hand, cash flow from operations, proceeds from the sale of
United Kingdom natural gas assets and its available credit facilities. Crude oil prices, natural gas prices and refining
margins are volatile and difficult to predict. In addition, unplanned increases in the Corporation’s capital
expenditure program could occur. If conditions were to change, such as a significant decrease in commodity
prices or an unexpected increase in capital expenditures, the Corporation would take steps to protect its financial
flexibility and may pursue other sources of liquidity, including the issuance of debt securities, the issuance of equity
securities, and/or asset sales.
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The table below summarizes the capacity, usage, and available capacity of the Corporation’s borrowing and
letter of credit facilities at December 31, 2010:

Expiration Letters of Available
Date Capacity Borrowings Credit Issued  Total Used Capacity

(Millions of dollars)

Revolving credit

facihity . ......... May 2012(2) $ 3,000 § — — 3% — 3% 3,000
Asset-backed credit

facility . . ........ July 2011(h) 530 — 400 400 130
Committed lines. . . .. Various(c) 2,925 — 1,161 1,161 1,764
Uncommitted lines . .. Various(c) 521 — 521 521 —
Total . ............ $ 6,976 % — % 2,082 % 2,082 % 4,894

{a) 373 nullion expires in May 2011,
{b) Total capacity of 1.0 billion subject 1o the amount of eligible receivables posted as colluteral.
(c}) Committed and uncommitted lines have expiration dates through 2013.

The Corporation has a $3 billion syndicated revolving credit facility (the facility), which can be used for
borrowings and letters of credit, substantially all of which is committed through May 2012. At December 31, 2010,
the Corporation has available capacity on the facility of $3 billion.

The Corporation has a 364-day asset-backed credit facility securitized by certain accounts receivable from its
Marketing and Refining operations. Under the terms of this financing arrangement, the Corporation has the ability
to borrow or issue letters of credit of up to $1 billion subject to the availability of sufficient levels of eligible
receivables. At December 31, 2010, outstanding letters of credit under this facility were collateralized by a total of
$1,194 million of accounts receivable, which are held by a wholly-owned subsidiary. These receivables are only
available to pay the general obligations of the Corporation after satisfaction of the outstanding obligations under the
asset-backed facility.

The Corporation also has a shelf registration under which it may issue additional debt securities, warrants,
common stock or preferred stock.

The Corporation’s long-term debt agreements contain a financial covenant that restricts the amount of total
borrowings and secured debt. At December 31, 2010, the Corporation is permitted to borrow up to an additional
$22.4 billion for the construction or acquisition of assets. The Corporation has the ability to borrow up to an
additional $4.4 billion of secured debt at December 31, 2010.

The Corporation’s $2,082 million in letters of credit outstanding at December 31, 2010 were primarily issued
to satisfy margin requirements. See also Note 16, Risk Management and Trading Activities.

Credit Ratings

There are three major credit rating agencies that rate the Corporation’s debt. All three agencies have currently
assigned an investment grade rating with a stable outlook to the Corporation’s debt. The interest rates and facility
fees charged on some of the Corporation’s credit facilities, as well as margin requirements from risk management
and trading counterparties, are subject to adjustment if the Corporation’s credit rating changes.
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Contractual Obligations and Contingencies
Following is a table showing aggregated information about certain contractual obligations at December 31,
2010:

Payments Due by Period
2012 and 2014 and

Total 2011 2013 2015 Thereafter
(Millions of dollars}
Total debt* ...................... $ 5583 $ 46 % 72 % 345 $ 5,120
Operating leases .................. 3,077 410 840 558 1,269
Purchase obligations

Supply commitments** ,........., 32,376 12,233 10,264 9,862 17
Capital expenditures and other

investments .................. 2,382 1,798 494 80 1

Operating expenses .............. 1,677 330 483 214 150

Other long-term liabilities, ... ...... 2,308 204 326 310 1,468

* At December 31, 2010, the Corporation’s debt bears interest at a weighted average rate of 6.8%.

** The Corporation intends fo continue purchasing refined product supply from HOVENSA. Estimated future purchases amount to
approximately §5 billion annually using year-end 2010 prices, which have been included in the table through 2015.

In the preceding table, the Corporation’s supply commitments include its estimated purchases of 50% of
HOVENSA’s production of refined products, after anticipated sales by HOVENSA to unaffiliated parties. The value
of future supply commitments will fluctuate based on prevailing market prices, actual refinery output and the
amount of product sold by HOVENSA 1o unaffiliated third parties. Under the product sales agreement between the
Corporation and HOVENSA, HOVENSA is entitled to reserve refined products for sale to unaffiliated third parties
each month up to a maximum amount set by the executive committee of HOVENSA annually, The Corporation is
obligated to purchase 50% of the remaining refined products produced by HOVENSA, including amounts reserved
for third party sales by HOVENSA that remain unsold. The prices at which the Corporation purchases refined
products are determined by reference to published market prices prevailing at the time of purchase. The amount of
the purchase commitment from HOVENSA is based on the forecasted refinery output that is expected to be sold to
the Corporation calculated using year-end prices.

Also included above are term purchase agreements at market prices for additional gasoline necessary to supply
the Corporation's retail marketing system and feedstocks for the Port Reading refining facility. In addition, the
Corporation has commitments to purchase refined products, natural gas and electricity to supply contracted
customers in its energy marketing business. These commitments were computed based predominately on year-end
market prices.

The table also reflects future capital expenditures, including the portion of tke Corporation’s planned
$5.6 billion capital investment program for 2011 that is contractually committed at December 31, 2010,
Obligations for operating expenses include commitments for transportation, seismic purchases, oil and gas
production expenses and other normal business expenses. Other long-term liabilities reflect contractually
cominitted obligations on the balance sheet at December 31, 2010, including asset retirement obligations,
pension plan liabilities and anticipated obligations for uncertain income tax positions.

The Corporation and certain of its subsidiaries lease gasoline stations, drilling rigs, tankers, office space and
other assets for varying periods under leases accounted for as operating leases.

As of December 31, 2010, the Corporation has a contingent purchase obligation, expiring in April 2012, to
acquire the remaining interest in WilcoHess, a retail gasoline station joint venture, for approximately $190 million.

The Corporation guarantees the payment of up to 50% of HOVENSA's crude oil purchases from certain
suppliers other than PDVSA. The amount of the Corporation’s guarantee fluctuates based on the volume of crude oil
purchased and related prices and at December 31, 2010 it amounted to $150 million. In addition, the Corporation
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has agreed to provide funding up to a maximum of $15 million to the extent HOVENSA does not have funds to meet
its senior debt obligations.

The Corporation is contingently liable under letters of credit and under guarantees of the debt of other entities
directly related to its business at December 31, 2010 as shown below (in millions):

Letters of credit . ..o oottt e et it e e e e e e e $ 81
UL AN RS . . .\ vttt ottt et e e e e m et ta ettt e et e e 165
$ 246

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Corporation has leveraged leases not included in its balance sheet, primarily related to retail gasoline
stations that the Corporation operates. The net present value of these leases is $394 million at December 31, 2010
compared with $412 million at December 31, 2009. The Corporation’s December 31, 2010 debt to capitalization
ratio would increase from 24.9% to 26.2% if these leases were included as debt.

See also Note 4, Refining Joint Venture, and Note 17, Guarantees and Contingencies, in the notes to the
financial statements.

Foreign Operations

The Corporation conducts exploration and production activities outside the United States, principally in
Algeria, Australia, Azerbaijan, Brazil, Brunei, China, Colombia, Denmark, Egypt, Equatorial Guinea, France,
Ghana, Indonesia, Libya, Malaysia, Norway, Peru, Russia, Thailand, and the United Kingdom. Therefore, the
Corporation is subject to the risks associated with foreign operations, including political risk, tax law changes, and
currency risk.

See also Item 1A. Risk Factors Related to Our Business and Operations.

Accounting Policies
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Accounting policies and estimates affect the recognition of assets and liabilities on the Corporation’s balance
sheet and revenues and expenses on the income statement. The accounting methods used can affect net income,
equity and various financial statement ratios. However, the Corporation’s accounting policies generally do not
change cash flows or liquidity.

Accounting for Exploration and Development Costs: Exploration and production activities are accounted
for using the successful efforts method. Costs of acquiring unproved and proved oil and gas leasehold acreage,
including lease bonuses, brokers’ fees and other related costs, are capitalized. Annual lease rentals, exploration
expenses and exploratory dry hole costs are expensed as incurred. Costs of drilling and equipping productive wells,
including development dry holes, and related production facilities are capitalized. In production operations, costs of
injected CO, for tertiary recovery are expensed as incurred.

The costs of exploratory wells that find oil and gas reserves are capitalized pending determination of whether
proved reserves have been found. Exploratory drlling costs remain capitalized after drilling is completed if (1) the
well has found a sufficient quantity of reserves to justify completion as a producing well and (2) sufficient progress
is being made in assessing the reserves and the economic and operational viability of the project. If either of those
criteria is not met, or if there is substantial doubt about the economic or operational viability of the project, the
capitalized well costs are charged to expense. Indicators of sufficient progress in assessing reserves and the
economic and operating viability of a project include: commitment of project personnel, active negotiations for
sales contracts with customers, negotiations with governments, operators and contractors and firm plans for
additional drilling and other factors.
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Crude Oil and Natural Gas Reserves: The SEC revised its oil and gas reserve estimation and disclosure
requirements effective for vear-end 2009 reporting. In addition, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
revised its accounting standard on il and gas reserve estimation and disclosures. The determination of estimated
proved reserves is a significant element in arriving at the results of operations of exploration and production
activities. The estimates of proved reserves affect well capitalizations, the unit of production depreciation rates of
proved properties and wells and equipment, as well as impairment testing of oil and gas assets and goodwill.

For reserves to be booked as proved they must be determined with reasonable certainty to be economically
producible from known reservoirs under existing economic conditions, operating methods and government
regulations. In addition, government and project operator approvals must be cobtained and, depending on the
amount of the project cost, senior management or the board of directors must commit to fund the project. The
Corporation maintains its own internal reserve estimates that are calculated by technical staff that work directly
with the oil and gas properties. The Corporation’s technical staff updates reserve estimates throughout the year
based on evaluations of new wells, performance reviews, new technical data and other studies. To provide
consistency throughout the Corporation, standard reserve estimation guidelines, definitions, reporting reviews and
approval practices are used, The internal reserve estimates are subject to internal technical audits and senior
management review. The Corporation also engages an independent third party consulting firm to audit
approximately 80% of the Corporation’s total proved reserves.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Goodwill:  As explained below there are significant differences in the
way long-lived assets and goodwill are evaluated and measured for impairment testing, The Corporation reviews
long-lived assets, including oil and gas fields, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts may not be recovered. Long-lived assets are tested based on identifiable cash flows that
are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If the carrying amounts of the long-lived
assets are not expected to be recovered by undiscounted future net cash flow estimates, the assets are impaired and
an impairment loss is recorded. The amount of impairment is based on the estimated fair value of the assets
generally determined by discounting anticipated future net cash flows.

In the case of oil and gas fields, the present value of future net cash flows is based on management’s best
estimate of future prices, whick is determined with reference to recent historical prices and published forward
prices, applied to projected production volumes and discounted at a risk-adjusted rate. The projected production
volumes represent reserves, including probable reserves, expected to be produced based on a stipulated amount of
capital expenditures.

The production volumes, prices and timing of production are consistent with internal projections and other
externally reported information. Qil and gas prices used for determining asset impairments will generally differ
from those used in the standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows, since the standardized measure
requires the use of historical twelve month average prices.

The Corporation’s impairment tests of long-lived E&P producing assets are based on its best estimates of
futunre production volumes (including recovery factors), selling prices, operating and capital costs, the timing of
future production and other factors, which are updated each time an impairment test is performed. The Corporation
could have impairments if the projected production volumes from oil and gas fields decrease, crude oil and natural
gas selling prices decline significantly for an extended pericd or future estimated capital and operating costs
tncrease significantly.

The Corporation’s goodwill is tested for impairment at a reporting unit level, which is an operating segment or
one level below an operating segment. The impairment test is conducted annually in the fourth quarter or when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amouat of the goodwill may not be recoverable, The
reporting unit or enits used to evaluate and measure goodwill for impairment are determined primarily from the
manner in which the business is managed. The Corporation’s goodwill is assigned to the E&P operating segment
and it expects that the benefits of goodwill will be recoverad through the operation of that segment.

The Corporation’s fair value estimate of the E&P segment is the sum of: (1) the discounted anticipated cash
flows of producing assets and known developments, (2) the estimated risk adjusted present value of exploration
assets, and (3) an estimated market premium to reflect the market price an acquirer would pay for potential
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synergies including cost savings, access to new business opportunities, enterprise control, improved processes and
increased market share. The Corporation also considers the relative market valuation of similar Exploration and
Production companies.

The determination of the fair value of the E&P segment depends on estimates about oil and gas reserves, future
prices, timing of future net cash flows and market premiums. Significant extended declines in crude oil and natural
gas prices or reduced reserve estimates could lead to a decrease in the fair value of the E&P segment that could
result in an impairment of goodwill.

As there are significant differences in the way long-lived assets and goodwill are evaluated and measured for
impairment testing, there may be impairments of individual assets that would not cause an impairment of the
goodwill assigned to the E&P segment.

Impairment af Equity Investees: The Corporation reviews equity method investments for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an other than temporary decline in value may have
occurred. The fair value measurement used in the impairment assessment is based on quoted market prices, where
available, or other valuation techniques, including discounted cash flows. Differences between the carrying value of
the Corporation’s equity investments and its equity in the net assets of the affiliate that result from impairment
charges are amortized over the remaining uvseful life of the affiliate’s fixed assets.

Income Taxes: Judgments are required in the determination and recognition of income tax assets and
liabilities in the financial statements, These judgments include the requirement to only recognize the financial
statement effect of a tax position when management believes that it is more likely than not, that based on the
technical merits, the position will be sustained upon examination.

The Corporation has net operating loss carryforwards or credit carryforwards in several jurisdictions,
including the United States, and has recorded deferred tax assets for those losses and credits. Additionally, the
Corporation has deferred tax assets due to temporary differences between the book basis and tax basis of certain
assets and liabilities. Regular assessments are made as to the likelihood of those deferred tax assets being realized. If
it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized, a valuation allowance is
recorded to reduce the deferred tax assets to the amount that is expected to be realized. In evaluating realizability of
deferred tax assets, the Corporation refers to the reversal periods for available carryforward periods for net
operating losses and credit carryforwards, temporary differences, the availability of tax planning strategies, the
existence of appreciated assets and estimates of future taxable income and other factors. Estimates of future taxable
income are based on assumptions of oil and gas reserves and selling prices that are consistent with the Corporation’s
internal business forecasts. Additionally, the Corporation has income taxes which have been deferred on
intercompany transactions eliminated in consolidation related to transfers of property, plant and equipment
remaining within the consclidated group. The amortization of these income taxes deferred on intercompany
transactions will occur ratably with the recovery through depletion and depreciation of the carrying value of these
assets. The Corporation does not provide for deferred U.S. income taxes for that portion of undistributed earnings of
foreign subsidiaries that are indefinitely reinvested in foreign operations.

Fair Value Measurements: The Corporation’s derivative instruments and supplemental pension plan
investments are recorded at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized in earnings or other
comprehensive income each period as appropriate. The Corporation uses various valuation approaches in
determining fair value, including the market and income approaches. The Corperation’s fair value
measurements also include non-performance risk and time value of money considerations. Counterparty credit
is considered for receivable balances, and the Corporation’s credit is considered for accrued lLiabilities.

The Corporation also records certain nonfinancial assets and liabilities at fair value when required by generally
accepted accounting principles. These fair value measurements are recorded in connection with business
combinaticns, the initial recognition of asset retirement obligations and any impairment of long-lived assets,
equity method investments or goodwill.

The Corporation determines fair value in accordance with the FASB fair value measurements accounting
standard which established a hierarchy for the inputs used to measure the fair vatue of financial asset and liabilities
based on the source of the input, which generally range from quoted prices for identical instruments in a principal
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trading market (Level 1) to estimates determined using related market data (Level 3). Multiple inputs may be used to
measure fair value, however, the level of fair value is based on the lowest significant input level within this fair value
hierarchy.

Details on the methods and assumptions used to determine the fair values are as follows:

Fair value measurements based on Level 1 inputs: Measurements that are most observable are based
on quoted prices of identical instruments obtained from the principal markets in which they are traded. Closing
prices are both readily available and representative of fair value. Market transactions occur with sufficient
frequency and volume to assure liquidity. The fair value of certain of the Corporation’s exchange traded
fotures and options are considered Level 1.

Fair value measurements based on Level 2 inputs: Measurements derived indirectly from observable
inputs or from quoted prices from markets that are less Liquid are considered Leve) 2. Measurements based on
Level 2 inputs include over-the-counter derivative instruments that are priced on an exchange traded curve but have
contractual terms that are not identical to exchange traded contracts. The Corporation utilizes fair value
measurements based on Level 2 inputs for certain forwards, swaps and options. The liability related to the
Corporation’s crude oil hedges is classified as Level 2.

Fair value measurements based on Level 3 inputs: Measurements that are Ieast observable are
estimated from related market data determined from sources with little or no market activity for comparable
contracts or are positions with longer durations. For example, in its energy marketing business, the Corporation sells
natural gas and electricity to customers and offsets the price exposure by purchasing forward contracts. The fair
value of these sales and purchases may be based on specific prices at less liquid delivered locations, which are
classified as Level 3. Fair values determined using discounted cash flows and other unobservable data are also
classified as Level 3.

Derivatives: The Corporation utilizes derivative instruments for both risk management and trading
activities, In risk management activities, the Corporation uses futures, forwards, options and swaps,
individually or in combination to mitigate its exposure to fluctuations in the prices of crude oil, natural gas,
refined products and electricity, as well as changes in interest and foreign currency exchange rates. In trading
activities, the Corporation, principally through a consolidated partnership, trades energy commodities and
derivatives, including futures, forwards, options and swaps, based on expectations of future market conditions.

All derivative instruments are recorded at fair value in the Corporation’s balance sheet. The Corporation’s
policy for recognizing the changes in fair value of derivatives varies based on the designation of the derivative. The
changes in fair value of derivatives that are not designated as hedges are recognized currently in earnings.
Derivatives may be designated as hedges of expected future cash flows or forecasted transactions (cash flow hedges)
or hedges of firm commitments (fair value hedges). The effective portion of changes in fair value of derivatives that
are designated as cash flow hedges is recorded as a component of other comprehensive income (loss). Amounts
included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for cash flow hedges are reclassified into eamings in
the same period that the hedged item is recognized in earnings. The ineffective portion of changes in fair value of
derivatives designated as cash flow hedges is recorded currently in earnings. Changes in fair value of derivatives
designated as Tair value hedges are recognized currently in earnings. The change in fair value of the related hedged
commitment 1s recorded as an adjustment to its carrying amount and recognized currently in earnings.

Derivatives that are designated as either cash flow or fair value hedges are tested for effectiveness
prospectively before they are executed and both prospectively and retrospectively on an on-going basis to
determine whether they continue to qualify for hedge accounting. The prospective and retrospective
effectiveness calculations are performed using either historical simulation or other statistical models, which
utilize historical observable market data consisting of futures curves and spot prices.

Retirement Plans: The Corporation has funded non-contributory defined benefit pension plans and an
unfunded supplemental pension plan. The Corporation recognizes on the balance sheet the net change in the funded
status of the projected benefit obligation for these plans.
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The determination of the cbligations and expenses related to these plans are based on several actuarial
assumptions, the most significant of which relate to the discount rate for measuring the present value of future plan
obligations; expected long-term rates of return on plan assets; and rate of future increases in compensation levels.
These assumptions represent estimates made by the Corporation, some of which can be affected by extemal factors.
For example, the discount rate used to estimate the Corporation’s projected benefit obligation is based on a portfolio
of high-quality, fixed income debt instruments with maturities that approximate the expected payment of plan
obligations, while the expected return on plan assets is developed from the expected future returns for each asset
category, weighted by the target allocation of pension assets to that asset category. Changes in these assumptions
can have a material impact on the amounts reported in the Corporation’s financial statements.

Asset Retirement Obligations: The Corporation has material legal obligations to remove and dismantle long
lived assets and to restore land or seabed at certain exploration and production locations. In accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the Corporation recognizes a liability for the fair value of required asset
retirement obligations. In addition, the fair value of any legally required conditional asset retirement cbligations is
recorded if the liability can be reasonably estimated. The Corporation capitalizes such costs as a component of the
carrying amount of the underlying assets in the period in which the liability is incurred. In order to measure these
obligations, the Corporation estimates the fair value of the obligations by discounting the future payments that will
be required to satisfy the obligations. In determining these estimates, the Corporation is required to make several
assumptions and judgments related to the scope of dismantlement, timing of settlement, interpretation of legal
requirements, inflationary factors and discount rate. In addition, there are other external factors which could
significantly affect the ultimate settlement costs for these obligations including: changes in environmental
regulations and other statutory requirements, fluctuations in industry costs and foreign currency exchange
rates, and advances in technology. As a result, the Corporation’s estimates of asset retirement obligations are
subject to revision due to the factors described above. Changes in estimates prior to settlement result in adjustments
to both the liability and related asset values.

Changes in Accounting Policies

Effective January 1, 2010, the Corporation adopted the amended accounting standards that eliminated the
consolidation exception for a qualifying special-purpose entity and changed the analysis necessary to determine
whether consolidation of a variable interest entity is required. The adoption of these standards resulted in an
increase of approximately $10 million to Property, plant and equipment and a corresponding increase to Long-term
debt. The debt was subsequently repaid during the first quarter of 2010.

Effective December 31, 2009, the FASB adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) Extractive
Activities — Oil and Gas (ASC 932) Oil and Gas Reserve Estimation and Disclosures, which amended the
requirements for cil and gas reserve estimation and disclosures. The main provisions of the ASU, which align
accounting standards with the previously issued Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) requirements, expand
the definition of oil and gas producing activities to include the extraction of resources which are saleable as
synthetic oil or gas, to change the price assumption used for reserve estimation and future cash flows to a twelve
month average from the yvear-end price and to amend the geographic disclosure requirements for reporting reserves
and other supplementary oil and gas data, See the Supplementary Qil and Gas Data for these disclosures.

Environment, Health and Safety

The Corporation has a values-based, socially-responsible strategy focused on improving environment, health
and safety performance and making a positive impact on communities where it does business. The strategy is
reflected in the Corporation’s environment, health, safety and social responsibility (EHS & SR) policies and by
environment and safety management systems that help protect the Corporation’s workforce, customers and local
communities, The Corporation’s management systems are designed to uphold or exceed international standards and
are intended to promote internal consistency, adherence to policy objectives and continual improvement in EHS &
SR performance. Improved performance may, in the short-term, increase the Corporation’s operating costs and
could also require increased capital expenditures to reduce potential risks to assets, reputation and license to
operate. In addition to enhanced EHS & SR performance, improved productivity and operational efficiencies may
be realized as collateral benefits from investments in EHS & SR. The Corporation has programs in place to evaluate
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regulatory compliance, audit facilities, train employees, prevent and manage risks and emergencies and to generally
meet corporate EHS & SR goals.

The Corporation and HOVENSA produce and the Corporation distributes fuel oils in the United States. Many
states and localities are adopting requirements that mandate a lower sulfur content of fuel oils and restrict the types
of fuel cil sold within their jurisdictions. These proposals could require capital expenditures by the Corporation and
HOVENSA to meet the required sulfur content standards or other changes in the marketing of fuel cils.

Over the last several years, many refiners have entered into consent agreements to resolve the United States
Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) assertions that refining facilities were modified or expanded without
complying with New Source Review reguiations that require permits and new emission controls in certain
circumstances and other regulations that impose emissions control requirements. These consent agreements,
which arise out of an EPA enforcement initiative focusing on petroleum refiners and utilities, have typically
imposed substantial civil fines and penalties and required (i) significant capital expenditures to install emissions
control equipment over a three to eight year time period and (ii) changes to operations which resulted in increased
operating costs. The capital expenditures, penalties and supplemental environmental projects for individual
refineries covered by the settlements can vary significantly, depending on the size and configuration of the
refinery, the circumstances of the alleged modifications and whether the refinery has previously installed more
advanced pollution controls. In January 2011, HOVENSA signed a Consent Decree with EPA to resolve its claims,
Under the terms of the Consent Decree, HOVENSA will pay a penalty of approximately $5 million and spend
approximately $700 million over the next 10 years to install equipment and implement additional operating
procedures at the HOVENSA refinery to reduce emissions. In addition, the Consent Decree requires HOVENSA to
spend approximately $5 million to fund an environmental project to be determined at a later date by the Virgin
Islands and $500,000 to assist the Virgin Islands Water and Power Authority with monitoring, The Consent Decree
has been lodged with the United States District Court for the Virgin Islands and approval is pending. In addition,
substantial progress has been made towards resolving this matter for the Port Reading refining facility, which is not
expected to have a material adverse impact on the Corporation’s financial position or results of operations.

The Corporation has undertaken a program to assess, monitor and reduce the emission of greenhouse gases,
including carbon dioxide and methane. The Corporation recognizes that climate change is a global environmental
concern. The Corporation is committed to the responsible management of greenhouse gas emissions from our
existing assets and future developments and is implementing a strategy to control our carbon emissions.

The Corporation will have continuing expenditures for environmental assessment and remediation. Sites
where corrective action may be necessary include gasoline stations, terminals, onshore exploration and production
facilities, refineries (including solid waste management units under permits issued pursuant to the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act) and, although not currently significant, “Superfund” sites where the Corporation
has been named a potentially responsible party.

The Corporation accrues for environmental assessment and remediation expenses when the future costs are
probable and reasonably estimable. At year-end 2010, the Corporation’s reserve for estimated remediation
liabilities was approximately $55 million. The Corporation expects that existing reserves for environmental
liabilities will adequately cover costs to assess and remediate known sites. The Corporation’s remediation spending
was $13 million in 2010 and $11 million in both 2009 and 2008. Capital expenditures for facilities, primarily to
comply with federal, state and local environmental standards, other than for the low sulfur requirements, were
approximately $85 million in 2010, $50 million in 2009 and $15 million in 2008.

Forward-Looking Information

Certain sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including Business and Properties, Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures about Market Risk, include references to the Corporation’s future results of operations and financial
position, liquidity and capital resources, capital expenditures, oil and gas production, tax rates, debt repayment,
hedging, derivative, market risk and environmental disclosures, off-balance sheet arrangements and contractual
obligations and contingencies, which include forward-looking information. Forward-looking disclosures are based
on the Corporation’s current understanding and assessment of these activities and reasonable assumptions about the
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future. Actual results may differ from these disclosures because of changes in market conditions, government
actions and other factors. For more information regarding the factors that may cause the Corporation’s results to
differ from these statements, sce Itern 1A Risk Factors Related to Our Business and Operations.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

In the normal course of its business, the Corporation is exposed to commodity risks related to changes in the
price of crude oil, natural gas, refined products and electricity, as well as to changes in interest rates and foreign
currency values. In the disclosures that follow, these risk management activities are referred to as energy marketing
and corporate risk management. The Corporation also has trading operations, principally through a 50% voting
interest in a consolidated partnership that trades energy commeodities and energy derivatives. These activities are
also exposed to commodity risks primarily related to the prices of crude oil, natural gas and refined products. The
following describes how these risks are controlled and managed.

Controls: The Corporation maintains a control environment under the direction of its chief risk officer and
through its corporate risk policy, which the Corporation’s senior management has approved. Controls include
volumetric, term and value at risk limits. The chief risk officer must approve the vse of new instruments or
commodities. Risk limits are monitored and reported on daily to business units and to senior management. The
Corporation’s risk management department also performs independent verifications of sources of fair values and
validations of valvation models. These controls apply to all of the Corporation’s risk management and trading
activities, including the consolidated trading partnership. The Corporation’s treasury department is responsible for
administering foreign exchange rate and interest rate hedging programs.

The Corporation uses value at risk to monitor and control commodity risk within its trading and risk
management activities. The value at risk model uses historical simulation and the results represent the potential loss
in fair value over one day at a 95% confidence level. The model captures both first and second order sensitivities for
options. Results may vary from time to time as strategies change in trading activities or hedging levels change in risk
management activities.

Instruments: The Corporation primarily uses forward commaodity contracts, foreign exchange forward
contracts, futures, swaps, options and energy commaodity based securities in its risk management and trading
activities. These contracts are generally widely traded instruments with standardized terms. The following
describes these instruments and how the Corporation uses them:

s Forward Commodity Contracts: 'The Corporation enters into contracts for the forward purchase and sale of
commodities. At settlement date, the notional value of the contract is exchanged for physical delivery of the
commodity. Forward contracts that are deemed normal purchase and sale contracts are excluded from the
quantitative market risk disclosures.

* Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts: The Corporation enters into forward contracts primarily for the
British Pound and the Thai Baht, which commit the Corporation to buy or sell a fixed amount of these
currencies at a predetermined exchange rate on a future date.

* Exchange Traded Contracts: The Corporation uses exchange traded contracts, including futures, on a
number of different underlying energy commodities. These contracts are settled daily with the relevant
exchange and may be subject to exchange position limits,

+ Swaps: The Corporation uses financially settled swap contracts with third parties as part of its risk
management and trading activities. Cash flows from swap contracts are determined based on underlying
commodity prices or interest rates and are typically settled over the life of the contract,

* Options: Options on various underlying energy commodities include exchange traded and third party
contracts and have various exercise periods. As a seller of options, the Corporation receives a premium at the
outset and bears the risk of unfavorable changes in the price of the commodity underlying the option. As a
purchaser of options, the Corporation pays a premium at the outset and has the right to participate in the
favorable price movements in the underlying commaodities.
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+ Energy Securities: Energy securities include energy related equity or debt securities issued by a company
or government or related derivatives on these securities.

Risk Management Activities

Energy marketing activities: 1In its energy marketing activities, the Corporation sells refined petroleum
products, natural gas and electricity principally to commercial and industrial businesses at fixed and floating prices
for varying periods of time. Commodity contracts such as futures, forwards, swaps and options together with
physical assets, such as storage, are used to obtain supply and reduce margin volatility or fower costs related to sales
contracts with customers.

Corporate risk management: Corporate risk management activities include transactions designed to reduce
risk int the selling prices of crude oil, refined products or natural gas produced by the Corporation or to reduce
exposure to foreign currency or interest rate movements. Generally, futures, swaps or option strategies may be used
to reduce risk in the selling price of a portion of the Corporation’s crude oil or natural gas production. Forward
contracts may also be used to purchase certain currencies in which the Corporation dogs business with the intent of
reducing exposure to foreign currency fluctuations. Interest rate swaps may also be used, generally to convert
fixed-rate interest payments to floating.

The Corporation uses foreign exchange contracts to reduce its exposure to fluctvating foreign exchange rates
by entering into formal contracts for various currencies including the British Pound and the Thai Baht. At
December 31, 2010, the Corporation had a payable for foreign exchange contracts maturing in 2011 with a fair
value of $7 million. The change in fair value of the foreign exchange contracts from a 10% strengthening of the
US Dollar exchange rate is estimated to be an approximately $88 million loss at December 31, 2010,

The Corporation’s fixed-rate debt of $5,569 million has a fair value of $6,353 million at December 31, 2010. A
15% decrease in the rate of interest would increase the fair value of debt by approximately $147 million at
December 31, 2010.

Following is the value at risk for the Corporation’s energy marketing and risk management commaxdity
derivatives activities, excluding foreign exchange and interest derivatives described above:

2010 2009

(Millions of dollars)
AtDecember 31 . .. .. i e e e e $ 5 % 8
AV BT . o oLt e e et 5 10
High o e e e 6 13
LW . e e e 4 8

Trading Activities

Trading activities are conducted principally through a trading partnership in which the Corporation has a 50%
voting interest. This consolidated entity intends to generate earnings through various strategies primarily using
energy commodities, securities and derivatives. The Corporation also takes trading positions for its own account.

Following is the value at risk for the Corporation’s trading activities:

2010 2009

(Millions of dollars)
AtDecember 31 .. ... ... e $ 14 $ 9
AVETAEE . . . .. e 14 12
High. o e e e e e e e e e 15 15
LW L i e e e e e e 12 9




Derivative trading transactions are marked-to-market and unrealized gains or losses are recognized currently
in earnings. Gains or losses from sales of physical products are recorded at the time of sale. Total realized gains on
trading activities amounted to $375 million in 2010 and $642 million in 2009. The following table provides an
assessment of the factors affecting the changes in fair value of trading activities and represents 100% of the trading
partnership and other trading activities:

2610 2000
(Millions of dollars)

Fair value of contracts outstanding at the beginning of the year . .. .. ... ...... $110 § 864
Change in fair value of contracts outstanding at the beginning of the year and

still outstanding attheendof the year. .. . ....... ... .. ... . ... . ... 10 (6)
Reversal of fair value for contracts closed during the year . ... .............. 233 (534)
Fair value of contracts entered into during the year and still outstanding .. ... .. 207 (214)
Fair value of contracts outstanding atthe end of the year. . ................. $ 94 § 110

The following table summarizes the sources of fair values of derivatives used in the Corporation’s trading
activities at December 31, 2010:

2014 and
Total 2011 2012 2013 Beyond

{Millions of dollars)

Source of fair value

Tlevel 1 ... .. . $(252) $@305 % 46 $ 5 % 2
Level 2 ... o i (34) (39) 44 8 3
Level 3 ... . e 380 352 (14) ) 44
Total ......... ... ... ..., $ 94 $ @42 $ 76 § 11 $ 49

The following table summarizes the receivables net of cash margin and letters of credit relating to the
Corporation’s trading activities and the credit ratings of counterparties at December 31:

2010 2009

{Millions of dollars)
Investment grade determined by outside sources . ........ ... ... ..., $ 314 § 232
Investment grade determined internally® ... ...... ... ... .. ... ... .. ... 272 120
Less than investment grade . . . .. ... .. . ... ... .. 48 61
Fair value of net receivables outstanding at the end of the year ............. $ 63 § 413

* Bused on infermation provided by counterparties and other available sources.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation
of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an
evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting, as required by Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, based on the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation, management
concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2010.

The Corporation’s independent registered public accounting firm, Emst & Young LLP, has andited the
effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, as stated in
their report, which is included herein.

/U.,e:/;, 3&6.%

John P. Rielly John B. Hess
Senior Vice President and Chairman of the Board and
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer

February 25, 2011
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Hess Corporation

We have audited Hess Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, based
on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Hess Corporation’s management is responsible
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internai Centrol
over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Corporation’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generatly accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Hess Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2010 based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheet of Hess Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related statements of consolidated income, cash flows, and equity and
comprehensive income of Hess Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2010, and our report dated February 25, 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

M v MLLP

February 25, 2011
New York, New York
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Hess Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Hess Corporation and consolidated
subsidiaries (the “Corporation”) as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related statements of consolidated
income, cash flows, and equity and comprehensive income for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2010, Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Iltem 8. These
financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Corporation’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reascnable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Hess Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries at December 31, 2010 and
2009, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2010, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion,
the related financial statemnent schedule, when considered in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken
as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Corporation adopted new oil and gas
reserve estimation and disclosure requirements effective December 31, 2009.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Qversight Board
{United States), Hess Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, based on
criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Commitiee of Spensoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 25, 2011 expressed an unqualified
opinion thereon,

Srmt v LLP

February 23, 2011
New York, New York
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HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

December 31,
2010 2009

(Millions of dollars;
thousands of shares)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents . ... ... ... . . it i i e e $ 1,608 $ 1,362
Accounts receivable
3 T L 4,478 3,650
101 T 240 274
2= 1T & L= S 1,452 1,438
(03T g T oL A = - 1,002 1.263
Total CUITERL @SSELS . . . . . o o i ottt et e e e e e e e e e et e et et e e 8,780 7,987
INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES
HOVENSA L LG . e e e s e it e e 158 681
L0 i T 285 232
Total investments in affiliates. . ... .. .o o v oo 443 913
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
TOAl —— AL COSE &« v v v vt vt et e e e e e e e e e e e e e 35,703 29,871
Less reserves for depreciation, depletion, amortization and lease impairment . ............. 14,576 13,244
Property, plant and equipment —mnet. . ... ... oL 21,127 16,627
GOODWIL L. _ . . e e e e e e 2,408 1,225
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES . ... ... . e e e 2,167 2,400
OTHER ASSE TS . .. .. .ttt et et s i e 471 304
TOTAL ASSE TS . . . et et e e e e e $35,396  $29,465
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNts PAVADLE . . . ..o e $ 4274 § 4,223
Accrued Habilities . . . ..ot e e e e e e e e 2,567 1,954
Taxes pavable . . .. . L e e 726 525
Short-term debt and current maturities of long-termdebt . . ... ... ..., 46 148
Total current Habilities . .. . ..ot e e e e 7,613 6,850
LONG-TERM DEBT ... ... ... ... . ittt ittt aaaasss 5,537 4,319
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES | .. ... . . i it i st e i e 2,995 2,222
ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS . .. ... it i e e 1,203 1,234
OTHER LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED CREDITS . ... .. ... ... i 1,239 1,312
Total Habilities . . . . . ... i e e e 18,587 15,937
EQUITY
Common stock, par value $1.00
Authorized: 600,000 shares
Issued: 2010 — 337,681 shares; 2009 — 327229 shares . ......... ... 00 i uinnns 338 327
Capital inexcess of par value . . . ... ... .. oo 3,256 2,481
Retained carnings . . .. .. ... .. e e 14,254 12,251
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). ... ... ... ... ... L L. (1,159) (1,67
Total Hess Corporation stockholders’” equity .. ......... ... i, 16,689 13,384
Noncontrolling INEEIests . . . . o vttt e e e ettt sttt aem e e e s 120 144
TOMAL BQUILY .« . o oottt e e e e e e e e e e e e 16,809 13,528
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY . ... ...ttt ot ee e e e ee e eas $35,396 $29,465

The consolidated financial statements reflect the successful efforts method of accounting for oil and gas
exploration and production activities.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME

Years Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
(Millions of dollars, except per share data)

REVENUES AND NON-OPERATING INCOME

Sales (excluding excise taxes) and other operating revenues . ... ... $33,862 $29,614 $41,134
Income (loss) from equity investment in HOVENSALL.C. ... .. .. (522) (229) 44
Gainsonassetsales. . ......... ... ... .. .. ..t 1,208 — —
Other, MEE . . .. ... e e e e 65 184 (113
Total revenues and non-operating income . .. . ., ..., ... ....., 34,613 29,569 41,063
COSTS AND EXPENSES
Cost of products sold (excluding items shown separately below). . . . 23,407 20,961 29,567
Production eXpenses ... ... ... curinniiine e, 1,924 1,805 1,872
Marketing eXpenses. . .. .o v ettt e e 1,021 1,008 1,025
Exploration expenses, including dry holes and lease impairment . . . . 865 829 725
Other Operaling eXpenses. . . . ..o vut it neeteneneneenenann-. 213 183 209
General and administrative expenses . ...........couvuene.... 662 647 672
Interest 8XpPeNSe . .. u vt it et n e 361 360 267
Depreciation, depletion and amortization .. ... ..... ... .. ... .. 2,317 2,200 1,999
ASSEL IMPAITMENES. . . . v v ittt ettt e 532 54 30
Total costs and expenses . .......... ... ... ... ir.., 31,302 28,047 36,366
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES . . ..................... 3311 1,522 4,697
Provision for income taxes . ...... ...t in i nrnnnannns 1,173 715 2,340
NET INCOME . . .. .. et $ 2,138 $ 807 $ 2,357
Less: Net income (foss) attributable to noncontrolling interests . . . .. 13 67 3
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO HESS CORPORATION . ... § 2,125 $ 740 $ 2,360
BASICNETINCOMEPERSHARE . ....................... $ 6.52 $ 2.28 $ 7.35
DILUTED NET INCOMEPERSHARE . .................... $ 647 $ 227 $ 724
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON
SHARES QOUTSTANDING (DILUTED) . ............_....., 328.3 326.0 325.8

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008

(Millions of dollars)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NEtINCOME . « o vttt ettt et et et e e et e et $ 2,138 $ 807 $ 2,357

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities

Depreciation, depletion and amortization . .................. 2,317 2,200 1,999
ASSEl IMPAIrMENtS . . . .. oot e e e 532 54 30
Exploratory dry hole costs . ... ... . ... ... . . . . 237 267 210
Lease IMPairment . ... ... ... ouiiintiten e nineeae e 266 231 125
(Income) loss from equity investment in HOVENSA L.L.C. .. ... 522 229 (44)
Stock compensation eXpense . ... ... ... ... aeaia 112 128 119
Gains On assel SAleS . o o v vttt i e e e e (1,208} — —
Benefit for deferred income taxes. .. ...................... (495) (438) 37
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable. .. .............. (760) 320 357
Increase in INVENLOIIEs . ... ... ..vitevn e nnnnenns (16) (137 (56)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued
liabilities . .. .. ... . .. e e 1,141 (542) (252)
Increase (decrease) in taxes payable . .. ... .............. 95 (81) 61
Changes in other assets and liabilities., . .. ................ (351) 8 (161)
Net cash provided by operating activities ............... 4,530 3,046 4,688
CASH FLOWS FROM INVYESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures . . ... ... ... ... e (5,492) (2,918) (4,438)
Proceeds from asset sales . .............. ... .. .. .. ..., 183 — —
L0 11 17 R T~ S 50 (6) (®)
Net cash vsed in investing activities .. ................. (5,259) (2,924) {4,444)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net (repayments) borrowings of debt with maturities of 90 days or

oS . v it i e e e — (850) 30
Debt with maturities of greater than 90 days

BOmowings . . ..ottt it i e e e 1,278 1,991 —
Repayments. .. ...ttt e ey (180) (694) (62)
Cashdividends paid . ....... ... .. ... .. . ... . ... ... .. (131) (131) (130)
Noncontrolling interests, net . ...t erarareenans (46) (2) (121)
Employee stock options exercised, including income tax benefits . . . 54 18 340
Net cash provided by financing activities . .............. 975 332 57

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. . ...... 246 454 301
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR. . 1,362 908 607
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR ........ $ 1,608 $ 1,362 $ 908

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Accumulated

Capital in Other Tatal Hess
Common  Excess Retained Comprehensive Stockholders’ Noncontrolling  Total
Stock of Par  Eamings Income (Loss) Equity Interests Equity
(Millions of dollars)
Balance at January 1, 2008. .. ... . ......... ... ..., $321 51,882 §$ 9412 $(1,841) $ 9774 $226  $10,000
Netincome (lossy. .. ... 2,360 2,360 3 2,357
Deferred gains (losses) on cash flow hedges, after-tax
Effect of hedge losses recognized in income . . . . .. 3 311 — 311
Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges. . . . .. (310) 310) — (310
Effect of adoption of fair value measurements
accounting standards . ... ................ 193 193 — 193
Change in post retirement plan liabilities, after-tax. . . . (241) (241 — 241
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment and
oher. .. e e (120) (120) (18) (138)
Comprehensive income (loss) . ............... 2,193 20 2,172
Activity related to restricted coinmon stock awards, net . . 1 145 —_ — 146 — 146
Employee stock options, including income tax benefits . . 4 320 — — 324 — 324
Cash dividends declared . . .. ... ...... . ......... — — (130) — (130) — (130
Noncontrolling interests, net .. .. ................ e —_ — — - {121) (121)
Balance at December 31,2008 . ... ........ . ... .. .. 326 2347 11642 (2,008) 12,307 84 12,391
Netincome . . ... ..o e eee 740 740 67 807
Deferred gain (losses) on cash flow hedges, after-tax
Effect of hedge losses recognized in income . ... . . 263 963 — 963
Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges. . . . , . (729) (729) — {729)
Change in post retirement plan liabilities, after-tax. . . . 6) ©) — {6)
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment and
B 105 105 (5) 100
Comprehensive income (loss) . ............... . 1,073 62 1,135
Activity related to restricted common stock awards, net . . 1 61 —_ — 62 — 62
Employee stock options, including income tax benefits ..  — 73 — —_ 73 — 73
Cash dividends declared . . ... .................. — —_ (131) — (131) — (131)
Noncontrolling interests, net ... ................. = — — — — (2) 2)
Balance at December 31,2009 .. ... ............ 377 2481 12,251 (1,675} 13,384 144 13,528
NetinCOmE .ottt e ii e et n s 2,125 2,125 13 2,138
Deferred gains (losses) on cash flow hedges, after-tax
Effect of hedge losses recognized in income . . . . .. 656 656 — 656
Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges. . . . .. (198) (198) — (198)
Change in post retirement plan liabilities, after-tax. . . . 28 28 — 23
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment and
other. . ... ... e 30 30 1 31
Comprehensive income (loss) .. .............. 2,641 14 2,655
Common stock issued for acquisition . . ... ......... 9 639 —_ — 648 — 648
Activity related to restricted common stock awards, net . . 1 5 - — 60 - 60
Employee stock options, including income tax benefits . . 1 105 — — 106 — 106
Cash dividends declared . . . .................... — — 1) — (132) —_ (132}
Noncentrolling interests, net ... .. ............... = (28) 10 — {18) (38) (56)
Balance at December 31,2010 . ................. $338 $3,256 $14,254 $(1,159) $16,689 $120 $16,809

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

32



HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business: Hess Corporation and its subsidiaries (the Corporation) engage in the exploration for
and the development, production, purchase, transportation and sale of crude cil and natural gas. These activities are
conducted principally in Algeria, Australia, Azerbaijan, Brazil, Brunei, China, Colombia, Denmark, Egypt,
Equatorial Guinea, France, Ghana, Indonesia, Libya, Malaysia, Norway, Peru, Russia, Thailand, the United
Kingdom and the United States. In addition, the Corporation manufactures refined petroleum products and
purchases, markets and trades refined petroleum products, natural gas and electricity. The Corporation owns 50% of
HOVENSA L.L.C. (HOVENSA), a refinery joint venture in the United States Virgin Islands. An additional refining
facility, terminals and retail gasoline stations, most of which include convenience stores, are located on the East
Coast of the United States.

In preparing financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP),
management makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet and revenues and expenses in the income statement. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Among the estimates made by management are oil and gas reserves, asset valuations, depreciable lives, pension
liabilities, legal and environmental obligations, asset retirement obligations and income taxes. Certain information
in the financial statements and notes has been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation, In the
preparation of these financial statements, the Corporation has evalvnated subsequent events through the date of
issuance.

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Hess
Corporation and entities in which the Corporation owns more than a 50% voting interest or entities that the
Corporation controls. The Corporation consolidates the trading partnership in which it owns a 50% voting interest
and over which it exercises control. The Corporation’s undivided interests in unincorporated oil and gas exploration
and production ventures are proportionately consolidated. Investments in affiliated companies, 20% to 50% owned
and where the Corporation has the ability to influence the operating or financial decisions of the affiliate, including
HOVENSA, are accounted for using the equity method.

Revenue Recognition: The Corporation recognizes revenues from the sale of crude oil, natural gas,
petroleum products and other merchandise when title passes to the customer. Sales are reported net of excise
and similar taxes in the Statement of Consolidated Income. The Corporation recognizes revenues from the
production of natural gas properties based on sales to customers. Differences between Exploration and Production
(E&P) natural gas volumes sold and the Corporation’s share of natural gas production are not material. Revenues
from natural gas and electricity sales by the Corporation’s marketing operations are recognized based on meter
readings and estimated deliveries to customers since the last meter reading.

In its E&P activities, the Corporation engages in crude oil purchase and sale transactions with the same
counterparty that are entered into in contemplation of one another for the primary purpose of changing location or
quality. Similarly, in its marketing activities, the Corporation enters into refined product purchase and sale
transactions with the same counterparty. These arrangements are reported net in Sales and other operating revenues
in the Statement of Consolidated Income.

Derivatives: The Corporation utilizes derivative instruments for both risk management and trading
activities. In risk management activities, the Corporation uses futures, forwards, options and swaps,
individually or in combination, to mitigate its exposure to fluctuations in prices of crude oil, natural gas,
refined products and electricity, as well as changes in interest and foreign currency exchange rates. In trading
activities, the Corporation, principally through a consclidated partnership, trades energy commodities derivatives,
including futures, forwards, options and swaps based on expectations of future market conditions.

All derivative instruments are recorded at fair value in the Corporation’s balance sheet. The Corporation’s
policy for recognizing the changes in fair value of derivatives varies based on the designation of the derivative. The
changes in fair value of derivatives that are not designated as hedges are recognized currently in earings.
Derivatives may be designated as hedges of expected future cash flows or forecasted transactions (cash flow hedges)
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HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

or hedges of firm commitments (fair value hedges). The effective portion of changes in fair value of derivatives that
are designated as cash flow hedges is recorded as a component of other comprehensive income (loss) while the
ineffective portion of the changes in fair value is recorded currently in earnings. Amounts included in Accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss) for cash flow hedges are reclassified into earnings in the same period that the
hedged item is recognized in eamings. Changes in fair value of derivatives designated as fair value hedges are
recognized currently in earnings. The change in fair value of the related hedged commitment is recorded as an
adjustment to its carrying amount and recognized currently in earnings.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments, which are readily
convertible into cash and have maturities of three months or less when acquired.

Inventaries: Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. For refined product inventories valued at
cost, the Corporation uses principaily the last-in, first-out (LIFO) inventory method. For the remaining inventories,
cost is generally determined using average actual costs.

Exploration and Development Costs: E&P activities are accounted for using the successful efforts method.
Costs of acquiring unproved and proved oil and gas leasehold acreage, including lease bonuses, brokers’ fees and
other related costs, are capitalized. Annual lease rentals, exploration expenses and exploratory dry hole costs are
expensed as incurred. Costs of drilling and equipping productive wells, including development dry holes, and
related production facilities are capitalized. In production operations, costs of injected CO, for tertiary recovery are
expensed as incurred.

The costs of exploratory wells that find oil and gas reserves are capitalized pending determination of whether
proved reserves have been found, Exploratory drilling costs remain capitalized after drilling is completed if (1) the
well has found a sufficient quantity of reserves to justify completion as a producing well and (2) sufficient progress
is being made in assessing the reserves and the economic and operational viability of the project. If either of those
criteria is not met, or if there is substantial doubt about the economic or operational viability of a project, the
capitalized well costs are charged to expense. Indicators of sufficient progress in assessing reserves and the
economic and operating viability of a project include commitment of project personnel, active negotiations for sales
contracts with customers, negotiations with governments, operators and contractors, firm plans for additional
drilling and other factors.

Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization: 'The Corporation records depletion expense for acquisition costs
of proved properties using the units of production method over proved oil and gas reserves. Depreciation and
depletion expense for oil and gas production equipment and wells is calculated using the units of production method
over proved developed oil and gas reserves. Provisions for impairment of undeveloped oil and gas leases are based
on periodic evaluations and other factors. Depreciation of all other plant and equipment is determined on the
straight-line method based on estimated ugeful lives. Retail gas stations and equipment related to a leased property,
are depreciated over the estimated useful lives not to exceed the remaining lease pericd. The Corporation records
the cost of acquired customers in its energy marketing activities as intangible assets and amortizes these costs on the
straight-line method over the expected renewal period based on historical experience.

Capitalized Interest:  Interest from external borrowings is capitalized on material projects using the weighted
average cost of outstanding borrowings until the project is substantially complete and ready for its intended use,
which for oil and gas assets is at first production from the field. Capitalized interest is depreciated over the useful
lives of the assets in the same manner as the depreciation of the underlying assets.

Asset Retirement Obligations: The Corporation has material legal obligations to remove and dismantie
long-lived assets and to restore land or seabed at certain exploration and production locations. The Corporation
recognizes a liability for the fair value of legally required asset retirement obligations associated with long-lived
assets in the period in which the retirement obligations are incurred. In addition, the fair value of any legally
required conditional asset retirement obligations is recorded if the liability can be reasonably estimated. The
Corporation capitalizes the associated asset retirement costs as part of the carrying amount of the long-lived assets.
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HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets: The Corporation reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recovered, If the carrying amounts
are not expected to be recovered by undiscounted future cash flows, the assets are impaired and an impairment loss
is recorded. The amount of impairment is based on the estimated fair value of the assets generally determined by
discounting anticipated future net cash flows. In the case of oil and gas fields, the net present value of future cash
flows is based on management’s best estimate of future prices, which is determined with reference to recent
historical prices and published forward prices, applied to projected production volumes and discounted at a risk-
adjusted rate. The projected production volumes represent reserves, including probable reserves, expected to be
produced based on a stipulated amount of capital expenditures. The production volumes, prices and timing of
production are consistent with internal projections and other externally reported information. Qil and gas prices
used for determining asset impairments will generally differ from the average prices used in the standardized
measure of discounted future net cash flows,

Impairment of Equity Investees; The Corporation reviews equity method investments for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an other than temporary decline in value may have
occurred. The fair value measurement used in the impairment assessment is based on quoted market prices, where
available, or other valuation techniques, including discounted cash flows. Differences between the carrying value of
the Corporation’s equity investments and its equity in the net assets of the affiliate that result from impairment
charges are amortized over the remaining useful life of the affiliate’s fixed assets.

Impairment of Goodwill: Goodwill is tested for impairment annually in the fourth quarter or when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the goodwill may not be recoverable. This
impairment test is calculated at the reporting unit level, which for the Corporation’s goodwill is the
Exploration and Production operating segment. The Corporation identifies potential impairments by comparing
the fair value of the reporting unit to its book value, including goodwill. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds
the carrying amount, goodwill is not impaired. If the carrying value exceeds the fair value, the Corporation
calculates the possible impairment loss by comparing the implied fair value of goodwill with the carrying amount. If
the implied fair value of goodwill is less than the carrying amount, an impairment would be recorded.

Income Taxes: Deferred income taxes are determined using the liability method. The Corporation regularly
assesses the realizability of deferred tax assets, based on estimates of future taxable income, the availability of tax
planning strategies, the existence of appreciated assets, the available carryforward periods for net operating losses
and other factors. If it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized, a
valuation allowance is recorded to reduce the deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. In addition,
the Corporation recognizes the financial statement effect of a tax position only when management believes that it is
more likely than not, that based on the technical merits, the position will be sustained upon examination.
Additionally, the Corporation has income taxes which have been deferred on intercompany transactions
eliminated in consolidation related to transfers of property, plant and equipment remaining within the
consolidated group. The amortization of these income taxes deferred on intercompany transactions will occur
ratably with the recovery through depletion and depreciation of the carrying value of these assets. The Corporation
does not provide for deferred U.S. income taxes for that portion of undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries that
are indefinitely reinvested in foreign operations. The Corporation classifies interest and penalties associated with
uncertain tax positions as income tax expense.

Fair Value Measurements: The Corporation’s derivative instruments and supplemental pension plan investments
are recorded at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized in earnings or other comprehensive income each period
as appropriate. The Corporation uses varions valuation approaches in determining fair value, including the market and
income approaches. The Corporation’s fair value measurements also include non-performance risk and time value of
money considerations. Counterparty credit is considered for receivable balances, and the Corporation’s credit is
considered for accrued liabilities.
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HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The Corporation also records certain nonfinancial assets and liabilities at fair value when required by GAAP.
These fair value measurcments are recorded in connection with business combinations, the initial recognition of
asset retirement obligations and any impairment of long-lived assets, equity method investments or goodwill.

The Corporation determines fair value in accordance with the fair value measurements accounting standard
which established a hierarchy for the inputs used to measure the fair value of financial assets and liabilities based on
the source of the input, which generally range from quoted prices for identical instruments in a principal trading
market (Level 1) to estimates determined using related market data (Level 3). Multiple inputs may be used to
measure fair value, however, the level of fair value is based on the lowest significant input level within this fair value
hierarchy.

Details on the methods and assumptions used to determine the fair values arc as follows:

Fuair value measurements based on Level 1 inputs: Measurements that are most observable are based
on quoted prices of identical instruments obtained from the principal markets in which they are traded. Closing
prices are both readily available and representative of fair value. Market transactions occur with sufficient
frequency and volume to assure liquidity. The fair value of certain of the Corporation’s exchange traded
futures and options are considered Level 1.

Fair value measurements based on Level 2 inputs: Measurements derived indirectly from observable
inputs or from quoted prices from markets that are less liquid are considered Level 2. Measurements based on
Level 2 inputs include over-the-counter derivative instruments that are priced on an exchange traded curve, but have
contractual terms that are not identical to exchange traded contracts. The Corporation utilizes fair value
measurements based on Level 2 inputs for certain forwards, swaps and options. The liability related to the
Corporation’s crude oil hedges is classified as Level 2,

Fair value measurements based on Level 3 inputs: Measurements that are least observable are
estimated from related market data, determined from sources with little or no market activity for comparable
contracts or are positions with longer durations. For example, in its energy marketing business, the Corporation
enters into contracts to sell natural gas and electricity to customers and offsets the price exposure by purchasing
forward contracts. The fair value of these sales and purchases may be based on specific prices at less liquid delivered
locations, which are classified as Level 3. There may be offsets to these positions that are priced based on more
liquid markets, which are, therefore, classified as Level 1 or Level 2. Fair values determined using discounted cash
flows and other unobservable data are also classified as Level 3.

Effective December 31, 2008, the Corporation applied the provisions of a new accounting standard for the
accounting for liabilities measured at fair value with a third-party credit enhancement (ASC 820 — Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures, originally issued as Emerging Issues Task Force 08-5, Issuer’s Accounting for
Liabilities Measured at Fair Value with a Third-Party Credit Enhancement), Upon adoption, the Corporation
revalued certain derivative liabilities collateralized by letters of credit to reflect the Corporation’s credit rating
rather than the credit rating of the issuing bank. The adoption resulted in an increase in Sales and other operating
revenues of approximately $13 million and an increase in Accumulated other comprehensive income of
approximately $78 million, with a corresponding decrease in derivative liabilities recorded within Accounts
payable.

Retirement Plans: The Corporation recognizes the funded status of defined benefit postretirement plans on
the balance sheet. The funded status is measured as the difference between the fair value of plan assets and the
projected benefit obligation. The Corporation recognizes the net changes in the funded status of these plans in the
year in which such changes occur. Prior service costs and actuarial gains and losses in excess of 10% of the greater
of the benefit obligation or the market value of assets are amortized over the average remaining service period of
active employees.

Share-Based Compensation: The fair value of all share-based compensation is expensed and recognized on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period of the awards.
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Foreign Currency Translation: The U.S. Dollaris the functional currency (primary currency in which business is
conducted) for most foreign operations. Adjustments resulting from translating monetary assets and liabilities that are
denominated in a non-functional currency into the functional currency are recorded in Other, net in the Statement of
Consolidated Income. For operations that do not use the U.S. Dollar as the functional currency, adjustiments resulting
from translating foreign currency assets and liabilities into U.S. Dollars are recorded in a separate component of equity
titled Accumulated other comprehensive income (Joss).

Maintenance and Repairs: Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred, including costs of refinery
turnarounds. Capital improvements are recorded as additions in Property, plant and equipment.

Environmental Expenditures: The Corporation accrues and expenses environmental costs to remediate
existing conditions related to past operations when the future costs are probable and reasonably estimable. The
Corporation capitalizes environmental expenditures that increase the life or efficiency of property or that reduce or
prevent future adverse impacts to the environment.

Changes in Accounting Poelicies: Effective January 1, 2010, the Corporation adopted the amended
accounting standards that eliminated the consolidation exception for a qualifying special-purpose entity and
changed the analysis necessary to determine whether consolidation of a variable interest entity is required. The
adoption of these standards resulted in an increase of approximately $10 million to Property, plant and equipment
and a corresponding increase to Long-term debt. The debt was subsequently repaid during the first quarter of 2010.

Effective December 31, 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) adopted Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) Extractive Activities — Oil and Gas (ASC 932) Oil and Gas Reserve Estimation and
Disclosures, which amended the requirements for oil and gas reserve estimation and disclosures. The main
provisions of the ASU, which align accounting standards with the previously issued Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) requirements, expand the definition of oil and gas producing activities to include the extraction
of resources which are saleable as synthetic oil or gas, to change the price assumption used for reserve estimation
and future cash flows to a twelve month average from the year-end price and to amend the geographic disclosure
requirerments for reporting reserves and other supplementary oil and gas data. See the Supplementary Oil and Gas
Data for these disclosures.

2, Acquisitions and Divestitures

2010: In December, the Corporation acquired approximately 167,000 net acres in the Bakken oil shale play
(Bakken) in North Dakota from TRZ Energy, LLC for $1,075 million in cash. In December, the Corporation also
completed the acquisition of American Qil & Gas Inc. (American Oil & Gas) for approximately $675 million
through the issuance of approximately 8.6 million shares of the Corporation’s common stock, which increased the
Corporation’s acreage position in the Bakken by approximately 85,000 net acres. The properties acquired are
located near the Corporation’s existing acreage. These acquisitions strengthen the Corporation’s acreage position in
the Bakken, leverage existing capabilities and infrastructure and are expected to contribute to future reserve and
production growth. Both of these transactions were accounted for as business combinations and the majority of the
fair value of the assets acquired was assigned to unproved properties. The total goodwill recorded on these
transactions was $347 million. The preliminary purchase price allocations are subject to normal post-closing
adjustments.

In September, the Corporation completed the exchange of its interests in Gabon and the Clair Field in the United
Kingdom for additional interests of 28% and 25%, respectively, in the Valhall and Hod fields offshore Norway. This
non-monetary exchange was accounted for as a business combination and was recorded at fair value. The transaction
resulted in a pre-tax gain of $1,150 million ($1,072 million after income taxes). The total combined carrying amount
of the disposed assets prior to the exchange was $702 million, including goodwill of $65 million. The Corporation also
acquired, from a different third party, additional interests of 8% and 13% in the Valhall and Hod fields, respectively, for
$507 million in cash. This acquisition was accounted for as a business combination. As a result of both of these
transactions, the Corporation’s total interests in the Valhall and Hod fields are 64% and 63%, respectively. The primary
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reason for these transactions was to acquire long-lived crude oif reserves and future production growth. The following
table summarizes the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in both of these transactions:

Exchange  Acquisition Total
(Millions of dollars)

Property, plant and equipment . .. . ..... ..t $2,020 $ 570 $2,590
Goodwill .. ... . e e e 688 220 908
BN ASSEIS -« ¢ o v oottt it et e e e e 155 23 178

Total assets acquired . ... ... . ... .. ... L., 2,863 813 3,676
Current liabilities . ........ ... oottt (135) (32) (167)
Deferred tax Habilities .. ...... ... ... . 0 .. (688) (220} (508)
Asset retirement obligations . ... ... ... .. o Lo oL {188) (54) (242)

Netassetsacquired . .. ...ttt inninnnnnan. $1,852 $ 507 $2,359

For all 2010 acquisitions and the exchange described above, the assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
recorded at fair value. The estimated fair value of the property, plant and equipment acquired in the transactions
described above was primarily based on an income approach. The significant inputs used in this Levet 3 fair value
measurement include assumed future production and capital based on anticipated development plans, commodity
prices, costs and a risk-adjusted discount rate. The goodwill recorded equals the deferred tax liability recognized for
the differences in book and tax bases of the assets acquired. The goodwill is not expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

In January, the Corporation completed the sale of its interest in the Jambi Merang natural gas development
project in Indonesia (Hess 25%) for cash proceeds of $183 million. The transaction resulted in a gain of $58 million,
after deducting the net book value of assets including goodwill of $7 million.

2009: The Corporation acquired for $74 million a 50% interest in Blocks PM301 and PM302 in Malaysia,
which are adjacent to Block A-18 of the Joint Development Area of Malaysia/Thailand (JDA) and contain an
extension of the Bumi Field. The Corporation also acquired 37 previously leased retail gasoline stations, primarily
through the assumption of $65 million of fixed-rate notes.

2008: The Corporation acquired the remaining 22% interest in its Gabonese subsidiary for $285 million. In
addition, the Corporation expanded its energy marketing business by acquiring fuel oil, natural gas, and electricity
customer accounts, and a terminal and related assets, for an aggregate of approximately $100 million.

3. Inventories

Inventories at December 31 are as follows:

2010 2009
(Millions of dollars)
Crude oil and other charge stocks . .. . ... ... . i $ 496 § 424
Refined products and natural gas. . ... ... ... .. . .. ..o 1,528 1,429
Less: LIFO adjustment . .. . ... vttt ettt vt ev et itt et ean e (995) (815)
1,029 1,038
Merchandise, materials and supplies . .. ... ... ... ... ... .. ... ... 423 400
e | $1,452 $1,438
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The percentage of LIFQ inventory to total crude oil, refined products and natural gas inventories was 65% and
64% at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. In 2009, the Corporation recorded a pre-tax charge of
approximately $25 million ($18 million after income taxes) to write down materials inventories in Equatorial
Guinea and the United States, the majority of which was recorded in Production expenses.

4. Refining Joint Venture

The Corporation has an investment in HOVENSA L.L.C., a 50% joint venture with Petroleos de Venezuela,
S.A. (PDVSA), which is accounted for using the equity method. HOVENSA owns and operates a refinery in the
U.S. Virgin Islands, Summarized financial information for HOVENSA as of December 31 and for the years then
ended follows:

2010 2009 2008
(Millions of dollars)
Summarized Balance Sheet, at December 31
Cash and cashequivalents ............... .. ... vou.. $ 45 % 78 % 75
Other current assets . ... ... . ir et e oo i 668 580 664
Net fixed assets . ... .ot in it ittt inn et 1,987 2,080 2,136
OtNET aS5EES . . . i i e e e 27 33 58
Current liabilities . . .. ... ..., ... .. .. .. .. .. ... (1,001) (953) (679
Long-termdebt ........... ... .. it (706) (356) (356)
Deferred liabilities and credits .. ...................... (135) (137) (104)
Members” equity. . ... .. ... e $ 85 $ 1325 % 1,794
Summarized Income Statement, for the years ended
December 31
Total Tevenues .. ... .... ... .tierirrereaneaesann. $12300 $10,085 $17,518
Costs and exXPenses. . . ...ttt i e (12,738) (10,536) (17,423)
Netincome (1088) . . .. . oot vir e n e $ (438 $ @5 % 95
Hess Corporation’s share®. . ..., ... . .. ... . ... $ 222 § (@29 % 44
Summarized Cash Flow Statement, for the years ended
December 31
Net cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities. . ... ..ot $ (335 % 87 % @0
Investing activities . .. ... ... .. 0t iitt i ienreanennns (48) (84 (85)
Financing activities. .. ... ... ... ... o . i 350 — {99)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . ... .. $ 33 % 3 %5 20d

* Before Virgin Islands income taxes, which were recorded in the Corporation's income tax provision. Excludes the impairment charge to reduce
the carrying value of the Corporation’s equity investment in HOYENSA.

In December 2010, the Corporation recorded an impairment charge of $300 million before income taxes
{$289 million after income taxes) to reduce the carrying value of its equity investment in HOVENSA to its fair
value, which was recorded in Income (loss) from equity investment in HOVENS A L.L.C. The investment had been
adversely affected by consecutive annual operating losses resulting from continued weak refining margins and
refinery utilization and a fourth quarter 2010 debt rating downgrade. As a result of a strategic assessment in 2010,
HOVENSA decided to lower crude oil refining capacity from 500,000 to 350,000 barrels per day. The Corporation
performed an impairment analysis and concluded that its investment had experienced an other than temporary
decline in value. The fair value was determined based on an income approach using estimated refined product
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selting prices and volumes, related costs of product sold, capital and operating expenditures and a market based
discount rate (Level 3 fair value measurement). As a result of cumulative net operating losses in the last two years,
the Corporation is not recognizing a full income tax benefit on the impairment charge.

The Corporation guarantees the payment of up to 50% of the value of HOVENS A’s crude oil purchases from certain
suppliers other than PDVSA. The guarantee amounted to $130 million at December 31, 2010. This amount fluctuates
based on the volume of crude oil purchased and the related crude oil prices. In addition, the Corporation has agreed to
provide funding up to $15 million to the extent HOVENSA does not have funds to meet its senior debt obligations.

5. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment at December 31 consists of the following:

2010 2009
(Milllons of dollars)

Exploration and Production

Unproved PrOPerties . .. ..o vt et it e it e et ens e $37% $ 2347
Proved properties . .. ... ...ttt i i e e 3,496 3,121
Wells, equipment and related facilities . . ......... ... ... ... .. .. ..., 26,064 22,118
33,356 27,586

Marketing, Refining and Corporate .. . ....... .. .. i 2,347 2,285
Total — AL COSE o vt vttt e e e e e e 35,703 29,871
Less: reserves for depreciation, depletion, amortization and lease impairment . . 14,576 13,244
Property, plant and equipment —mnet . ... ... ... o oL oo $21,127  $16.,627

In March 2010, the Corporation agreed to sefl a package of natural gas producing assets in the United Kingdom
North Sea including its interests in the Easington Catchment Area (Hess 30%), the Bacton Area (Hess 23%), the
Everest Field (Hess 19%), the L.omond Field (Hess 17%) and its interest in the Central Area Transmission System
(CATS) pipeline (Hess 18%). The Corporation has classified all of these properties as held for sale. At
December 31, 2010, the carrying amount of these assets totaling $238 million was reported in Other current
assets. In addition, related asset retirement obligations and deferred income taxes totaling $212 million were
reported in Accrued Liabilities. In accordance with GAAP, properties classified as held for sale are not depreciated
but are subject to impairment testing.

The foliowing table discloses the amount of capitalized exploratory well costs pending determination of
proved reserves at December 31, and the changes therein during the respective years:

2010 2009 2008
{Milliens of dollars)
Beginning balance at January 1......... ... i, $1,437 $1,094 § 608
Additions to capitalized exploratory well costs pending the
determination of proved reserves .. ............. ... .. ..... 675 433 560
Reclassifications to wells, facilities, and equipment based on the
determination of proved reserves ... ........... .. ... ...... &7 (16) 67
Capitalized exploratory well costs charged to expense . .......... (110) (74) 7
DiSpOSItioNS . ..o i i v ettt et e {132 — —
Ending balance at December 31 ......... ... ... ... ... ....... $1,783  $1.437 $1,094
Number of wellsatendof year . . ....... ..o i ... §2% 53 45

* The number of wells at the end of 2010 reflects increased onshore exploration activities, principally in the United States.
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Capitalized exploratory well costs charged to expense in the preceding table include $22 million related to the
impairment of the West Med Block and $79 million related to the Azuldo well in Brazil. Dispositions consist of well
costs relating to the Corporation’s 50% interest in WA-404-P Block located offshore Western Australia and the Clair
Field, in the United Kingdom North Sea. The preceding table excludes exploratory dry hole costs of $127 million,
$193 million and $203 million in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, which were incurred and subsequently
expensed in the same year.

At December 31, 2010, exploratory drilling costs capitalized in excess of one year past completion of drilling
were as follows (in millions):

2000 . e e e e e e e e e $ 500
200 . e e e e e e e e 439
.81 95
2000 . e e e e e e 186
2003 10 2008 . . . e e e e 56

$1.276

The capitalized well costs in excess of one year relate to 15 projects. Approximately 49% of the capitalized
well costs in excess of one year relates to two separate projects in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico, Pony and Tubular
Beils, where development planning is progressing. In addition, at the Pony prospect the Corporation has signed a
non-binding agreement in principle with the owners on adjacent Green Canyon Block 512 that outlines a proposal to
jointly develop the Pony and Knotity Head fields. Negotiation of a joint operating agreement is ongoing.
Approximately 21% of the capitalized well costs in excess of one year relates to Area 54 offshore Libya
where commercial analysis and development planning activities are ongoing, Approximately 18% relates to
Block WA-390-P offshore Western Australia where further drilling, other appraisal activities and commercial
analysis are ongoing. The remainder of the capitalized well costs in excess of one year relates (o projects where
further drilling is planned or development planning and other assessment activities are ongoing to determine the
economic and operating viability of the projects.

6. Goodwill
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill are as follows:
2010 2009

{(Millions of dollars)
Beginning balance at January 1. . ... ... ... ... it i e $1.225  $1,225
ACqUISTHONS™® | . e 1,255 -
DS POSI ONS® | . .. i e e e e e (72) —
Ending balance at December 31 . .. .. .. .. . e $2,408 $1,225

* For a description of the acquisitions and dispositions in 2010 refer to Note 2, Acquisitions and Divestitures.

7. Asset Impairments

During 2010, the Corporation recorded a charge of $532 million ($334 million after income taxes) to fully
impair the carrying value of its 55% interest in the West Mediterranean Block 1 concession (West Med Block),
located offshore Egypt. This interest was acquired in 2006 and included four natural gas discoveries and additional
exploration prospects. The Corporation and its partners subsequently explored and further evaluated the area, made
a fifth discovery, conducted development planning, and held negotiations with the Egyptian authorities to amend
the existing gas sales agreement. In September 2010, the Corporation and its partners notified the Egyptian
authorities of their decision to cease exploration activities on the block and to relinquish a significant portion of the
block. As a result, the Corporation fully impaired the carrying value of its interests in the West Med Block. The
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market related data (Level 3 fair value measurement),

During 2009, the Corporation recorded total asset impairment charges of $54 million ($26 million after income
taxes) to reduce the carrying value of two short-lived fields in the United Kingdom North Sea. During 2008, the
Corporation recorded total asset impairment charges of $30 million ($17 million after income taxes) to reduce the
carrying value of mature fields in the United States and the United Kingdom North Sea.

8. Asset Retirement Obligations
The following table describes changes to the Corporation’s asset retirement obligations:
2010 2009
(Millions of dollars)
Asset retirement obligations at January 1....... ... ... i i, $1,297  $1,214
Liabilities incurred . ... ... ... ... ... . .. i 255 14
Liabilities settled ordisposed of .. ... ... ... ... ... ... i, (282) (58)
ACCIEtION BXPENSE. . o\ vttt ettt et ettt ettt 78 72
3 G T - {6) (23
Foreign currency translation . .. ... ... . .. .. o e 16 78
Asset retirement obligations at December 31 ... ....... ... ... ... ... ..., 1,358 1,297
Less: current obligations. . .. ... .. ... i e 155 63
Long-term obligations at December 31 .. ... ... ... ... ... . ... . oL $1,203  $1,234
9. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt at December 31 consists of the following:
2010 2009

Fixed-rate notes:
6.7% due 2011
7.0% due 2014
8.1% due 2019
7.9% due 2029
7.3% due 2031
7.1% due 2033
6.0% due 2040
5.6% due 2041

Total fixed-rate

Other fixed-rate notes, weighted average rate 8.4%, due through 2023
Project lease financing, weighted average rate 5.1%, due through 2014

notes

Pollution control revenue bonds, weighted average rate 5.9%. due through 2034. .

Other debt

(Millions of doliars)

$ — § tls
250 250
997 997
695 694
746 746
598 598
744 744
EET)
5271 4,145
133 154
162 113
53 53
_1 2
5,569 4,467
_ 32 _
$5,537 34319
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In Augnst 2010, the Corporation issued $1,250 million of 30 year fixed-rate notes with a coupon of 5.6%
scheduled to mature in 2041. The proceeds were used to purchase additional acreage in the Bakken and additional
interests in the Vathall and Hod fields.

In December 2009, the Corporation issued $750 million of 30 year fixed-rate notes with a coupon of 6% and
tendered for the $662 million of notes due in August 2011t. The Comporation completed the purchase of $546 million
of the 2011 notes in 2009 and recorded a charge of $54 miflion ($34 million after income taxes). The remaining
$116 million of the 2011 notes, classified as shortterm debt and current maturities of long term debt at
December 31, 2009, was redeemed in January 2010, resulting in a charge of $11 million ($7 million after
income taxes). The charges resulting from the repurchase of the notes are reported in Other, net within the Statement
of Consolidated Income.

In February 2009, the Corporation issued $250 million of 5 year fixed-rate notes with a coupon of 7% and
$1 billion of 10 year fixed-rate notes with a coupon of 8.125%. The majority of the proceeds were used to repay debt
under the revolving credit facility and outstanding borrowings on other credit facilities.

The aggregate long-term debt maturing during the next five years is as follows {in millions): 2011 — $32
(included in short-term debt and current maturities of long-term debt); 2012 — $35; 203 — $37; 2014 — $341
and 2015 — $4.

At December 3, 2010, the Corporation’s fixed-rate notes have a principal amount of $3,300 million
($5,271 million net of unamortized discount}. Interest rates on the outstanding fixed rate notes have a
weighted average rate of 6.9%.

The Corporation has a $3 billion syndicated revolving credit facility (the facility), which can be used for
borrowings and letters of credit, substantially all of which is committed through May 2012. At December 31, 2010,
the Corporation has available capacity on the facility of $3 billion. Borrowings under the facility bear interest at
0.4% above the London Interbank Offered Rate. A facility fee of 0.1% per annum is also payable on the amount of
the facility. The interest rate and facility fee are subject to adjustment if the Corporation’s credit rating changes.

The Corporation has a 364-day asset-backed credit facility securitized by certain accounts receivable from its
Marketing and Refining operations. Under the terms of this financing arrangement, the Corporation has the ability
to borrow or issue letters of credit of up to $1 billion, subject to the availability of sufficient levels of eligible
receivables. At December 31, 2010, outstanding letters of credit under this facility were collateralized by a total of
$1,194 million of accounts receivable, which are held by a wholly-owned subsidiary. These receivables are only
avatilable to pay the general obligations of the Corporation after satisfaction of the outstanding obligations under the
asset-backed facility.

The Corporation’s long-term debt agreements contain a financial covenant that restricts the amount of total
borrowings and secured debt. At December 31, 2010, the Corporation is permitted to borrow up to an additional
$22.4 billion for the construction or acquisition of assets. The Corporation has the ability to borrow up to an
additional $4.4 billion of secured debt at December 31, 2010.
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Qutstanding letters of credit at December 31 were as follows:

2010 2009
(Millions of dollars)
Asset-backed credit facility . . . .. ... . e $ 400 3 500
Committed Ines™ . .. ... i it e i e e 1,161 1,155
Uncommitted lines™ . ... ... . .. e 21 1,192
Total .. e e e $2,082  $2,847

¥ Committed and uncommitted lines have expiration dates through 2013,

Of the total letters of credit outstanding at December 31, 2010, $81 million relates to contingent liabilities and
the remaining $2,001 million relates to liabilities recorded on the balance sheet.

The total amount of interest paid {net of amounts capitalized) was $319 million, $335 million and $266 million
in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The Corporation capitalized interest of $3 million, $6 million and $7 million
in 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.

10. Share-Based Compensation

The Corporation awards restricted common stock and stock options under its 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan.
Generally, stock options vest in one to three years from the date of grant, have a 10-year option life, and the exercise
price equals or exceeds the market price on the date of grant. Qutstanding restricted common stock generally vests
in three years from the date of grant.

Share-based compensation expense consists of the following:

Before Income Taxes After Income Taxes
2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008
(Millions of dollars)
Stock OPHONS . . .. ... $ 52 % S8 % 51 % 32 s 36 0§ 31
Restricted stock .................. 60 70 68 37 44 43
Total . ... $ 112 $ 128 $ 119 § 69 S 8 $ 74

Based on restricted stock and stock option awards outstanding at December 31, 2010, unearned compensation
expense, before income taxes, will be recognized in future years as follows (in millions): 2011 — $77, 2012 — $40
and 2013 — $4.
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The Corporation’s stock option and restricted stock activity consisted of the following:

Stock Options Restricted Stock
Weighted- Shares of Weighted-
Average Restricted Average
Exercise Price Common Price on Date
Options per Share Stock of Grant
(Thousands) (Thousands)

. Outstanding at January 1,2008. ... ............. 11,292 % 38.31 4,801 $33.93
Granted . ........ ... ... ... ... ... ... ..., 2473 82.55 1,289 85.22
Exercised. . ...t ienenannn (3,852) 29.17 — —
Vested ... .. ..o e e — — (2.787) 21.40
Forfeited ........... ..., _13 60.61  _(142) 58.60

QOutstanding at December 31,2008, .. ........... 9,700 52.73 3,161 64.78
Granted .. ...... .. i i i e 3,135 56.44 1,056 56.27
Exercised........... ... ... .. ... ... ..., 416) 38.85 — -—
Vested .. ... o — —_— (893) 50.13
Forfeited ...... ... .. ool e 65.68 _(376) 66.11

Outstanding at December 31,2009 . ... ... ... ... 12,102 53.83 2,948 66.00
Granted . ... ... . . e e 2,792 60.12 952 60.04
Exercised. . ... ... ... .. . i, (1,080) 42.37 — —_
Vested .. ... ... o —_ —_— (880) 55.42
Forfeited ...........cc .. _ (3949 65.04 _(182) 65.56

Outstanding at December 31, 2010. ............. 13,420 55.73 2,838 67.32

Exercisable at December 31, 2008 .. ... ... ...... 4,522 $ 36.95

Exercisable at December 31,2009 .............. 6,636 46.11

Exercisable at December 31,2010 .............. 8,079 51.73

The table below summarizes information regarding the outstanding and exercisable stock options as of
December 31, 2010:

Qutstanding Options Exercisable Options
Weighted-
Average Weighted- Weighted-
Remaining Average Average
Range of Contractual Exercise Price Exercise Price
Exercise Prices Options Life per Share Options per Share
{Thousands) (Years) (Thousands)
$10,00-$4000 . ............... 1,935 3 $ 26.62 1935 & 26.62
$40.01 -$5000 . ... ... ... ..., 1,708 5 49.19 1,705 49.20
$50.01-860.00 ................ 4,867 7 5509 2,914 54.21
$60.01 -$8000 ................ 2,753 9 60.32 80 65.31
$80.01 -S12000. . .............. 2,157 7 82.58 1,445 82.58
7 55.73 8,079 51.73

13,420

The intrinsic value (or the amount by which the market price of the Corporation’s Common Stock exceeds the
exercise price of an option) for outstanding options and exercisable options at December 31, 2010 was $292 million
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and $209 million, respectively. At December 31, 2010, assuming forfeitures of 2% per year, 13,200,000 outstanding

options are expected to vest at a weighted average exercise price of $55.66 per share. At December 31, 2010, the
weighted average remaining term of exercisable options was six years.

The Corporation uses the Black-Scholes model to estimate the fair value of employee stock options. The
following weighted average assumptions were utilized for stock options awarded:

2010 2009 2008
Risk free interest rate . ..........utiiir et anennennnnn 214% 1.80% 2.70%
Stock price volatility . . .. . ... L e e 390 390 294
Dividend yield ... ... . ... ... ... . ... 67% 0% 50%
Expected term in years ... ..... .ot im it e 45 45 5.0
Weighted average fair value per option granted .. ................ $20.18 $1847 $24.09

The assumption above for the risk free interest rate is based on the expected terms of the options and is obtained
from published sources. The stock price volatility is determined from historical experience using the same period as
the expected terms of the options. The expected stock option term is based on historical exercise patterns and the
expected future holding period.

In May 2008, shareholders approved the 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan and in May 2010 approved an
amendment to the 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan. The Corporation also has stock options outstanding under a
former plan. AtDecember 31, 2010, the number of common shares reserved for issuance under the 2008 Long-Term
Incentive Plan, as amended, is as follows (in thousands):

Total common shares reserved fOr iSSUANCE . . . .. o oo ittt i e et et er e n e s 17.178
Less: stock options outstanding . .. ....... .. it e e 5,671
Available for future awards of restricted stock and stock options . . . ....... ... .. ... ... 11,507

11. Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign currency gains (fosses) before income taxes amounted to $(5) miltion in 2010, $20 million in 2009 and
$(212) million in 2008. The foreign currency loss in 2008 reflects the net effect of significant exchange rate
movements in the fourth quarter of 2008 on the remeasurement of assets, liabilities and foreign currency forward
contracts by certain foreign businesses. The balances in Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) related to
foreign currency translation were an increase to stockholders’ equity of $12 million at December 31, 2010 and a
reduction to stockholders’ equity of $18 million at December 3%, 2009.

12. Retirement Plans

The Corporation has funded noncontributory defined benefit pension plans for a significant portion of its
employees. In addition, the Corporation has an unfunded supplemental pension plan covering certain employees,
which provides incremental payments that would have been payable from the Corporation’s principal pension
plans, were it not for limitations imposed by income tax regulations. The plans provide defined benefits based on
years of service and final average salary. Additionally, the Corporation maintains an unfunded postretirement
medical plan that provides health benefits to certain qualified retirees from ages 35 through 65. The measurement
date for all retirement plans is December 31.
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The following table summarizes the Corporation’s benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets and
shows the funded status of the pension and postretirement medical plans:

Fonded Unfunded Postretirement
Pension Plans Pension Plan Medical Plan
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
(Millions of doliars)
Change in benefit obligation
Balance at Janvary 1................ $1,359 $1,125 $ 188 $ 165 $ 84 $77
Service cost .. ..., 41 34 8 6 5 3
Interest CoOSt . ..o ir e e i e e 78 72 8 11 4 4
Actuarial (gain) loss . ............... 75 139 7 43 18 3
Benefit payments . . ............ ..., (46) (43) 2) 2) @ €)]
Plan settlements® ... ............... —_ — an 35 —_ —
Foreign currency exchange rate
changes ............... ... ..., (10) 32 — — — —
Balance at December 31 ... ........ 1,497 1,359 192 188 107 84
Change in fair value of plan assets
Balance at Janvary 1................ 1,072 745 — — — —
Actual return on plan assets .. ... ... .. 155 161 —_ — — —
Employer contributions. . ............ 192 183 20 37 4 3
Benefit payments . ................. (46) {43) 20 X)) (4) (3)
Foreign currency exchange rate
changes ........... ... .. 0. (8) 26 —_ — —_ i
Balance at December 31 ........... 1,365 1,072 — — — —
Funded status (plan assets less than benefit
obligations) at December 31 .......... (132) (287) 92y (188)** (107 (84)
Unrecognized net actuarial losses . . ... ... 460 495 83 92 32 16
Net amount recognized . . . ........... $ 328 $ 208 $(109) $ (96) $ (79 $(68)

*  The Corporation recorded charges related to plan settlements of $8 million (35 million after income taxes) in 2010 and $17 million
(310 mittion after income taxes) in 2009 due to employee retirements.

** The trust established by the Corporation for the supplemental plan held assets valued ar 321 million at December 31, 2010 and $40 million at
December 31, 2009,

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet at December 31 consist of the following:

Funded Unfunded Postretirement
Pension Plans Pension Plan Medical Plan
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
(Miltions of dollars)
Accrued benefit Hability. ................... $(132) $287) S (192) $(188) $ (107) § (84)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, pre-tax*. . 460 495 83 92 32 16
Net amount recognized ... ................. $ 328 $ 208 $(109 $ (96 $ (75 3 (68)

* The after-tax reduction fo equity recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) was 3385 million at December 31, 2010 and
3413 million at December 31, 2009,
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The accumulated benefit obligation for the funded defined benefit pension plans was $1,355 million at
December 31, 2010 and $1,229 million at December 31, 2009. The accumulated benefit obligation for the unfunded
defined benefit pension plan was $176 million at December 31, 2010 and $172 million at December 31, 2009.

Components of net periodic benefit cost for funded and unfunded pension plans and the postretirement medical
plan consisted of the following:
Postretirement Medical
Pension Plans Plan
2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008
(Millions of dollars)

Service Cost. .. ... iii e e $49 340 $42 $5 $3 $3
INEEreSt COSE. « v vt v et e e e eneneeann 8 83 80 4 4 4
Expected return on plan assets . ... .............. (86) G B0 — — —
Amortization of unrecognized net actuarial loss . . ... 48 65 19 1 -— -—
Settlement loss. .. .......... ... i _ 8 17 = = = =
Net periodic benefit cost . ..................... $105 8146 $61 810 S$7 $7

The Corporation’s 2011 pension and postretirement medical expense is estimated to be approximately
$90 million, of which approximately $45 million relates to the amortization of unrecognized net actuarial losses.

The weighted-average actuarial assumptions used by the Corporation’s funded and unfunded pension plans
were as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Weighted-average assumptions vsed to determine benefit obligations at

December 31
DISCOUNL TAIE . . . . .. o it i e e 53% 58% 63%
Rate of COMPENsation iNCTEASE . . .. oo vttt e e et ettt e s iiieesens 44 43 44

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net benefit cost for years
ended December 31

Discountrate . .. ... .. .. e e e 58 63 63
Expected retum on plan assets . ... ... ... ... L L e 75 15 15
Rate of compensation increase . . .. ........vv i 43 44 44

The actuarial assumptions used by the Corporation’s postretirement medical plan were as follows:
2000 2009 2008

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31

DISCOUNL TALE . - . o ot it et e et et et et se et e i eee i ianes 48% 54% 6.3%
Initial health care trend rate . . .. ... . ... ... ... ... ... ... ceiinin... 8.0% 380% 90%
Uhtimate trend rate. . ... ... e ettt ittt e e 50% 45% 4.5%
Year in which ultimate trend rateisreached . . . ... ... .............. 2017 2013 2013

The assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for each year were established at the end of each
previous year while the assumptions used to determine benefit obligations were established at each year-end. The
net periodic benefit cost and the actuarial present value of benefit obligations are based on actuarial assumptions
that are reviewed on an annual basis. The discount rate is developed based on a portfolio of high-quality, fixed
income debt instruments with maturities that approximate the expected payment of plan obligations. The overall
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expected return on plan assets is developed from the expected future returns for each asset category, weighted by the
target allocation of pension assets to that asset category.

The Corporation’s investment strategy is to maximize long-term returns at an acceptable level of risk through
broad diversification of plan assets in a variety of asset classes. Asset classes and target allocations are determined
by the Corporation’s investment committee and include domestic and foreign equities, fixed income, and other
investments, including hedge funds, real estate and private equity. Investment managers are prohibited from
investing in securities issued by the Corporation unless indirectly held as part of an index strategy. The majority of
plan assets are highly liquid, providing ample liguidity for benefit payment requirements. The current target
allocations for plan assets are 50% equity securities, 25% fixed income securities (incloding cash and short-term
investment funds) and 25% to all other types of investments. Asset allocations are rebalanced on a periodic basis
throughout the year to bring assets to within an acceptable range of target levels.

The following tables provide the fair value of the financial assets of the funded pension plans as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009 in accordance with the fair value measurement hierarchy described in Note 1,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(Millions of doliars)

December 31, 2010

Cash and short-term investment funds ... .............. $ 5 $ 31 % — $ 36
Equities:
U.S. equities (domestic) . ... ... ... .. oo 444 — — 444
International equities (non-U.S.}. ... ... ... ... .. .... 53 121 — 174
Global equities (domestic and non-U.S) .. ............ 18 140 — 158
Fixed income:
Treasury and government issued(a). . ................ — 98 3 101
Government related(b) . . ... ... ... i i — 14 3 17
Mortgage-backed securities(c) .. ...... ... o oL — 61 — 61
COMPOTALR . . .. i e e e e e e — 93 1 94
Other:
Hedgefunds . .......... ... .. ... . ... ... ....... — —_ 187 187
Prvateequityfunds . ... ............ ... ... ... .... — — 40 40
Realestate funds . . ............. ... ... ... .. ..., 7 — 32 39
Diversified commodities fonds .. ......... . ...... ... — 14 — 14

$ 527 $572 § 266 $1,365
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(Millions of dollars)
December 31, 2009
Cash and short-term investment funds ................. $ 5 $ 33 $ — § 44
Equities:
U.S. equities (domestic} . ... ......... ... ... ... .... 318 — — 318
International equities (non-U.S.). ... ............... 34 93 — 127
Global equites (domestic and non-US) . ............. 19 117 — 136
Fixed income:
Treasury and government issued(a). .. ............... — 74 3 77
Government related(b) .. ......... ... ... ... ... .. — 24 2 26
Mortgage-backed securities(c) ......... P — 60 I 61
Cotporate ... .. i i e e e — 78 2 20
Other:
Hedgefunds ....... ... .. ... .. ... ........... — — 143 143
Private equity funds . . . ... ....... .. v, — — 29 29
Realestate funds . . . .......... ... ... ......... 6 — 14 20
Diversified commodities funds ... .................. — 11 — 11

$382 $49% %194 51,072

(a} Inciudes securities issued and guaranteed by U.S. and non-U.S. governments.
(b) Primarily consists of securities issued by governmental agencies and municipalities.

{c) Comprised of U.S. residential and commercial mortgage-backed securities.

Cash and short-term investment funds consist of cash on hand and short-term investment funds. The short-term
investment fonds provide for daily investments and redemptions and are valued and carried at a $1 net asset value
(NAV) per fund share,

Equities consist of equity securities issued by U.S. and non-U.S. corporations as well as commingled
investment funds that invest in equity securities. Individually held equity securities are traded actively on
exchanges and price quotes for these shares are readily available. Individual equity securities are classified as
Level 1. Commingled fund values reflect the NAV per fund share, derived from the quoted prices in active markets
of the underlying securities. Equity commingled funds are classified as Level 2,

Fixed income investments consist of securities issued by the U.S. government, non-U.S. governments,
governmental agencies, municipalities and corporations, and agency and non-agency mortgage-backed
securities. This investment category also includes commingled investment funds that invest in fixed income
securities. Individuat fixed income securities are generally priced on the basis of evaluated prices from independent
pricing services. Such prices are monitored and provided by an independent, third-party custodial firm responsible
for safekeeping plan assets. Individual fixed income securities are classified as Level 2 or 3. Commingled fund
values reflect the NAV per fund share, derived indirectly from observable inputs or from quoted prices in less liquid
markets of the underlying securities. Fixed income commingled funds are classified as Level 2.

Other investments consist of exchange-traded real estate investment trust securities as well as commingled
fund and limited partnership investments in hedge funds, private equity, real estate and diversified commodities.
Exchange-traded securities are classified as Level 1. Commingled fund values reftect the NAV per fund share and
are classified as Level 2 or 3. Private equity and real estate limited partnership values reflect information reported by
the fund managers, which include inputs such as cost, operating results, discounted future cash flows, market based
comparable data and independent appraisals from third-party sources with professional qualifications. Hedge
funds, private equity and non-exchange-traded real estate investments are classified as Level 3.
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The following tables provide changes in financial assets that are measured at fair value based on Level 3 inputs
that are held by institutional funds classified as:
Private Real

Fixed Hedge Equity Estate
Income* Funds Funds Funds Total

(Millions of dollars)

Balance at January 1,2010 . ............covvn... $8 $143 329 $14  $194
Actal return on plan assets:

Related to assets held at December 31, 2010 ...... —_ 6 1 1 8

Related to assets sold during 2010 ... ........... — — — —
Purchases, sales or other settlements .............. 1 38 10 17 66
Net transfers in (out)of Level 3. . . ... ... .. ... ... (2 = — — @
Balance at December 31,2010, ... ............... $7 $187 $40 $32 $266
Balance at January 1,2009 ... ... ..... ... ...... $12 $127 $25 520 514
Actual return on plan assets:

Related to assets held at December 31, 2009 ... ... 4 15 {4) ) 8

Related to assets sold during 2009 .. ... ...... ... )] 1 — — —
Purchases, sales or other settlements .............. ) — 8 1 7
Net transfers in (out) of Level 3. .. ............... {5 _—- e — _ &
Balance at December 31,2009 .. ................ 38 $143 $29 $14 $194

|
|

* Fixed Income includes treasury and government issued, government related, mortgage-backed and corporate securities.

The Corporation has budgeted contributions of approximately $190 million to its funded pension plans in
2011,

Estimated future benefit payments for the funded and unfunded pension plans and the postretirement medical
plan, which reflect expected future service, are as follows (in millions):

1 5 81
72 P 79
2003 e 88
P2 P 9N
2005 e e e e e e e e 98
Years 2001010 2020, . ... . e 612

The Corporation also contributes to several defined contribution plans for eligible employees. Employees may
contribute a portion of their cormpensation to the plans and the Corporation matches a portion of the employee
contributions, The Corporation recorded expense of $24 million in 2010 and 2009, and $22 million in 2008 for
contributions to these plans.
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Income Taxes

The provision for (benefit from) income taxes consisted of:

United States Federal

Adjustment of deferred tax liability for foreign income tax rate

Change ... o e e

Total provision for income taxes .. ...................,...

2010 2009 2008
(Millions of dollars)

$ 151 $ 39 $ 10
(309)  (284)  (140)
46 (15) 10

112y (2600  (120)

1,515 1,143 2,377
230)  (168) 87

1,285 975 2,464

- = @)
$1,173 5 715 $2,340

Income (loss) before income taxes consisted of the following:

United States™. . .. ... i e e e
Foreign®* . .. . ... ... e

Total income before income taxes .. ...........cviennnn..

2010 2009 2008
(Millions of dollars)

$ (108) $ (711) $ (349)
3419 2233 5046

$3,311  $1,522  $4,697

*  Includes substantially all of the Corporation’s interest expense and the resuits of hedging activities.

** Foreign income inciudes the Corporation’s Virgin Islunds and other operations located outside of the United States.
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A summary of the components of deferred tax liabilities, deferred tax assets and taxes deferred at December 31
follows:

2010 2009
(Millions of dollars)

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment and investments ........................ $3,853  $3,021
Deferred taxes on undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries . ........... — 174
Other ... e e 52 13
Total deferred tax liabilities .. . ....... .0t it i, 23,905 3208
Deferred tax assets
Net operating loss carryforwards . ... ... ... L 896 529
Tax credit carryforwards . .. ... .. .. .. L. 244 860
Property, plant and equipment . . .. . ... ... o e e 1,679 1,575
Accrued labilities. .. .. ... o e e e e e 391 459
Asset retirement obligations . .. ... ... ... L L e 369 484
L 1 T3 (RO 302 339
Total deferred tax @S5€L5 . . . vt v v it ettt e e e e e 3,851 4,246
Valuation allowance . .. ... ... e e e _ (449 (50D
Total deferred tax assets, DEE . .. ... oot e 3437 3,746
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) . .. ... ... ... i, $ (468) $ 538

Net deferred tax assets in the foregoing table include the deferral of the tax consequences, including the
utilization of net operating loss carryforwards and tax credits in the United States during 2009 and 2010, resulting
from intercompany transactions eliminated in consolidation related to transfers of property, plant and equipment
remaining within the consolidated group. At December 31, 2010, the Corporation has recognized a gross deferred
tax asset, before application of valuation allowance, of $896 million related to net operating loss carryforwards.
This is comprised of approximately $101 million attributable to United States federal income tax which begin to
expire in 2020, $165 million attributable to various states which begin to expire in 2011, and $630 million
attributable to foreign jurisdictions which begin to expire in 2020, At December 31, 2010, the Corporation has
federal, state and foreign alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards of approximately $126 million, which can
be carried forward indefinitely and approximately $1 million of other business credit carryforwards. Foreign tax
credit carryforwards, which expire in 2019, total $117 million.

In the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, deferred tax assets and liabilities from the preceding table
are netted by taxing jurisdiction, combined with taxes deferred on intercompany transactions, and are recorded in
the following captions:

2010 2009

{Millions of dollars)
Other CURTENE ASSE18 . . o o o o o v e e et e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e $ 38 3% 372
Deferred income taxes (Jong-term asset) . .. ...ttt i e e 2,167 2,409
Accrued Habilities . ... . . i e e (26) 1)
Deferred income taxes {long-term Liability) . . ... ......... ... ... ... ..... (2,995 (2.222)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) ... ...... ... .. ... . ... . ivon.. $ (468) $ 538
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The difference between the Corporation’s effective income tax rate and the United States statutory rate is
reconciled below:

2010 2009 2008

United States stattory rate .. ... .. .ottt 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Effect of foreign operations . ... ..... ... ... . ... ... ... 9.4 15.2 12.7
State income taxes, net of Federal income tax . ............... 0.9 (1.2) 0.1
Gains onassetsales. .............. ... i i (10.4) — —
Impairment of equity investment ....... ... ... ... .. ... ..., 31 — —
Other . ... e e (2.6) (2.0) 2.0

Total . o e e e 35.4% 47.0% 49.8%

Below is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits;

2010 2009

{Millions of dollars)

Balance at Jamuary 1. . ... ... ... ottt it i e e $ 271 $§ 175
Additions based on tax positions taken in the current year . ............. 152 106
Additions based on tax positions of prior years .. ............ ... ..... 57 25
Reductions based on tax positions of prior years . .................... 2) (3)
Reductions due to settlements with taxing authorities . . ................ 7N 20)
Reductions due to lapse of statutes of limitation. ., .. .................. (1) (12)
Balance at December 31 . . ..o ot e e e e e e e $ 400 $ 271

At December 31, 2010, the unrecognized tax benefits include $294 million, which if recognized, would affect
the Corporation’s effective income tax rate. Over the next 12 months, it is reasonably possible that the total amount
of unrecognized tax benefits could decrease by $40 million to $50 million due to settlements with taxing authorities.
The Corporation had accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits of approximately
$16 million as of December 31, 2010 and approximately $17 million as of December 31, 2009.

The Corporation has not recognized deferred income taxes for that portion of undistributed earnings of foreign
subsidiaries expected to be indefinitely reinvested in foreign operations. The Corporation had undistributed
earnings from foreign subsidiaries expected to be indefinitely reinvested in foreign operations of approximately
$4.5 billion at December 31, 2010. If these earnings were not indefinitely reinvested, a deferred tax liability of

approximately $1.6 billion would be recognized, not accounting for the potential utilization of foreign tax credits in
the United States.

The Corporation and its subsidiaries file income tax returns in the United States and various foreign

Jjurisdictions. The Corporation is no longer subject to examinations by income tax authorities in most
jurisdictions for years prior to 2005.

Income taxes paid (net of refunds) in 2010, 2009 and 2008 amounted to $1,450 million, $1,177 million and
$2,420 million, respectively.
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14. Outstanding and Weighted Average Common Shares

The fotlowing table provides the changes in the Corporation’s outstanding common shares:

2009 2008

(Thousands of shares)

326,133 320,600

680 1,148
416 3,852
— 533

2010
Balance at January 1 .. .. ... . ... ... .. . e e 327,229
Issued for an acquisitton™. . ... ... ot ii i 8,602
Activity related to restricted common stock awards, net ....... 770
Employee stock options .. .. ... ..ttt i 1,080
Conversion of preferred stock . . . ... ..., ... ... ... ... ..... —
Balance at December 31 .. ... ... ... ... i 337,681

327,229 326,133

* See Note 2, Acquisitions and Divestitures.

During 2008, the Corporation’s remaining 284,139 outstanding shares of 3% cumulative convertible preferred
shares were converted into common stock at a conversion rate of 1.8783 shares of common stock for each preferred
share. The Corporation issued approximately 533,000 shares of common stock for the conversion of these preferred

shares and fractional shares were settled by cash payments.

The weighted average number of common shares used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations

for each year is summarized below:

2009 2008

(Thousands of shares)

323,800 320,803

836 2,870
1,239 1,815
— 359

2010
Common shares —basic . ... ... it 325,999
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock OPLONS . . . . .ottt e e e e e 829
Restricted common stock . . ... ... i 1,449
Convertible preferred stock. . ........ ... .. ... ... ... ... —
Common shares —diluted . . ....... ... ... ... . ... ..., 328,277

325965 325,847

The calculation of weighted average common shares excludes the effect of 5,157,000, 4,050,000 and 425,000
out-of-the-money options for 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Cash dividends on common stock totaled $(.40

per share ($0.10 per quarter) during 2010, 2009 and 2008.
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15. Leased Assets

The Corporation and certain of its subsidiaries lease gasoline stations, drilling rigs, tankers, office space and
other assets for varying periods under contractual obligations accounted for as operating leases. Certain operating
leases provide an option to purchase the related property at fixed prices. At December 31, 2010, future minimum
rental payments applicable to non-cancelable operating leases with remaining terms of one year or more (other than
oil and gas property leases) are as follows (in millions):

1/ $ 410
. O 421
L1 3 TP 419
B 377
7. 1 T U 181
RemMaliing YEAIS .. ... vttt ettt et e it e et te e et e 1,269
Total minimum lease payments. . ... ...ttt e e 3,077
Less: income from subleases . ... .. .. ... i e 58
Net minimum 1ease PAYIIENIS . . . . o\ v\ v v et ettt et oot ettt et . $3,019

Operating lease expenses for dritling rigs used to drill development wells and successful exploration wells are
capitalized.

Rental expense was as follows:

2010 2009 2008
(Millions of dollars)

Total rental eXPense . ..ot v ittt et e e $273  $266  $270
Less: income from subleases . . ... ... .. . i e e 13 11 12
Netrental eXpense . . ... .oo oot et et et e e et e e e $260 $255 $258

16. Risk Management and Trading Activities

In the normal course of its business, the Corporation is exposed to commodity risks related to changes in the
prices of crude oil, natural gas, refined products and electricity, as well as to changes in interest rates and foreign
currency values. In the disclosures that follow these activities are referred o as energy marketing and corporate risk
management activities. The Corporation also has trading operations, principally through a 50% voting interest in a
consolidated partnership, that are exposed to commodity price risks primarily related to the prices of crude otl,
natural gas, electricity, refined products, and energy-related securities.

The Corporation maintains a control environment under the direction of its chief risk officer and through its
corporate risk policy, which the Corporation’s senior management has approved. Controls include volumetric, term
and value at risk limits, The chief risk officer must approve the use of new instruments or commaodities. Risk limits
are monitored and reported on daily to business units and to senior management. The Corporation’s risk
management department also performs independent verifications of sources of fair values and validations of
valuation models. These controls apply to all of the Corporation’s risk management and trading activities, including
the consolidated trading partnership. The Corporation’s treasury department is responsible for administering
foreign exchange and interest rate hedging programs.

Following is a description of the Corporation’s activities that use derivatives as part of their operations and
strategies. Derivatives include both financial instruments and forward purchase and sale contracts. Gross notional
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amounts of both long and short positions are presented in the volume tables below. These amounts include long and
short positions that offset in closed positions and have not reached contractval maturity. Gross notional amounts do
not quantify risk or represent assets or liabilities of the Corporation, but are used in the calculation of cash
settlements under the contracts.

Energy Marketing Activities: 1In its energy marketing activities the Corporation sells refined petroleum
products, natural gas and electricity principally to commercial and industrial businesses at fixed and floating prices
for varying periods of time. Commodity contracts such as futures, forwards, swaps and options, together with
physical assets such as storage and pipeline capacity, are used to obtain supply and reduce margin volatility or lower
costs related 1o sales contracts with customers.

The table below shows the gross volume of the Corporation’s energy marketing commodity contracts
outstanding:

At December 31,
2010 2009

Commodity Contracts
Crude oil and refined products (millions of barrels) . .. .................... 30 34
Natural gas (millions of mefy .. .. ..o oo i 2210 1,876
Electricity (millions of megawatt hours) . ........... ... . oo, 301 166

The changes in fair value of certain energy marketing commodity contracts that are not designated as hedges
are recognized currently in earnings. Revenues from the sales contracts are recognized in Sales and other operating
revenues, supply contract purchases are recognized in Cost of products sold and net settlements from financial
derivatives related to these energy marketing activities are recognized in Cost of products sold. Net realized and
unrealized pre-tax gains on derivative contracts not designated as hedges amounted to $247 million in 2010 and
$102 million in 2009,

At December 31, 2010, a portion of energy marketing commodity contracts are designated as cash flow hedges
to hedge variability of expected future cash flows of forecasted supply transactions. The length of time over which
the Corporation hedges exposure to variability in future cash flows is predominantly one year or less. For contracts
outstanding at December 31, 2010, the maximum duration was approximately three years. The Corporation records
the effective portion of changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges as a component of other comprehensive
income. Amounts recorded in Accumutated other comprehensive income are reclassified into Cost of products sold
in the same period that the hedged item is recognized in earnings, The ineffective portion of changes in fair value of
cash flow hedges is recognized immediately in Cost of products sold.

At December 31, 2010, the after-tax deferred losses relating to energy marketing activities recorded in
Accumulated other comprehensive income were $147 million ($303 million at December 31, 2009). The
Corporation estimates that approximately $104 million of this amount will be reclassified into earnings over
the next twelve months, During 2010, 2009 and 2008, the Corporation reclassified after-tax income {losses) from
Accumulated other comprehensive income of $(318) million, $(596) million and $112 million, respectively, The
amount of gain (lboss) from hedge ineffectivencss reflected in earnings in 2010, 2009 and 2008 was $2 million,
$(2) million and $1 million. The fair value of energy marketing cash flow hedge positions decreased by
$164 million in 2010, $564 million in 2009 and $255 million in 2008. The pre-tax amount of deferred hedge
losses is reflected in Accounts payvable and the related income tax benefits are recorded as Deferred income tax
assets on the balance sheet.

Corporate Risk Management: Corporate risk management activities include transactions designed to
reduce risk in the selling prices of crude oil, refined products or natural gas produced by the Corporation or to
reduce exposure o foreign currency or interest rate movements. Generally, futures, swaps or option strategies may
be used to fix the forward selling price of a portion of the Corporation’s crude oil, refined products or natural gas
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production. Forward contracts may also be used to purchase certain currencies in which the Corporation does
business with the intent of reducing exposure to foreign currency fluctnations. These forward contracts comprise
various currencies including the British Pound and Thai Baht. Interest rate swaps may be used to convert interest
payments on certain long-term debt from fixed to floating rates.

The table below shows the gross volume of Corporate risk management derivative instruments outstanding:
At December 31,

2010 2009
Commodity contracts, primarily crude oil (méllions of barrels)*. . .............. 35 54
Foreign exchange contracts (millions of U.S. Dollags) . ... ................... 1,025 872
Interest rate swaps (millions of US. Dollars) . .......... ... ... ... ... . ... 310 —

* Principally reflects volumes associated with the offsetting crude oil positions.

During 2008, the Corporation closed Brent crude oil cash flow hedges covering 24,000 barrels per day through
2012, by entering into offsetting contracts with the same counterparty. As a result, the valuation of those contracts is
no longer subject to change due to price fluctuations. There were no other open hedges of crude oil or natural gas
production at December 31, 2010. Hedging activities decreased Exploration and Production Sales and other
operating revenue by $338 million in 2010, $337 million in 2009 and $423 million in 2008.

At December 31, 2010, the after-tax deferred losses in Accumulated other comprehensive income relating to
the closed Brent crude oil hedges were $638 million ($941 million at December 31, 2009). The Corporation
estimates that approximately $330 million of this amount will be reclassifted into earnings over the next twelve
months. The pre-tax amount of deferred hedge losses is reflected in Accounts payable and the related income tax
benefits are recorded as Deferred income tax assets on the balance sheet.

At December 31, 2010, the Corporation had interest rate swaps with a gross notional amount of $310 millien,
which were designated as fair value hedges. Changes in the fair value of interest rate swaps and the hedged fixed-
rate debt are recorded in Interest expense. For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Corporation recorded an
increase of $8 million in the fair value of interest rate swaps and a corresponding increase in the carrying value of the
hedged fixed-rate debt.

Foreign exchange contracts are not designated as hedges. Gains or losses on foreign exchange contracts are
recognized immediately in Other, net in Revenues and non-operating income.

Net pre-tax gains (losses) on derivative contracts used for Corporate risk management and not designated as
hedges amounted to the following:

Year Ended December 31,
2010 2009
{Millions of dollars)
Commodity . . ... .t e e e e $ (ie)) 3 9
Foreign exchange. . .. ... .. . . it it er et (7) 86
Total . e e e e e $ 14 $ 095
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Trading Activities: Trading activities are conducted principally through a trading partnership in which the
Corporation has a 50% voting interest. This consolidated entity intends to generate earnings through various

strategies primarily using energy commodities, securities and derivatives. The Corporation also takes trading
positions for its own account.

The table below shows the gross volume of derivative instruments outstanding relating to trading activities:

At December 31,
2010 2009
Commaedity Contracts
Crude oil and refined products (millions of barrels) . . . ............ ... ..... 3,328 2,251
Natural gas (millions of mef) . .. ... ... . 4,699 6,927
Electricity (millions of megawatt hours) .. ......... ... .. ... ........... 79 6
Other Contracts (millions of U.S. Dollars)
INterest Tate . . . .. e e e e 205 495
Foreign exchange . .. .. ... o i e i i e e e s 506 335

Pre-tax gains (losses) recorded in Sales and other operating revenues from trading activities amounted to the
following:
Year Ended December 31,

2010 2009

{Millions of dollars)
CommMOdItY . . ..o e e e e e $ 88 % 196
Foreign exchange ... ... .. . e e 5 23
Interest rate and other . ... ... . . i e 10 17
10 U $ 103 §$ 23

Fair Value Measurements: The Corporation determines fair value in accordance with the fair value
measurements accounting standard (ASC 820 — Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures), which established
a hierarchy that categorizes the sources of inputs, which generally range from quoted prices for identical
instruments in a principal trading market (Level 1) to estimates determined using related market data (Level 3).

When Level 1 inputs are available within a particular market, those inputs are selected for determination of fair
value over Level 2 or 3 inputs in the same market. To value Level 2 and 3 derivatives the Corporation uses
observable inputs for similar instruments that are available from exchanges, pricing services or broker quotes. These
observable inputs may be supplemented with other methods, including internal extrapolation, that result in the most
representative prices for instruments with similar characteristics. Multiple inputs may be used to measure fair value,
however, the level of fair value for each financial asset or liability presented below is based on the lowest significant
input level within this fair value hierarchy.
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The following table provides the Corporation’s net financial assets and (liabilities) that are measured at fair
value based on this hierarchy:

Collateral and

counterparty
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 netting Balance
(Millions of dollars)
December 31, 2010
Assets
Derivative contracts
Commodity. . ................... $ 65 $1308 $3883 $(304) $ 1,952
Foreign exchange ................ — 1 — —_ 1
Other . .......... .. iiiiiinnn, — 17 — — 17
Collateral and counterparty netting . . . 1) 27d) 19 _(213) (507)
Total derivative contracts. . ......... 64 1,052 864 (517) 1,463
Other assets measured at fair value on
arecurring basis . .............. 20 49 3 = 72
Total assets ...........vivnnuieenn- $ 84 $1101 $867 $(517) $ 1,535
Liabilities
Derivative contracts
Commodity. .. .................. $(324) $(2.519) $474) $ 304 $(3,013)
Foreign exchange . ............... — (12) — — 12)
Other ............ccviviin.. — am — — (10}
Collateral and counterparty netting . . . 1 274 19 _ 3 328
Total derivative contracts. ... ....... (323) (2,267)  (455) 338 (2,707)
Other liabilities measured at fair value
on a recurring basis. ............ — — — e —
Total liabilities. .. ................... $(323) $(2,267) $(455) $ 338 $ (2,707)

|
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Collateral and

counterparty
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 netting Balance
(Millions of dollars)
December 31, 2009
Assets
Derivative contracts
Commodity ..................... $ 46 $1,137 $119 $ @D $ 1,262
Other. .. ... i i — 3 — — 3
Collateral and counterparty netting . . . . — (D — (326) (327
Total derivative contracts .. ......... 46 1,139 119 (366) 938
Other assets measured at fair value on
arecurring basis. . .........,..., 37 21 5 — 63
Total asSets . v v ot vt e $ 83 $1160 $124 $(366) $ 1,001
Liabilities
Derivative contracts
Commodity . .................... $(151)  $(2.880)  $(36) $ 40 $(3,027
Foreign exchange. . . ... ........... — (23) — — 23)
Other........ ... — (8) — — (8)
Collateral and counterparty netting . . . . — 1 — 280 281
Total derivative contracts . .......... asn 2910} (36) 320 2,777
Other liabilities measured at fair value
on a recurring basis . ............ = 66 _ (4 — {0
Total Nabilities ...................... $(151)  $(2,976) 340 $ 320 $(2,847)

The following table provides changes in financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value based on
Level 3 inputs:

Year Ended December 31,

2010 2009
(Millions of dollars)
Balance at beginning of period. ... ... ..o i e e $ 84 S 149
Unrealized gains (losses)
Inclnded inearnings. . ... ... ot it i i e e 169 103
Included in other comprehensive income. . .......... ... ... .. ... 101 15
Purchases, sales or other settlements during the period ............. 83 (144)
Transfersinto Level 3 . .. .. ... ... .. 30 —
Transfersout of Level 3. . ... ... .. . i i (55) (39
Balance atend of period . ....... ... .. e $ 412 % 84

Effective January 1, 2010, the Corporation’s policy is to recognize transfers in and transfers out as of the end of
each reporting period. During the year ended December 31, 2010, transfers into Level 1 and Level 2 were net assets
of $14 million and $312 milkion, respectively, and transfers out of Level 1 and Level 2 were net assets of $28 million
and net liabilities of $329 million, respectively. Transfers into Level 1 and 2 from Levels 2 and 3, respectively
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primarily resulted from instruments that became more actively traded as they moved closer to maturity. Transfers
into Level 2 and 3 from Levels 1 and 2, respectively were due to the increased significance of the lower level inputs
to the instrument’s fair value,

In addition to the financial assets and labilities disclosed in the tables above, the Corporation had other short-
term financial instruments, primarily cash equivalents and accounts receivable and payable, for which the carrying
value approximated their fair value at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009. Fixed-rate, long-term debt had a
carrying value of $5,569 million compared with a fair value of $6,353 million at December 31, 2010, and a carrying
value of $4,467 million compared with a fair value of $5,073 million at December 31, 2009,

The table below reflects the gross and net fair values of the Corporation’s risk management and trading
derivative instruments:

Accounts Accounts
Receivable Payable

(Millions of dollars)

December 31, 2010
Derivative contracts designated as hedging instruments
CommOdity . .. ..o e $ 225 $§ (483)
L0 T 10 (2)
Total derivative contracts designated as hedging instruments ........, 235 (485)
Derivative contracts not designated as hedging instruments*
CommOdity ...t i e i et 11,581 (12,383)
Foreignexchange . .. ... ... .. .ttt ittt 7 (19)
Other. ... e e e e e e e 3 (32)
Total derivative contracts not designated as hedging instruments, . . . . .. 11,619 (12,434)
Gross fair value of derivative contracts . . . ... ... oo oo 11,854 (12,919)
Master netting arrangements , . . . ..ottt e i e (10,178) 10,178
Cash collateral (received) posted. . . ... ... ... ... L, (213) M
Net fair value of derivative contracts . . .. ......vvvevvrvenrnen.n. $ 1,463 $ (2,707)
December 31, 2009
Derivative contracts designated as hedging instruments
CommOGEtY . . ... ottt e $ 748 $ (1.166)
Deerivative contracts not designated as hedging instruments*
Commodity .. ..o e e 9,145 (10,493)
Foreign exchange . . .. ... ... .. . e 3 (26)
Other . . o e e e e 12 (14)
Total derivative contracts not designated as hedging instruments. . .. . ., 9,160 (10,533)
Gross fair value of derivative contracts . . . . ... ve vt i 9,908 (11,699)
Master netting aIrrangements . .. . ... .. ...t e (8,653) 8,653
Cash collateral (teceived) posted . . ... ... . .. . .. (317 269
Net fair value of derivative COMACIS . . . v v vv v i i iaeeaneanan $ 938 3 (2,77

* Includes trading derivatives and derivatives used for risk management.
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The Corporation generally enters into master netting arrangements to mitigate counterparty credit risk. Master
netting arrangements are standardized contracts that govern all specified transactions with the same counterparty
and allow the Corporation to terminate all contracts upon cccurrence of certain events, such as a counterparty’s
default or bankruptcy. Where these arrangements provide the right of offset and the Corporation’s intent and
practice is to offset amounts in the case of contract terminations, the Corporation records fair value on a net basis.

Credit Risk: The Corporation is exposed to credit risks that may at times be concentrated with certain
counterparties, groups of counterparties or customers. Accounts receivable are generated from a diverse domestic
and international customer base. The Corporation’s net receivables at December 31, 2010 are concentrated with the
foliowing counterparty and customer industry segments: Integrated Oil Companies — 22%, Government
Entities — 14%, Manufacturing — 10% and Services — 10%. The Corporation reduces its risk related to
certain counterparties by using master netting arrangements and requiring collateral, generally cash or letters
of credit, The Corporation records the cash collateral received or posted as an offset to the fair value of derivatives
executed with the same counterparty. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Corporation held cash from
counterparties of $213 million and $317 million, respectively. The Corporation posted cash to counterparties at
December 31, 2010 and 2009 of $34 million and $269 million, respectively.

At December 31, 2010, the Corporation had a total of $2,082 million of cutstanding letters of credit, primarily
issued to satisfy margin reguirements. Certain of the Corporation’s agreements also contain contingent collateral
provisions that could require the Corporation to post additional collateral if the Corporation’s credit rating declines.
As of December 31, 2010, the net liability related to derivatives with contingent collateral provisions was
approximately $1,692 million before cash collateral posted of approximately $16 million. At December 31,
2010, all three major credit rating agencies that rate the Corporation’s debt had assigned an investment grade rating.
If two of the three agencies were to downgrade the Corporation’s rating to below investment grade, as of
December 31, 2010, the Corporation would be required to post additional collateral of approximately $385 million.

17. Guarantees and Contingencies

At December 31, 2010, the Corporation’s guarantees include $150 million of HOVENSA's crude oil purchases
and $15 million of HOVENSA's senior debt obligations. Tn addition, the Corporation has $81 million in letters of
credit for which it is contingently liable. As a result, the maximum potential amount of future payments that the
Corporation could be required to make under its guarantees is $246 million at December 31, 2010 ($236 million at
December 31, 2009). The Corporation also has a contingent purchase obligation expiring in April 2012, to acquire
the remaining interest in WilcoHess, a retail gasoline station joint venture. As of December 31, 2010, the estimated
value of the purchase obligation is approximately $190 million.

The Corporation is subject to loss contingencies with respect to various lawsuits, claims and other proceedings,
including environmental matters. A Hability is recognized in the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements
when it is probable a loss has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. If the risk of loss is
probable, but the amount cannot be reasonably estimated or the risk of loss is only reasonably possible, a liability is
not accrued; however, the Corporation discloses the nature of those contingencies.

The Corporation, along with many other companies engaged in refining and marketing of gasoline, has been a
party to lawsuits and claims related to the use of methyl tertiary butyl ether (MTBE) in gasoline. A series of similar
lawsuits, many involving water utilities or governmental entities, were filed in jurisdictions across the United States
against producers of MTBE and petroleum refiners who produced gasoline containing MTBE, including the
Corporation. The principal allegation in all cases is that gasoline containing MTBE is a defective product and that
these parties are strictly liable in proportion to their share of the gasoline market for damage to groundwater
resources and are required to take remedial action to ameliorate the alleged effects on the environment of releases of
MTRBE. In 2008, the majority of the cases against the Corporation were settled. In 2010, additional cases were
settled, and three new cases were filed. The six unresolved cases consist of five cases that have been consolidated for
pre-trial purposes in the Southern District of New York as part of a multi-district litigation proceeding and an action
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brought in state court by the State of New Hampshire, In 2007, a pre-tax charge of $40 million was recorded to cover
all of the known MTBE cases against the Corporation.

Over the last several years, many refiners have entered into consent agreements to resolve the United States
Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) assertions that refining facilities were modified or expanded without
complying with New Source Review regulations that require permits and new emission controls in certain
circumstances and other regulations that impose emissions control requirements. These consent agreements,
which arise out of an EPA enforcement initiative focusing on petroleum refiners and utilities, have typically
imposed substantial civil fines and penalties and required (1) significant capital expenditures to install emissions
control equipment over a three to eight year time period and (ii) changes to operations which resulted in increased
operating costs. The capital expenditures, penalties and supplemental environmental projects for individual
refineries covered by the settlements can vary significantly, depending on the size and configuration of the
refinery, the circumstances of the alleged modifications and whether the refinery has previously installed more
advanced pollution controls. In January 2011, HOVENSA signed a Consent Decree with EPA to resolve its claims.
Under the terms of the Consent Decree, HOVENSA will pay a penalty of approximately $5 million and spend
approximately $700 million over the next 10 years to install equipment and implement additional operating
procedures at the HOVENSA refinery to reduce emissions. In addition, the Consent Decree requires HOVENSA to
spend approximately $5 million to fund an eavironmental project to be determined at a later date by the Virgin
Islands and $500,000 to assist the Virgin Istands Water and Power Authority with monitoring. The Consent Decree
has been lodged with the United States District Court for the Virgin Islands and approval is pending. [n addition,
substantial progress has been made towards resolving this matter for the Port Reading refining facility, which is not
expected to have a material adverse impact on the Corporation’s financial position or results of operations.

The United States Deep Water Royalty Relief Act of 1995 (the Act) implemented a royalty relief program that
relieves eligible leases issued between November 28, 1995 and November 28, 2000 from paying royalties on
deepwater production in Federal Outer Continental Shelf lands. The Act does not impose any price thresholds in
order to qualify for the royalty relief. The U.S. Minerals Management Service (MMS, predecessor to the Bureau of
Ocean Energy Management, Regulation and Enforcement) created regulations that included pricing requirements
to qualify for the royalty relief provided in the Act. During the period from 2003 to 2009, the Corporation accrued
the royalties imposed by the MMS regulations. The tegality of the thresholds imposed by the MMS was challenged
in the federal courts and, in October 2009, the 1U.S. Supreme Court decided not to review the appeltate court’s
decision against the MMS. As a result, the Corporation recognized a pre-tax gain of $143 million ($89 million after
income taxes) in 2009 to reverse all previously recorded royalties. The pre-tax gain is reported in Other, net within
the Statement of Consolidated Income.

The Corporation is from time to time involved in other judicial and administrative proceedings, including
proceedings relating to other environmental matters. The Corporation cannot predict with certainty if, how or when
such proceedings will be resolved or what the eventual relief, if any, may be, particularly for proceedings that are in
their early stages of development or where plaintiffs seek indeterminate damages. Numerous issues may need to be
resolved, including through potentially lengthy discovery and determination of important factual matters before a
loss or range of loss can be reasonably estimated for any proceeding. Subject to the foregoing, in management’s
opinion, based upon currently known facts and circumstances, the outcome of such proceedings will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Corporation, although the outcome of such proceedings
could be material to the Corporation’s results of operations and cash flows for a particular period depending on,
among other things, the level of the Corporation’s net income for such period.
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18. Segment Information

The Corporation has two operating segments that comprise the structure used by senior management to make
key operating decisions and assess performance. These are (1} Exploration and Production and (2) Marketing and
Refining. The Exploration and Production segment explores for, develops, produces, purchases, transports and sells
crude oil and natural gas. The Marketing and Refining segment manufactures refined petroleum products and
purchases, markets and trades refined petroleum products, natural gas and electricity.

The following table presents financial data by operating segment for each of the three years ended
December 31:

Exploration Marketing Corporate
and Production and Refining and Interest Consolidated(s)

(Millions of dollars)

2010
Operating revenues

Total operating revenues(b) . .. ......., $ 9,119 $24,885 $ 1

Less: Transfers between affiliates . . .. .. 143 — —

Operating revenues from unaffiliated
CUSTOMEIS v v v vt i en i anen, $ 8,976 $24,885 $ 1 $33,862

Net income (loss) attributable to Hess

Corporation . ...........c.oueuienn.. $ 2,736 $ (231 $ (380) $ 2,125
Income (loss) from equity investment in

HOVENSALLC. ................. $ - $ (522) $ — $ (522)
Infercst @XPense . ... ...covvr v en.nnn. —_ — 361 361
Depreciation, depletion and amortization . . . 2,222 82 13 2,317
Asset impairments . .................. 532 — — 532
Provision (benefit) for income taxes . ... .. 1,417 4 (248) 1,173
Investments in affiliates . .............. 57 386 — 443
Identifiable assets. .. ................. 28,242 6,377 777 35,396
Capital employed(c) . ... .............. 19,803 2,715 (126) 22,392
Capital expenditures . . ... ............. 5,394 82 16 5,492
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Exploration Marketing Corporate
and Production and Refining and Interest Consolidated(a)

(Millions of dollars)

2009
Operating revenues

Total operating revenues(b) . ... ....... $ 7.259 $22,464 $ 1

Less: Transfers between affiliates ... ... 110 — —

Operating revenues from unaffiliated
CUSIOIMELS . .. vvvrviitnnnnnnns $ 7.149 $22,464 $ $29.614

Net income (loss) attributable to Hess

Corporation .. .................... $ 1,042 $ 127 $ (429) $ 740
Income (loss) from equity investment in

HOVENSALL.C. ................. $ — $ (229 $ — $ (229
Interest expense .. ................... — — 360 360
Depreciation, depletion and amortization . . . 2,113 79 8 2,200
Asset impairments . ......... ... ... ... 54 — — 54
Provision (benefit) for income taxes . ... .. 944 24 {253) 715
Investments in affiliates ............... 57 856 — 913
Identifiable assets . . .. ................ 21,810 6,388 1,267 29,465
Capital employed(c) .. ................ 14,163 2,979 853 17,995
Capital expenditures . . . .. ............. 2,800 83 35 2,918
2008
Operating revenues

Total operating revenues(b) . . ......... $10,095 $31,273 $ 3

Less: Transfers between affiliates . ... .. 237 — —

Operating revenues from unaffiliated
CUSIOMETS . .\ ov v ve e eniean s $ 9,858 $31.273 $ 3 $41,134

Net income (loss) attributable to Hess

Corporation ...........c.veuncnnen $ 2423 $ 277 $ (340) $ 2,360
Income (loss) from equity investment in

HOVENSALLC. ................. $ — 3 M4 $ — $ 4
Interest expense . ...........coovennn. — — 267 267
Depreciation, depletion and amortization . . . 1,922 74 3 1,999
Asset impairments ................... 30 — — 30
Provision (benefit) for income taxes ... ... 2,365 162 (187) 2,340
Investments in affiliates . .............. 57 1,070 — 1,127
Identifiable assets . . . ................. 19,506 6,680 2,403 28,589
Capital employed(c) .. ................ 12,945 3,178 223 16,346
Capital expenditures . ... .............. 4,251 149 38 4,438

(a) After elimination of transactions between affiliates, which are valued at approximate market prices.

{b) Sales and operating revenues are reported nel of excise and similar taxes in the consolidated statement of income, which amounted 1o
approximarely $2,200 million, $2,100 million and $2,200 million in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

(¢} Calculated as equity plus debs.
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Financial information by major geographic area for each of the three years ended December 31, 2010:

Asia and
United States Europe Africa Other Consolidated
(Millions of dollars}

2010

Operating revenues. . . ........... $28,066 $2,109 $2,271 $1,416 $33,862

Property, plant and equipment (net). . 8343  6764* 2573 3447 21,127
2009

Operating revenues . .. ........... $24,611 $1,771  $1.898 $1,334 $29.614

Property, plant and equipment (net). . 5,792 3,930 3,617 3,288 16,627
2008

Operating revenues. .. ........... $33,202 $3.488  $3,173 $1.271 $41,134

Property, plant and equipment (net). . 5319 3,674% 4,139 3,139 16,271

* Of the total Europe property, plant and equipment (net), Norway represented 35,002 million, $2,049 million and $1,372 million in 2010, 2009
and 2008, respectively.

19.

Related Party Transactions

The following table presents the Corporation’s related party transactions for the year-ended December 31:

2010 2009 2008
(Millions of dollars)

Purchases of petroleum products:

HOVENSA™ . i e i $4,307 $3,659 $6,589
Sales of petroteum products and crude oil:

WilcoHess . . ... ... e e 2,113 1,634 2,590

HOVENSA ... . it i i 607 530 701

The following table presents the Corporation’s related party accounts receivable / (payable) at December 31:

2010 2009
(Millions of dollars}
WICOHESS . . oottt i e e e e e e e $ 110 $82
HOVENS A, DOl . ..ottt e ettt tr e et e e e aee e (107) 36

*

20,

Corporation has agreed to purchase 50% of HOVENSA’s production of refined products at market prices, after sales by HOVENSA o
unaffiliated parties,

Subseqguent Event

In February 2011, the Corporation completed the previously announced sale of a package of natural gas

producing assets in the United Kingdom North Sea including its interests in the Easington Catchment Area, the
Bacton Area, the Everest Field and the Lomond Field for approximately $350 million, after closing adjustments.
The sale of the Corporation’s interest in the CATS pipeline is expected to close in the second quarter of 2011.
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The Supplementary Qil and Gas Data that follows is presented in accordance with ASC 932, Disclosures about
0il and Gas Producing Activities, and includes (1) costs incurred, capitalized costs and results of operations relating
to oil and gas producing activities, (2) net proved oil and gas reserves, and (3) a standardized measure of discounted
future net cash flows relating to proved oil and gas reserves, including a reconciliation of changes therein.

The Corporation produces crude oil, natural gas liquids and/or natural gas principally in Algeria, Azerbaijan,
Denmark, Equatorial Guinea, Gabon (until September 2010), Indonesia, Libya, Malaysia, Norway, Russia,
Thailand, the United Kingdom and the United States. Exploration activities are also conducted, or are planned,
in additional countries.

Costs Incurred in Qil and Gas Producing Activities

United Asia and
For the Years Ended December 31 Total States Europe(c)  Affrica Other
(Milliens of dollars)

2010
Property acquisitions(a)

Unproved . . ..o o e $1.887 $1,849 $ 38 $ — $ —

Proved ... 1,015 443 572 — —
Exploration ,....................... SR 915 185 58 164 508
Production and development capital

expenditores(b) . . ... .. e 2,654 1,088 850 289 427
2009
Property acquisitions

Unproved . .. ..ottt $ 188 § 184 $ 2 5 — $ 2

Proved . ...... ... . i 74 — — — 74
Exploration . ....... ... .. ... ... ..., 938 206 69 225 438
Production and development capital

expenditures(b) . ... ... ... L. s 1,918 807 513 255 343
2008
Property acquisitions

Unproved . . ..o e $ 684 § 642 $ — $ — $ 42

Proved ....... ... ... i 300 87 — 210 3
Explotation ...........c.civnineennnonan. 1,134 408 121 275 330
Production and development capital

expenditures(b) . . ... ... i e 2,867 1,042 881 451 493

(a) Includes wells, equipment and facilities acquired with proved reserves and excludes properties acquired in non-cash property exchanges. In
2010, acguisitions include 3652 million, representing the non-cash portion of the purchase price for American Oil & Gas Inc., primarily
through the issuance of common stock.

(b) Inciudes $62 million, 3(9) millior and $344 million in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, related to the accruals and revisions for asset
retiremeni obligations except obligations acquired in non-cash property exchanges.

{c) In 2010, costs incurred in oil and gas producing dactivities in Norway, excluding non-monetary exchanges, were as follows (millions of dollarsj:

Property acquisitions(a)

UBProved . . .. . .. e e e e e % 14
Proved . e e e 572
Exploration .. ... ... . ... e e e e 12
Production and development capital expenditurestb) . . . .. . ... ... e 469



Capitalized Costs Relating to Qil and Gas Producing Activities

At December 31,

2010 2009
(Millions of dollars)
Unproved properties . . .. .ottt ittt e i e $ 3,79 $ 2,347
Proved properties . . . ... ... e e 3.496 3,121
Wells, equipment and related facilities. . .. ...... ... ... ... i, 26,064 22118
TOtal COSES v v v it et it et et e e e e e 33.356 27,586
Less: reserve for depreciation, depletion, amortization and lease impairment. .. 13,553 12,273
Netcapitalized COSIS . .. ..o i ittt i it it e et ae i $19,803 $15,313

Results of Operations for Oil and Gas Producing Activities

The results of operations shown below exclude non-oil and gas producing activities, primarily gains on sales of
oil and gas properties, interest expense, gains and losses resulting from foreign exchange transactions and other
non-operating income. Therefore, these results are on a different basis than the net income from Exploration and
Production operations reported in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations and in Note 18, Segment Information, in the notes to the financial statements.

United Asia and
For the Years Ended December 31 Total States Europe(a) Africa Other
(Millions of dollars)
2010
Sales and other operating revenues
Unaffiliated customers. ... ... e $8,601 $2,310  $2,251 $2,750 $1,290
Inter-company . . ...... ...t 143 143 — — —
Total Tevenues . - . ... ... .. .. 8,744 2,453 2,251 2,750 1,290
Costs and expenses
Production expenses, including related taxes......... 1,924 489 727 455 253
Exploration expenses, including dry holes and lease
impairment(b) .. ....... ... ...l 865 364 49 143 309
General, administrative and other expenses. . ........ 281 161 48 20 52
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ........... 2,222 649 463 772 338
ASSetimpairments . . ... ...t e 532 — —_ 532 —_
Total costs and expenses . .................... 5,824 1,663 1,287 1,922 952
Results of operations before income taxes .......... 2,920 790 964 828 338
Provision for income taxes. . ... ................. 1,583 305 477 580 221
Results of OPErations. . . .. .. v v i ennenrnn $1,337 $ 485 % 487 % 248 % 117
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United X Asia and
For the Years Ended December 31 Total States Europe Africa Other
(Millions of dollars)
2009
Sales and other operating revenues
Unaffiliated customers . ... ..................... $6,725  $1,501 $1.827 $2,193  $1,204
INEr-COmMPany . . . ...ttt e e e 110 110 — — —
Total revenues . .. .. ... 6,835 1,611 1,827 2,193 1,204
Costs and expenses
Production expenses, including related taxes(c). ...... 1,805 431 642 480 232
Exploration expenses, including dry holes and lease
mmpairment . . ... ... ... e 829 383 75 159 212
General, administrative and other expenses. . ........ 235 130 45 22 58
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ........... 2,113 503 419 821 370
Asset impairments .. . .. ..., ... i 54 — 54 — —
Total costs and expenses . .................... 5,056 1,447 1,235 1,482 892
Results of operations before income taxes . ......... 1,779 164 592 711 312
Provision for income taxes. . .................... 904 64 185 514 141
Results of operations. . .. ........................ $ 85 §$ 100 $ 407 $ 197 § 171
2008
Sales and other operating revenues
Unaffiliated customers . .. ...................... $9.569 §$1415 $3,435 $3,580 $1,139
Iner-Company . .. ........ov it 237 237 — — —
Total revenues . ... ...... ..o itvininnennn. 9,806 1,652 3,435 3,580 1,139
Costs and expenses
Production expenses, including related taxes(d) . .. ... 1,872 373 811 465 223
Exploration expenses, including dry holes and lease
impairment ... ..... .. .. ... 725 305 45 186 189
General, administrative and other expenses. . ........ 302 159 86 19 38
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ... ........ 1,922 225 574 888 235
Assetimpairments. .. ... ..........c. ... uinaia., 30 13 17 — —
Total costs and expenses . .................... 4,851 1,075 1,533 1,558 685
Results of operations before income taxes .......... 4,955 577 1,902 2,022 454
Provision for income taxes. . ... ...ovtuninne... 2,490 223 920 1,181 166
Results of operations. .. .. ... ... vininunn. .. $2465 $ 354 § 982 % 841 § 288
(a) In 2010, results of operations for oil and gas producing activities in Norway were as follows (millions of dollars):
Sales and other operating revenues — Unaffiliated customers ... .. ... . . . e $524
Costs and expenses
Production expenses, including related 1aXes .. ... ... L e 149
Exploration expenses, including dry holes and lease fmpairment . ... ... ... . .. ... . . . . i2
General, administrative and other eXpenses . . .. . .. . .. e e 9
Depreciation, depletion and amortizarion . . . .. . .. ... . e e i 133
Total costs and EXPENSES . . . . . . L e e e e e e _303
Results of operations before tNCOME TAXES . . . .. .. . .t e e e 221
Provision for inCome HIXeS . . . . . . . e e e e e e e e e 154
Results of 0perations . . . . .. .. . e e e $ 67



(b} Includes $101 million ($64 million after income taxes) for dry hole expense in Egypt and Brazil.
(c) Inclydes 320 million ($15 million after income taxes) for reductions in carrying value of materials invemtory in Equatorial Guinea.

(d) Includes $15 million (39 million after income taxes) for Gulf of Mexico hurricane related costs.

0il and Gas Reserves

The Corporation’s proved oil and gas reserves are calculated in accordance with SEC regulations and the
requirements of the FASB. Proved oil and gas reserves are quantities, which by analysis of geoscience and
engineering data, can be estimated with reasonable certainty to be economically producible from known reservoirs
under existing economic conditions, operating methods and government regulations. The Corporation’s estimation
of net recoverable quantities of liquid hydrocarbons and natural gas is a highly technical process performed by
internal teams of geoscience professionals and reservoir engineers. Estimates of reserves were prepared by the use
of standard engineering and geoscience methods generally recognized in the petvoleum industry. The method or
combination of methods used in the analysis of each reservoir is based on the maturity of the reservoir, the
completeness of the subsurface data available at the time of the estimate, the stage of reservoir development and the
production history. Where applicable, reliable technologies may be used in reserve estimation, as defined in the
SEC regulations. These technologies, including computational methods, must have been field tested and
demonstrated to provide reasonably certain results with consistency and repeatability in the formation being
evaluated or in an analogous formation. In order for reserves to be classified as proved, any required government
approvals must be obtained and depending on the cost of the project, either senior management or the board of
directors must commit to fund the development. The Corporation’s proved reserves are subject to certain risks and
uncertainties, which are discussed in Item 1A, Risk Factors Related to Qur Business and Qperations on page 14 of
this Form 10-K.

Internal Controls

The Corporation maintains internal controls over its oil and gas reserve estimation process which are
administered by the Corporation’s Senior Vice President of E&P Technology and its Chief Financial Officer.
Estimates of reserves are prepared by technical staff that work directly with the oil and gas properties using standard
reserve estimation guidelines, definitions and methodologies. Each year, reserve estimates for a selection of the
Corporation’s assets are subject to internal technical audits and reviews. In addition, an independent third party
reserve engineer reviews and audits a significant portion of the Corporation’s reported reserves (see below). Reserve
estimates are reviewed by senior management and the Board of Directors.

Qualifications

The person primarily responsible for overseeing the preparation of the Corporation’s oil and gas reserves is
Mr. Scott Heck, Senior Vice President of E&P Technology, Mr. Heck is a member of the Society of Petroleum
Engineers and has over 30 years of experience in the oil and gas industry with a BS degree in Petroleum
Engineering. His experience includes over 15 years primarily focused on oil and gas subsurface understanding and
teserves estimation in both domestic and international areas. The Corporation’s upstream technology organization,
which Mr. Heck manages, focuses on oil and gas industry subsurface and reservoir engineering technologies and
evailuation techniques. Mr. Heck is also responsible for the Corporation’s Global Reserves group, which is the
internal organization responsible for establishing the policies and processes used within the operating units to
estimate reserves and perform internal technical reserve audits and reviews.

Reserves Audit

The Corporation engaged the consulting firm of DeGolyer and MacNaughton (D&M) to perform an audit of
the internally prepared reserve estimates on certain fields aggregating 76% of 2010 vear-end reported reserve
quantities on a barrel of oil equivalent basis (80% in 2009). The purpose of this audit was to provide additional
assurance on the reasonableness of internally prepared reserve estimates and compliance with SEC regulations. The
D&M letter report, dated February 2, 2011, on the Corporation’s estimated oil and gas reserves was prepared using
standard geological and engineering methods generally recognized in the petroleum industry. D&M is an
independent petroleun engineering consulting firm that has been providing petrolesm consulting services
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throughout the world for over 70 years. D&M’s letter report on the Corporation’s December 31, 2010 oil and gas
reserves is included as an exhibit to this Form 10-K. While the D&M report should be read in its entirety, the report
concludes that for the properties reviewed by D&M, the total net proved reserve estimates prepared by Hess and
audited by D&M, in the aggregate, differed by approximately 1% of total net proved reserves on a barrel of oil
equivalent basis. The report also includes among other information, the qualifications of the technical person
primarily responsible for overseeing the reserve audit.

Adoption of new SEC requirements in 2009

The SEC issued a final rule on oil and gas reserve estimation and disclosure effective for yvear-end 2009
reporting. The SEC’s final rule was desighed to modemize and update the oil and gas reserve disclosure
requiremnents to align them with current industry practices and changes in technology. In January 2010, the
FASB issued its final Accounting Standards Update, Extractive Industries — Qil and Gas (ASC 932), which
principally conformed existing FASB standards to the new SEC guidelines. Effective with these changes, the
product prices used in the estimation of oil and gas reserves were the average oil and gas selling prices during the
twelve month period prior to the reporting date determined as an unweighted arithmetic average of the first-day-of-
the-month price for each month within such period, except for prices set in contractual arrangements. In 2008,
reserves were estimated using year-end ocil and gas prices.

Since it was not practical to calculate reserve estimates under both the old and new reserve estimation
standards as of year-end 2009, it was not possible to precisely measure the effect of adopting the new SEC
requirements on total proved reserves. However, the Corporation estimates that the effect of initially applying the
new rules, primarily due to application of the new reserve definitions and the consideration of permitted technology,
was to increase year-end 2009 total proved reserves by approximately 2%. The change in reserve estimates resulting
from applying the new rules is included in the table below as 2009 revisions and additions to proved reserves.
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Following are the Corporation’s proved reserves for the three years ended December 31, 2010:

Crude Oil, Condensate and Natural Gas

Liquids Natural Gas
Asia
United United and
States Europe(g) Africa Asia Total States FEurope(g) Africah) Tolal
{Millions of barrels) (Millions of mcf)
Net Proved Developed and Undeveloped
Reserves
AtJanuary 1,2008 ... ... . .......... 204 329 285 o7 885 270 656 1,742 2,668
Revisions of previous estimates(b). . . . . ... 9 30 83 25 147 22 84 188 204
Extensions, discoveries and other additions. . 26 5 1 — 32 18 —_ 65 83
Tmproved TECOVETY. . . . .. oo vvvn v vn s 1 — - — — — — —
Purchases of minerals in place . .. ....... 2 — _ — 2 — — — —
Sales of minerals inplace. .. ........... — — — - —_ - —_ — —
Production ........... ... 0000 uuo.. {15 (32) “5) (5 (7 (G4 00y  _(43n @272
At December 31, 2008(a) ., .. ........... 227 332 324 87 970(c) 276 639 1,858 2,773
Revisions of previous estimates(b). . ...... 22 28 34 D 77 46 66 83 195
Extensions, discoveries and other additions. . 26 1 [ — 27 23 — — 23
Improved recovery. . . ................ — — — - - - — — —
Purchases of minerals in place .......... — — - — -_— — — 101 101
Sales of minerals inplace. ... .......... — — —_ — —_ — (1) — (1}
Production . ........... ... o.. 26) an “4) ¢y (0 G 62y (6% (270
AtDecember 31,2009, .. ............. 249 330 314 74 967(c) 306 642 1,873 2,821
Revisions of previous estimates(b). . . ... .. 68 14 22 1 103 @) ® z3) 39
Extensions, discoveries and other additions. . 3 19 -— 1 23 14 15 1 R}
Improved recovery. .. ................ — — —_- - - — —_ —_ —
Purchases of minerals in place . ......... 16 150 — — 16 13 129 — 142
Sales of minerals inplace. . ............ — a3 25 & @ — (4 @ 93
Production . ....................... {32) (34) «ny (5 (112) 6y (S _(163) (263)
At December 31,2010................ 304 466 27¢ 64 1,104(c) 280(d) 719 1,599 2,598
Net Proved Developed Reserves(e)
At January 1,2008 .. ....... ... ... ... 101 201 201 15 518 199 519 654 1,372
At December 31,2008. . .............. 119 192 237 23 571 202 502 727 1431
At December 31,2009, ............... 154 1m 241 27 593 205 417 923 1,545
At December 31, 2010. .. ............. 180 210 215 22 627 199 424 692 1,315
Net Proved Undeveloped Reserves(f}
AtJanuary 1, 2008 .................. 103 128 84 52 367 71 137 1,088 1,296
At December 31,2008, ............... 108 140 B7 64 399 74 137 1,131 1,342
At December 31,2000, . ... .. ... ..., 95 159 73 47 374 1M 225 950 1,276
At December 31,2016, . .............. 124 256 55 42 477 81 295 907 1,283

(a) Proved reserves in 2008 were determined by D&M, an independent peiroleum engineering consulting firm.

(b} Inciudes the impact of changes in selling prices on the reserve estimates for each year for production sharing contracts with cost recovery
provisions. In 2010, revisions included reductions of approximately 11 million barrels of crude oil and 62 million mcf of natural gas relating
to higher selling prices. In 2009, revisions included reductions of approximately 18 million barrels of crude oil and 102 million mcf of
natural gas relating to higher selling prices. In 2008, revisions included increases of approximately 59 million barrels of crude oil and
104 million mcf of natural gas relating to lower selling prices.

(c) Includes 15 million barrels in 2010, 17 million barrels in 2009 and 16 million barrels in 2008 of crude oil reserves relating to noncontrolling

interest owners of corporate joinf ventures.
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(d) Excludes approximately 340 million mcf of carbon dioxide gas for sale or use in company operations.

(e} Ofthe total crude 0il and natural gas liguids net proved developed reserves at December 31, 2010, 54 million barrels relate to natural gas
liquids, 41 million barrels at December 31, 2009, 36 million barrels at December 31, 2008 and 33 million barrels ar January 1, 2008.

{f} Ofthe roial crude oil and natural gas liquids net proved undeveloped reserves at December 31, 2010, 48 million barrels relate to natural gas
liquids, 30 million barrels at December 31, 2009, 22 million barrels at December 31, 2008 and 21 million barrels ot January I, 2008.

(g) In 2010, proved reserves in Norway were as follows:

Crude Oit and
Natoral Gas Liguids Natural Gas
(Millions of barrets)  (Miltions of mef)

AtJanuary 1, 2010 0 . e e 136 287
Revisions of previous estimates . . . ... .o e e e (16) (1)
Purchases of minerals inplace . . . . ... e 150 130
Production . . .. . .. e e e e e _(6} _(1_2)
At December 31, 2000, . . . o e e 264 404
Ner Proved Developed Reserves at December 31,2010 .. ... ... ... ... .. ... .... 97 157
Net Proved Undeveloped Reserves at December 31, 2010 . . .. .. ... ... .. ... ... .... 167 247

(h) Natural gas reserves in Africa were 63 million mef in 2010, 71 million mcf in 2009 and 69 million mef in 2008.

Proved undeveloped reserves

The December 31, 2010 oil and gas reserve estimates disclosed above include 477 million barrels of liquid
hydrocarbons and 1,283 million mef of natural gas, or an aggregate of 691 million barrels of il equivalent
(mmboe), classified as proved undeveloped reserves. Overall volumes of proved undeveloped reserves increased by
104 mmboe compared with year-end 2009. Proved undeveloped reserves increased by 119 mmboe in 2010 from
acquisitions in Norway and the Bakken oil shale play in North Dakota. Approximately 30 mmboe of proved
undeveloped reserves in Indonesia, Gabon and the United Kingdom were disposed of in asset sales and exchanges.
Additions and revisions in proved undeveloped reserves from existing fields amounted to 73 mmboe, primarily in
the United States, Denmark, Libya and JDA. These increases resulted from ongoing technical assessments,
performance evaluations and development planning. In 2010, 58 mmboe were converted from proved undeveloped
reserves to developed resulting from continuing development activity and new wells in Libya, Russia, the Bakken in
North Dakota, the Llano Field in the Guif of Mexico, the Pailin Field in Thailand and the JDA. The Corporation
estimates that capital expenditures of approximately $600 million were incurred to convert proved undeveloped
reserves 1o developed during 2010.

The Corporation is involved in multiple long-term projects that have staged developments. Certain of these
projects have proved reserves, which have been classified as undeveloped for a period in excess of five years,
totaling 175 mmboe or 11% of total 2010 proved reserves. Substantially all of the proved undeveloped reserves in
excess of five years old relate to five offshore producing assets. Four natural gas projects in the IDA, Indonesia and
Norway are being developed in phases to satisfy long-term natural gas sales contracts and an oil project in
Azerbaijan is continuing to be developed in phases. A surnmary of the development status of each of the five
projects follows:

¢ JDA — This natural gas project in the Gulf of Thailand currently has a central processing platform and six
wellkead platforms. A seventh wellhead platform is under construction and the operator plans to begin
construction of two additional wellhead platforms in 2011,

Pangkah — This natural gas and oil project offshore Java, Indonesia currently has one producing offshore
wellhead platform and onshore production facilities. A second wellhead platform has been installed and is
currently supporting drilling operations. In addition, a central processing platform is currently under
construction and is expected to be installed in 2011 to expand oil and water handling capacity.

= Natuna A — This natural gas project offshore Sumatra, Indonesia currently has one wellhead platform, a
central processing facility and a floating, storage and offloading vessel. The operator is constructing a
second wellhead platform and a separate central processing platform which is expected to be in service in
2011. Additional wellhead platforms and subsea well tic-backs are in the field development plan,
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» Snohvit — This liquefied natural gas project offshore Norway currently has processing and liguefaction
facilities on Melkoya Island with subsea wells tied-back to the facilities. Future development will continue
based on available production capacity to meet contracted gas sales volumes.

» ACG — This oil project offshore Azerbaijan in the Caspian Sea has seven operational platforms that have
been completed over multiple phases of development. The operator began construction on another
production platform in 2010.

Production sharing contracts

The Corporation’s proved reserves include crude oil and natural gas reserves relating to long-term supply
agreements with governments or authorities in which the Corporation has the legal right to produce or has a revenue
interest in the production. Proved reserves from these production sharing contracts for each of the three years ended
December 31, 2010 are presented separately below, as well as volumes produced and received during 2010, 2009
and 2008 from these production sharing contracts.

Crude Oil, Condensate and Natural Gas

Liquids Natural Gas
Asia
United United and
States FEurope Africa Asia Total States FEurope Africa Total
(Millions of barrels) (Millions of mef)
Production Sharing Contracis
Proved Reserves™
AtDecember 31,2008 .. ................... — — 188 82 270 — — 1,604 1,604
At December 31, 2009 . . ., ...l — — 161 68 220 — — 1,599 1,599
AtDecember 31,2010 . ...... ... ... ... — — 108 57 165 — — 1,316 1,316
Production
2008 . e — — 37 4 41 — — 103 103
2000 . e — — 36 5 41 — _— 136 136
. O —_ — 33 4 37 — —_ 130 130

* Includes natural gas liguids of 7 million barrels in 2010, 11 million barrels in 2009 and 12 million barrels in 2008.

Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows Relating to Proved Oil and Gas Reserves

Future net cash flows are calculated by applying prescribed oil and gas selling prices used in determining year-
end reserve estimates (adjusted for price changes provided by contractual arrangements) to estimated future
production of proved oil and gas reserves, less estimated foture development and production costs, which are based
on year-end costs and existing economic assumptions. Future income tax expenses are computed by applying the
appropriate year-end statutory tax rates to the pre-tax net cash flows relating to the Corporation’s proved oil and gas
reserves, Future net cash flows are discounted at the prescribed rate of 10%. The discounted future net cash flow
estimates do not include exploration expenses, interest expense or corporate general and administrative expenses.
The selling prices of crude oil and natural gas are highly volatile. The prices which are required to be used for the
discounted future net cash flows do not include the effects of hedges and may not be representative of future selling
prices. The future net cash flow estimates could be materially different if other assumptions were used.
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United

At December 31 Total States Europe* Africa Asia
(Millions of dollars)
2010
Future revenues .. ...........oivuiunennnn. $91.336 $21,112  $36,157 $21,150 $12,917
Less:
Future production costs. . .. .............. 21,635 6,155 9,536 3,332 2,612
Future development costs . . .............. 13,554 3,178 6,534 1,269 2,573
Future income tax expenses .............. 30,250 4,423 11,745 12,173 1,909
65,439 13,756 27,815 16,774 7,094
Future net cashflows . . .. ................. 25,897 7,356 8,342 4,376 5,823
Less: discount at 10% annual rate. .. ......... 10,195 3,764 3,361 1,028 2,042
Standardized measure of discounted future net
cashflows . ........ ... i, $15702  $ 3,592 $4981 $ 3348 §$ 3,781
2009
FUuluUre TEVENUES + o« v v v v i e i e v e e e e e $65,.275  $14.047  $20,298 518,615  $12,315
Less:
Future production costs. . .. . ............. 18,336 4,037 7,289 4,154 2,856
Future development costs . .. ............. 11,041 2,532 3,829 1,798 2,882
Future income tax expenses . ............. 17,976 2,744 5,114 8,601 1,517
47,353 9,313 16,232 14,553 7,255
Futurenetcashflows . ......... ... ... . 17.922 4,734 4,066 4,062 5,060
Less: discount at 10% annual rate. . .......... 6,521 2,106 1,653 841 1,921
Standardized measure of discounted future net
cashflows .......... ... .. .. ... $11,401 $ 2,628 $ 2413 $ 3221 § 3139
2008
Future TEVEIMUES . . . o\ oo oot e oo ee e e $46,846 % 9,801 $15,757 $12,332 % 8,956
Less:
Future production costs. . . . .............. 15,884 3422 5,998 3,763 2,701
Future development costs .. .............. 10,649 1,983 4,014 1,781 2,871
Future income tax expenses .............. 9,299 1,467 2,741 4,440 651
35,832 6,872 12,753 9,984 6,223
Future netcashflows . .. .................. 11,014 2,929 3,004 2,348 2,733
Less: discount at 10% annual rate. . .......... 4,050 1.602 984 493 971
Standardized measuore of discounted future net
cashflows . ... ... ... ... . ., $694 $1,327 $2020 $ 185 § 1,762
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* fn 2010, the standardized measure of discounted fiture net cash flows relating to proved reserves in Norway were as follows (millions of

dollars):
FUIUPE FEVERHES . . . . .o ot e e e e e e $23,115
Less:
Future production cosIS . . . . L e e e e e 4,399
Future development Costs . .. ... .. .. . e e e e e e e e, 3,426
Frfure income t0X @XDENSES . . o o o v i et i e e e e e e e e e e 0,908
17,733
Future net cash fIows . . o o 0 i e e e e e e e e e e 5,382
Less: discount af TO0% annual rate . . . . 0 i e e e e e e e e e 2,156
Standardized measure of discounted future net cashiflows ... ... L s $ 322

Changes in Standardized Measuore of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows Relating to Proved 0il and Gas

Reserves
For the Years Ended December 31

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows at beginning of

FOAT © ot i e i e e e e e e e e e e

Changes during the year
Sales and transfers of oil and gas produced during the vear, net of

Production COSES. . . ... ot it e e e e
Development costs incurred during year . ... ...,

Net changes in prices and production costs applicable to future

Production . . . ... ot e e it
Net change in estimated future development costs . ................

Extensions and discoveries (including improved recovery) of oil and gas

reserves, less related COStS . . .. ... .. ...
Revisions of previous oil and gas reserve estimates. .. ..............
Net purchases (sales) of minerals in place, before income taxes .. ... ..
Accretion of discount ... ...... ... .. ... . i
Net change in income taxes . . ... ... ..ottt inn e onns
Revision in rate or timing of future production and other changes . . . ...

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows at end of year ..

2010 2009 2008
(Millions of dollars)
$11401 § 6964 § 21,905
(6,820) (5,030 (7,934)
2,592 1,927 2,523
7976 7,484 (28,627)
(1,678) 227y (1,056)
356 426 334
1,885 1,855 1,730
3,193 165 18
2,011 1,235 4,109
(5,848) (4,061) 13,859
640 663 103
4,301 4437 (14,941)
$15,702 511401 S 6,964

o7



HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

(Unaundited)
Quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31:
Sales and Net
Other Income (Loss} Diluted Net
Operating Gross Attributable to Income {Loss)
Revenues Profit(a) Hess Corporation per Share
(Million of dollars, except per share data)
2010
First. ... ... ... . ... ... ... ... $9,259 $1,395 $ 538(b) $1.65
Second........ ..o i, 7,732 1,093 375 115
Third .. ... ... ... ... 7,864 672 1,154(¢c) 3.52
Fourth ......... ... ... ... ... ..... 9,007 1,288 5§8(d) 18
2009
First .. ..o i $6,915 $ 533 $ (59)e) $(.18)
Second............. ... ... ..., 6,751 756 100(f) 31
Thisd . ... i i e e 7,270 832 341(g) 1.05
Fourth ... ...... ... ... ............ 8,678 1,282 358(h) 1.10

(a) Gross profit represents sales and other operating revenues, less cost of products sold, production expenses, marketing expenses, other
operating expenses, depreciation, depletion and amortization and asset impairments.

{b) Includes an after-tax gain of $58 million related 1o an asset sale, partially offset by an after-tax charge of $7 million related to the repurchase
of fixed-rate notes.

{c) Includes an after-tax gain of 31,072 million related 1o an asset exchange, partially offset by after-tax charges of $347 million related to an
assel impairment.

(d) Includes an after-tax charge of $289 million velating to the Corporation’s impairment of its equity investment in HOVENSA and an afier-tux
charge of $51 million related 1o dry hole costs.

(e) Includes after-tax charges of $13 million related to asset impairments in the United Kingdom North Sea and 316 million for retirement
benefits and emplovee severance costs.

(f) Includes after-tax charges of $31 million to reduce the carrying value of production equipment in the United Kingdom North Sea and
materials inventory in Equatorial Guinea and the United States.

(g) Includes after-tax gains of $101 million primarily relating to the resolution of a rovalty dispute.
(k) Includes affer-tax charges of $34 million for the repurchase of fixed-rate nores and $10 million for pension plan seftlements related to
employee retirements.
The results of operations for the periods reported herein should not be considered as indicative of future
operating results.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Based upon their evaluation of the Corporation’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) as of December 31, 2010, John B. Hess, Chief Executive Officer, and John P.
Rielly, Chief Financial Officer, concluded that these disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of
December 31, 2010.

There was no change in internal controls over financial reporting identified in the evaluation required by
paragraph {d) of Rules 13a-15 or 15d-15 in the quarter ended December 31, 2010 that has materially affected, oris
reasonably likely to materially affect, internal controls over financial reporting,.

Management’s report on internal control over financial reporting and the attestation report on the
Corporation’s internal controls over financial reporting are included in Item 8 of this annual report on Form 10-K.
Item 9B, Other Information

None.

PART 111

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Information relating to Directors is incorporated herein by reference to “Election of Directors” from the
Registrant’s definitive proxy statement for the annual meeting of stockholders to be held on May 4, 2011,

The Corporation has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics applicable to the Corporation’s directors,
officers (including the Corporation’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer) and employees. The
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is available on the Corporation’s website. In the event that we amend or waive
any of the provisions of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that relate to any element of the code of ethics
definition enumerated in Item 406(b) of Regulation S-K, we intend to disclose the same on the Corporation’s
website at www.hess.com.

Information relating to the audit committee is incorporated herein by reference to “Election of Directors™ from
the registrant’s definitive proxy statement for the annual meeting of stockholders to be held on May 4, 2011.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table presents information as of February 1, 2011 regarding executive officers of the Registrant:

Year Individual
Became an
Executive
Name Age Office Held* Officer
JohnB.Hess............c.ovuivun.. 56 Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive 1983
Officer and Director
Gregory PHill ............. ... ... .. 49  Executive Vice President and President of 2009
Worldwide Exploration and Production and
Director
F.Borden Walker ................... 57 Executive Vice President and President of 1996
Marketing and Refining and Director
Timothy B. Goodell. .. ............... 53 Senior Vice President and General Counsel 2009
Lawrence H. Omstein . ............... 59 Senior Vice President 1995
JohmPB Rielly ...................... 48  Senior Vice President and Chief Financial 2002
Officer
JohnJ. Scelfo . ...... ... .......... 53  Senior Vice President 2004
MykelJ. Ziolo.........ovvivnnnnn.. 58 Senior Vice President 2000
Robert M. Biglin. ................... 46  Vice President and Treasurer 2010

* Al officers referred to herein hold office in accordance with the By-Laws until the first meeting of the Directors following the annual meeting
of stockholders of the Registrant and until their successors shall have been duly chosen and qualified. Each of said officers was elected to the
office opposiie his name on May 5, 2010, except for Mr. Biglin, who was elected effective September 1, 2010. The first meeting of Directors
Jollowing the next annual meeting of stockholders of the Registrant is scheduled to be held May 4, 2011

Except for Messrs. Hill and Goodell, each of the above officers has been employed by the Registrant or its
subsidiaries in various managerial and executive capacities for more than five years. Prior to joining the
Corporation, Mr. Hill served in senior executive positions in exploration and production operations at Royal
Dutch Shell and its subsidiaries, where he was employed for 25 years. Before joining the Corporation in 2009,
Mr. Goodell was a partner in the law firm of White & Case LLP.

Item 11, Executive Compensation

- Information relating to executive compensation is incorporated herein by reference to “Election of
Directors — Executive Compensation and Other Information,” from the Registrant’s definitive proxy statement
for the annual meeting of stockholders to be held on May 4, 2011.

em 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

Information pertaining to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is incorporated
herein by reference to “Election of Directors — Qwnership of Voting Securities by Certain Beneficial Owners™ and
“Election of Directors — Ownership of Equity Securities by Management” from the Registrant’s definitive proxy
statement for the annual meeting of stockholders to be held on May 4, 2011.

See Equity Compensation Plans in Item 5 for information pertaining to securities authorized for issuance under
equity compensation plans.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Information relating to this item is incorporated herein by reference to “Election of Directors” from the
Registrant’s definitive proxy statement for the annual meeting of stockholders to be held on May 4, 2011.
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Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information relating to this item is incorporated by reference to “Ratification of Selection of Independent
Auditors” from the Registrant’s definitive proxy statement for the annual meeting of stockholders te be held on
May 4, 2011.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a) 1. and 2. Financial statements and financial statement schedules

The financial statements filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K are listed in the accompanying index
to financial statements and schedules in ltem 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

3. Exhibits

(1) Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant, including amendment thereto dated May 3, 2006
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 of Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the three months ended June 30,
2006.

3(2) By-Laws of Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Form 8-K of Registrant filed on
February 8, 2011.

41) Five-Year Credit Agreement dated as of December 10, 2004, as amended and restated as of May 12,

2006, among Registrant, certain subsidiaries of Registrant, J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. as lender
and administrative agent, and the other lenders party thereto, incorporated by reference to Exhibit(4)
of Form 10-Q of Registrant for the three months ended June 30, 2006.

4(2) Indenture dated as of October 1, 1999 between Registrant and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as
Trustee, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(1} of Form 10-Q of Registrant for the three months
ended September 30, 1999,

4(3) First Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 1, 1999 between Registrant and The Chase
Manhattan Bank, as Trustee, relating to Registrant’s 7%% Notes due 2009 and 774% Notes due 2029,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(2) to Form 10-Q of Registrant for the three months ended
September 30, 1999,

44 Prospectus Supplement dated August 8, 2001 to Prospectus dated July 27, 2001 relating to
Registrant’s 5.30% Notes due 2004, 5.90% Notes due 2006, 6.65% Notes due 2011 and
7.30% Notes due 2031, incorporated by reference to Registrant’s prospectus filed pursuant to
Rule 424(b)(2) under the Securities Act of 1933 on August 9, 2001.

4(5) Prospectus Supplement dated February 28, 2002 to Prospectus dated July 27, 2001 relating to
Registrant’s 7.125% Notes due 2033, incorporated by reference to Registrant’s prospectus filed
pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2) under the Securities Act of 1933 on March 1, 2002.

4(6) Indenture dated as of March 1, 2006 between Registrant and The Bank of New York Melion as
successor to JP Morgan Chase, as Trustee, including form of Note. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4 to Registrant’s Form S-3ASR filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 1, 2006.

4N Form of 2014 Note issued pursuant to Indenture, dated as of March 1, 2006, among Registrant and
The Bank of New York Mellon, as successor to JP Morgan Chase as Trustee. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4(1) to Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on February 4, 2009.

4(8) Form of 2019 Note issued pursuant to Indenture, dated as of March 1, 2006, among Registrant and
The Bank of New York Mellon, as successor to JP Morgan Chase, as Trustee. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4(2) to Registrant’'s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on February 4, 2009,

4(9) Form of 6.00% Note, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(1) to the Form 8-K of Registrant filed on
December 15, 2009.

101



4(10)

10(1)

10(2)

10(3)

10(4)

10(5)*
10(6)*
10(7y%
10(8)*
10(9)*

10(10)*

1001 1)*

10(12)*

10(13)*

10(14y*

10(15)*
10(16)*

10(1DH*

Form of 5.60% Note incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(1) to the Form 8-K of Registrant filed on
August 12, 2010, Other instruments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt of Registrant and
its consolidated subsidiaries are not being filed since the total amount of securities authorized under
each such instrument does not exceed 10 percent of the total assets of Registrant and its subsidiaries
on a consolidated basis. Registrant agrees to furnish to the Commission a copy of any instruments
defining the rights of holders of long-term debt of Registrant and its subsidiaries upon request.

Extension and Amendment Agreement between the Government of the Virgin Islands and Hess Qil
Virgin Islands Corp. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(4) of Form 10-Q of Registrant for the
three months ended June 30, 1981.

Restated Second Extension and Amendment Agreement dated July 27, 1990 between Hess Oil Virgin
Islands Corp. and the Government of the Virgin Islands incorporated by reference to Exhibit 19 of
Form 10-Q of Registrant for the three months ended September 30, 1990.

Technical Clarifying Amendment dated as of November 17, 1993 to Restated Second Extension and
Amendment Agreement between the Government of the Virgin Islands and Hess Oil Virgin Islands
Corp. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10¢3) of Form 10-K of Registrant for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1993.

Third Extension and Amendment Agreement dated April 15, 1998 and effective October 30, 1998
among Hess Oil Virgin Istands Corp., PDVSA VI, Inc., HOVENSA L.L.C. and the Government of
the Virgin Islands incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(4} of Form 10-K of Registrant for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1998.

Incentive Cash Bonus Plan description incorporated by reference to ftem 5.02 of Form 8-K of
Registrant filed on February 8, 2011.

Financial Counseling Program description incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(6) of Form 10-K
of Registrant for fiscal year ended December 31, 2004.

Hess Corporation Savings and Stock Bonus Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(7) of
Form 10-K of Registrant for fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.

Performance Incentive Plan for Senior Officers, incorporated by reference to Exhibit (10} of
Form 10-Q of Registrant for the three months ended June 30, 2006.

Hess Corporation Pension Restoration Plan dated January 19, 1990 incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(9) of Form 10-K of Registrant for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1989.

Amendment dated December 31, 2006 to Hess Corporation Pension Restoration Phan incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(10) of Form 10-K of Registrant for fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.

Letter Agreement dated May 17, 2001 between Registrant and John P. Rielly relating to Mr. Rielly’s
participation in the Hess Corporation Pension Restoration Plan, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(18) of Form 10-K of Registrant for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002,

Second Amended and Restated 1995 Long-Term Incentive Plan, including forms of awards
thereunder incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(11) of Form 10-K of Registrant for fiscal
year ended December 31, 2004.

2008 Long Term Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Annex B to Registrant’s definitive
proxy statement filed on March 27, 2008.

First Amendment dated March 3, 2010 and approved May 5, 2010 to Registrant’s 2008 Long-Term
Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Registrant’s definitive proxy statement dated March 25,
2010.

Forms of Awards under Registrant’s 2008 Long Term Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(14) of Registrant’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009,

Compensation program description for non-employee directors, incorporated by reference to
Item 1.01 of Form 8-K of Registrant filed on January 4, 2007.

Amended and Restated Change of Control Termination Benefits Agreement dated as of May 29, 2009
between Registrant and F. Borden Walker, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(1) of Form 10-Q
of Registrant for the three months ended June 30, 2009. A substantially identical agreement (differing
only in the signatories thereto) was entered into between Registrant and John B. Hess.
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10(18)*

10(19)*

10(20)*

10(21)*

10(22)*

10(23)
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21
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32(2)
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101(LAB)
101(PRE)
101(DEF)

Change of Control Termination Benefits Agreement dated as of May 29, 2009 between Registrant
and John P. Rielly incorporated by reference to Exhibit 13(17) of Registrant’s Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2009. Substantially identical agreements (differing only in the
signatories thereto) were entered into between Registrant and other executive officers (including the
named executive officers, other than those referred to in Exhibit 10(17)).

Letter Agreement dated March 18, 2002 between Registrant and F. Borden Waiker relating to
Mr. Walker’s participation in the Hess Corporation Pension Restoration Plan incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10{16) of Form 10-K of Registrant for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001.
Agreement between Registrant and Gregory P. Hill relating to his compensation and other terms of
employment, incorporated by reference to Item 5.02 of Form 8-K of Registrant filed January 7, 2009.

Agreement between Registrant and Timothy B. Goodell relating to his compensation and other terms
of employment incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(20) of Registrant’s Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2009,

Deferred Compensation Plan of Registrant dated December 1, 1999 incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(16) of Form 10-K of Registrant for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999.

Asset Purchase and Contribution Agreement dated as of October 26, 1998, among PDVSA VL., Inc.,
Hess Qil Virgin Islands Corp. and HOVENSA L.L.C. (including Glossary of definitions)
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Form 8-K of Registrant filed on November 13, 1998,

Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of HOVENSA L.L.C. dated as of
October 30, 1998 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Form 8-K of Registrant filed on
November 13, 1998.

Subsidiaries of Registrant.

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, dated February 25,
2011, to the incorporation by reference in Registrant's Registration Statements (Form S-3
No. 333-157606, and Form S-8 Nos. 333-43569, 333-94851, 333-115844, 333-150992 and
333-167076), of its reports relating to Registrant’s financial statements.

Consent of DeGolyer and MacNaughton dated February 25, 2011.

Certification required by Rule [3a-14¢a) (17 CFR 240.13a-14(a)) or Rule 15d-14(a) (17 CFR
240.15d-14(a)).

Certification required by Rule 13a-14(a} (17 CFR 240.13a-14{a)) or Rule 15d-14(a) (17 CFR
240.15d-14(a)).

Certification required by Rule 13a-14(b) (17 CFR 240.13a-14(b)) or Rule 13d-14(b) (17 CFR
240.15d-14(b)) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code {18 U.5.C.
1350).

Certification required by Rule 13a-14(b) (17 CFR 240.13a-14(b)} or Rule 15d-14(b) (17 CFR
240.15d-14(b)) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code (18 U.S.C.
1350).

Letter report of DeGolyer and MacNaughton, Independent Petroleum Engineering Consulting Firm,
dated February 2, 2011, on proved reserves andit as of December 31, 2010 of certain properties
attributable to Registrant.

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Schema Document

XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document
XBRL Label Linkbase Document
XBRI. Presentation Linkbase Document
XBRL Definition Linkbase Document

*  These exhibits relate to executive compensation plans and arrangements.
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(b) Reports on Form 8-K

During the three months ended December 31, 2010, Registrant filed or furnished the following reporis on
Form 8-K:

1. Filing dated October 27, 2010 reporting under Items 2.02 and 9.01, a news release dated October 27,
2010 reporting results for the third quarter of 2010.

2, Filing dated November 8, 2010 reporting under Item 2.01, exhibits of opinions of White & Case LLP
as to the legality of notes registered on Form S-3ASR and incorporated by reference therein.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, on the 25th day of February 2011.

HESS CORPORATION
(Registrant)

By /s/  Joun P. RLpLy

(John P. Rielly)
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/  Jonn B. Hess Director, Chairman of the Board and Chief February 25, 2011
John B. Hess Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
{3/ SamueL W. BopmaN Director February 25, 2011
Samuel W, Bodman
/s/  NicoLas F. Brapy Director February 25, 2Gi1
Nicholas F. Brady
/s/  Grecory P. HiLL Director February 25, 2011
Gregory P. Hill
/s/  Eprma E. HoLmay Director February 25, 2011
Edith E. Holiday
/s/  Tuomas H. KEan Director February 25, 2011
Thomas H. Kean
/s/  Risa Lavezzo-Mourey Director February 25, 2011
Risa Lavizzo-Mourey
/s Craig G. MATTHEWS Director February 25, 2011
Craig G. Matthews
/s Joun H. MuLLin Director February 25, 2011
John H. Mullin
/s/  Frank A, QOLSON Director February 25, 2011
Frank A. Olson
/s/ Jonn P, RiELLy Senior Vice President and Chief February 25, 2011
John P. Rielly Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s!  ErnsT H. voN METZsCH Director February 25, 2011
Ernst H. von Metzsch
/s/ F. BoRDEN WALKER Director February 25, 2011
F. Borden Walker ‘
/s/  RoBerT N, WiLson Director February 25, 2011

Robert N. Wilson
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Schedule I

HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008

Additions
Charged
to Costs Charged Deductions
Balance and to Other from Balance
Description January 1 Expenses  Accounts Reserves December 31
{In millions)}
2010
Losses onreceivables . ................. $ 54 § 9 3 1 $ 6 $ 58
2009
Losses on recejvables . ................. $ 46 $ 13 $ — 3 5 3 54
2008
Losses on teceivables . ................. $ 41 § 9 $ — 8§ 4 $ 46
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3(1)

3(2)

4(1)

42)

4(3)

44)

4(5)

4(6)

H7)

4(8)

4(9)

4(10)

1)

102)

1%(3)

EXHIBIT INDEX

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant, including amendment thereto dated May 3, 2006
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 of Registrant’s Form 10-Q} for the three months ended June 30,
2006.

By-Laws of Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Form 8-K of Registrant filed on
February 8, 2011.

Five-Year Credit Agreement dated as of December 10, 2004, as amended and restated as of May 12,
2006, among Registrant, certain subsidiaries of Registrant, I.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. as lender
and administrative agent, and the other lenders party thereto, incorporated by reference to Exhibit(4)
of Form 10-Q of Registrant for the three months ended June 30, 2006.

Indenture dated as of October 1, 1999 between Registrant and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as
Trustee, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(1) of Form 10-Q of Registrant for the three months
ended September 30, 1999,

First Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 1, 1999 between Registrant and The Chase
Manhattan Bank, as Trustee, relating to Registrant’s 7%% Notes due 2009 and 7%% Notes due 2029,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(2) to Form 10-Q of Registrant for the three months ended
September 30, 1999.

Prospectus Supplement dated August 8, 2001 to Prospectus dated July 27, 2001 relating to
Registrant’s 5.30% Notes due 2004, 5.90% Notes due 2006, 6.65% Notes due 2011 and
7.30% Notes due 2031, incorporated by reference to Registrant’s prospectus filed pursuant to
Rule 424(b)(2) under the Securities Act of 1933 on August 9, 2001.

Prospectus Supplement dated February 28, 2002 to Prospectus dated July 27, 2001 relating to
Registrant’s 7.125% Notes due 2033, incorporated by reference to Registrant’s prospectus filed
pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2) under the Securities Act of 1933 on March 1, 2002.

Indenture dated as of March 1, 2006 between Registrant and The Bank of New York Mellon as
successor to JP Morgan Chase, as Trustee, including form of Note. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4 to Registrant’s Form S-3ASR filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 1, 2006.

Form of 2014 Note issued pursuant to Indenture, dated as of March 1, 2006, among Registrant and
The Bank of New York Mellon, as successor to JP Morgan Chase as Trostee. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4(1) to Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on February 4, 2009.

Form of 2019 Note issued pursvant to Indenture, dated as of March 1, 2006, among Registrant and
The Bank of New York Mellon, as successor to JP Morgan Chase, as Trustee, Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4(2) to Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on Febmary 4, 2009,

Form of 6.00% Note, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(1) to the Form 8-K of Registrant filed on
December 15, 2009.

Form of 5.60% Note incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(1) to the Form 8-K of Registrant filed on
August 12, 2010. Other instruments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt of Registrant and
its consolidated subsidiaries are not being filed since the total amount of securities authorized under
each such instrument does not exceed 10 percent of the total assets of Registrant and its subsidiaries
on a consolidated basis. Registrant agrees to furnish to the Commission a copy of any instruments
defining the rights of holders of long-term debt of Registrant and its subsidiaries upon request.

Extension and Amendment Agreement between the Government of the Virgin [slands and Hess Qil
Virgin Islands Corp. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(4) of Form 10-Q of Registrant for the
three months ended June 30, 1981.

Restated Second Extension and Amendment Agreement dated July 27, 1990 between Hess Oil Virgin
Islands Corp. and the Government of the Virgin Islands incorporated by reference to Exhibit 19 of
Form 10-Q of Registrant for the three months ended September 30, 1990.

Technical Clarifying Amendment dated as of November 17, 1993 to Restated Second Extension and
Amendment Agreement between the Government of the Virgin Islands and Hess Oil Virgin Islands
Corp. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(3) of Form 10-K of Registrant for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1993,



10(4)

10(5)*
10(6)*
10(7)*
10(8)*
10(9)*
10(10)*

10(11)*

10(12)*

10(13)*

10(14)*

10(15)*
10(16)*

10(17)*

10(18)*

10(19)*

10(20)*

10(21)*

10(22)*

10(23)

Third Extension and Amendment Agreement dated April 15, 1998 and effective October 30, 1998
among Hess Oil Virgin Islands Corp., PDVSA V1., Inc., HOVENSA L1.C. and the Government of
the Virgin Islands incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(4) of Form 10-K of Registrant for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1998,

Incentive Cash Bonus Plan description incorporated by reference to Item 5.02 of Form 8-K of
Registrant filed on February 8, 2011.

Financial Counseling Program description incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(6) of Form 10-K
of Registrant for fiscal year ended December 31, 2004,

Hess Corporation Savings and Stock Bonus Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(7) of
Form 10-K of Registrant for fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.

Performance Incentive Plan for Semior Officers, incorporated by reference to Exhibit (10) of
Form 10-Q of Registrant for the three months ended June 30, 2006.

Hess Corporation Pension Restoration Plan dated January 19, 1990 incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10{9) of Form 10-K of Registrant for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1989.

Amendment dated December 31, 2006 to Hess Corporation Pension Restoration Plan incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(10) of Form 10-K of Registrant for fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.

Letter Agreement dated May 17, 2001 between Registrant and John P. Rielly relating to Mr. Rielly’s
participation in the Hess Corporation Pension Restoration Plan, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(18) of Form 10-K of Registrant for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

Second Amended and Restated 1995 Long-Term Incentive Plan, including forms of awards
thereunder incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(11) of Form 10-K of Registrant for fiscal
year ended December 31, 2004,

2008 Long Term Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Annex B to Registrant’s definitive
proxy statement filed on March 27, 2008,

First Amendment dated March 3, 2010 and approved May 5, 2010 to Registrant’s 2008 Long-Term
Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Registrant’s definitive proxy statement dated March 253,
2010.

Forms of Awards under Registrant’s 2008 Long Term Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(14) of Registrant’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009.

Compensation program description for non-employee directors, incorporated by reference 1o
Item 1.01 of Form 8-K of Registrant filed on January 4, 2007.

Amended and Restated Change of Control Termination Benefits Agreement dated as of May 29, 2009
between Registrant and F, Borden Walker, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(1) of Form 10-Q
of Registrant for the three months ended June 30, 2009. A substantially identical agreement (differing
only in the signatories thereto) was entered into between Registrant and John B. Hess.

Change of Control Termination Benefits Agreement dated as of May 29, 2009 between Registrant
and John P. Rielly incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(17) of Registrant’s Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2009. Substantially identical agreements (differing only in the
signatories thereto) were entered into between Registrant and other executive officers (including the
named executive officers, other than those referred to in Exhibit 10(17)).

Letier Agreement dated March 18, 2002 between Registrant and F. Borden Walker relating to
Mr, Walker's participation in the Hess Corporation Pension Restoration Plan incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(16) of Form 10-K of Registrant for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001.

Agreement between Registrant and Gregory P. Hill relating to his compensation and other terms of
employment, incorporated by reference to Item 5.02 of Form 8-K of Registrant filed January 7, 2009.

Agreement between Registrant and Timothy B. Goodell relating to his compensation and other terms
of employment incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(20) of Registrant’s Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2009.

Deferred Compensation Plan of Registrant dated December 1, 1999 incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(16) of Form 10-K of Registrant for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999,

Asset Purchase and Contribution Agreement dated as of October 26, 1998, among PDVSAVI,, Inc.,
Hess Oil Virgin Islands Corp. and HOVENSA LL.C. (including Glossary of definitions)
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Form 8-K of Registrant filed on November 13, 1998.
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Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of HOVENSA L.L.C. dated as of
QOctober 30, 1998 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Form 8-K of Registrant filed on
November 13, 1998,

Subsidiaries of Registrant.

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, dated February 25,
2011, to the incorporation by reference in Registrant’s Registration Statements (Form S-3
No. 333-157606, and Form 5-8 Nos. 333-43569, 333-94851, 333-115844, 333-150992 and
333-167076), of its reports relating to Registrant’s financial statements.

Consent of DeGolyer and MacNaughton dated February 25, 2011.

Certification required by Rule 13a-14(a) (17 CFR 240.13a-14(a)) or Rule 15d-14(a) (17 CFR
240.15d-14(a)).

Certification required by Rule 13a-14(a) (17 CFR 240.13a-14(a)) or Rule 15d-14(a) (17 CFR
240.15d-14(a}).

Certification required by Rule 13a-14(b) (17 CFR 240.13a-14(b)) or Rule 15d-14(b) (17 CFR
240.15d-14(b)) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code (18 U.S.C.
1350).

Certification required by Rule 13a-14(b) (17 CFR 240.13a-14(b)) or Rule 15d-14(b) (17 CFR
240.15d-14(b)) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Coxde (18 U.S.C.
1350).

Letter report of DeGolyer and MacNaughton, Independent Petroleum Engineering Consulting Firm,
dated February 2, 2011, on proved reserves audit as of December 31, 2010 of certain properties
attributable to Registrant.

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL. Schema Docuoment

XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document
XBRL Label Linkbase Document
XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document
XBRL Definition Linkbase Document

* These exhibits relate to executive compensation plans and arrangemenis.



EXHIBIT 21

HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Name of Company Jurisdiction
Hess (Luxembourg) Exploration and Production Holding S.arl. ... .. ... ... ... .. ... Luxembourg
Hess (Netherlands) Qil & Gas Holdings C.V. .. ... . ... . . i i The Netherlands
Hess (Netherlands) U.S. GOM Ventures B.V . ........ ... .. ... .. . i, The Netherlands
Hess Capital Services Corporation . .. . ... .. ittt enrneanns Delaware

Hess Egypt West Mediterranean Limited . ........ ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... Cayman Islands
Hess Energy Exploration Limited . . . .. ... i i e e e Delaware

Hess Equatorial Guinea Inc. ... .. ... ... ... i i i e Cayman Islands
Hess International Holdings Corporation. . .. ... ... ... ... ... .. ... . . urven-.. Delaware

Hess International Holdings Limited. .. . ... .. ..ot e e Cayman Islands
Hess Libya {(Waha) Limited . . . ... ... . i i it e e e s Cayman Islands
Hess Limited . . . . . oo .o i i e e e United Kingdom
Hess NOTge AS Lo oL e e e e e Norway

Hess Qil and Gas Holdings Inc. ... ... . . . i i i e e e e e Cayman Islands
Hess Oil Company of Thailand JDA)Y Limited . . .. ... ... ... ... .. i iiiiiinn.s Cayman Islands
Hess Qil Virgin Islands Corp. . ... ... i it e i e e ie e eenas Virgin Islands
Hess UK Investments Limited . ... ... ... . .. .. i e i Cayman Islands
Hess West Africa Holdings Limited . ... ... .. .. .. ... .. .. .. .. .. . . Cayman Islands

Other subsidiaries (names omifted becavse such unnamed subsidiaries, considered in the aggregate as a single
subsidiary, would not constitute a significant subsidiary).

Each of the foregoing subsidiaries conducts business under the name listed, and is 100% owned by the
Registrant.



EXHIBIT 23(1)

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement (Form 5-8 No. 333-43569) pertaining to the Hess Corporation Employees’
Savings Plan,

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-94851) pertaining to the Hess Corporation Amended and
Restated 1995 Long-Term Incentive Plan,

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-115844) pertaining to the Hess Corporation Second
Amended and Restated 1995 Long-Term Incentive Plan,

(4) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-150992) pertaining to the Hess Corporation 2008 Long-
Term Incentive Plan,

(5) Registration Statemnent (Form S-8 No. 333-167076) pertaining to the Hess Corporation 2008 Long-
Term Incentive Plan, and

(6) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-157606) of Hess Corporation;

of our reports dated February 25, 2011, with respect to the consolidated financial statements and schedule of Hess
Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Hess
Corporation, included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Samt + MLLP

New York, New York
February 25, 2011



EXHIBIT 23(2)

DeGeolyer and MacNaughton
5001 Spring Valley Road
Suite 800 East
Dallas, Texas 75244

February 25, 2011

Hess Corporation
1185 Avenue of the Americas
New York, New York 10036

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We hereby consent to the use of the name DeGolyer and MacNaughton, to references to DeGolyer and
MacNaughton as an independent petroleum engineering consulting firm, under the heading “Qil and Gas Reserves-
Reserves Audit” and to the inclusion of our third party letter report dated February 2, 2011, containing our opinion
on the proved reserves attributable to certain properties owned by Hess Corporation, as of December 3t, 2010, (our
“Report™) as an exhibit in Hess Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010,
We also consent to the incorporation by reference of our Report in the Registration Statements filed by Hess
Corporation on Form S-3 (No. 333-157606) and Form S-8 (No. 333-43569, No. 333-94851, No. 333-115844,
No. 333-150992 and No. 333-167076). '

Very truly yours,

A ATl

DEGOLYER AND MACNAUGHTON




Exhibit 31(1)
I, John B. Hess, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Hess Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information refating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our superviston, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financtal reporting; and

3. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board
of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

3&6.%

John B. Hess
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 25, 2011



Exhibit 31(2)
I, John P. Rielly, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-X of Hess Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
staternents were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 132-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

{a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

(¢c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

{d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board
of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a} All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

{b) Any frand, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting,

S

John P. Rielly
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 25, 2011



Exhibit 32(1)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION %06 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Hess Corporation (the Corporation) on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 2010 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the Report), I,
John B. Hess, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or £5(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Corporation.

8%6.%%

John B. Hess
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 25, 201t



Exhibit 32(2)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION %06 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Hess Corporation (the Corporation) on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 2010 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the Report), I,
John P. Rielly, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15¢(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended; and

{2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Corporation.

o

John P. Rielly
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 25, 2011
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS

Amaounts in milliong, except per share data

FINANCIAL - FOR THE YEAR

Sales and other operating revenues

Net income attributable to Hess Corporation
Net income per share diluted

Comman stock dividends per share

Net cash provided by operating activities
Capital and exploratory expenditures

Weighted average diluted shares outstanding

FINANCIAL — AT YEAR END
Total assets

Total debt

Total equity

Debt to capitalization ratio®

Common stock price

OPERATING -~ FOR THE YEAR
Production - net
Crude oil and natural gas liquids (thousands of barrels per day)
United States

Internaticnal

Total

2008

$ 41,134
$ 2,360
$ 7.24
$ 40
$ 4,688
$ 4,828

325.8

$ 28,589
$ 3,955
$ 12,391
24.2%
$ 53.64

42
224
266

Natural gas {thousands of Mcf per day)
United States

International

Total

Barrels of oil equivalent {thousands of barrels per day)
Marketing and Refining (thousands of barrels per day)
Refining crude runs—HOVENSA L.L.C.?

Refined products sold

{a) Total debt as a percentage of the sum of total debt and total equity.
(b) Reflects the Corporation’s 50% share of HOVENSA' crude runs.

See Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results.

78
611
689
381

221
472



LETTER TO
STOCKHOLDERS

In 2009, our company delivered strong financial and
operational performance in a chalienging economic
environment and generated earnings of $740
million, or $2.27 per share. While our earnings were
lower than the previous year, our results reflected

a significant increase in production, successful
cost reduction efforts and crude oll prices that rose
thraughout the year.

As in the past, we continued 1o execute our strategy
to generate sustainable growth over the long term in
Exploration and Production and operate Marketing
and Refining for current returns and free cash flow.

Exploration and Production, which earned $1.04
billign, had outstanding growth in production, which
rose 7 percent to 408,000 barrels of ¢il equivalent
per day. We replaced 103 percent of production

at a finding, development and acquisition: cost of
about $20 per barref of oit equivalent. At year end,
our proved reserves were 1.44 hillion barrels of il
equivalent and our reserve life was 9.5 years.

Marketing and Refining earned $127 million by
reducing costs and increasing efficiency in a difficult
economy. Refining was negatively impacted by

lower margins. Energy Marketing had a strong
performance with higher sales than the previous year.
Retail Marketing had reduced margins and gasoline
volumes, but these were partially offset by an 11
percent increase in convenience store sales.

We are fortunate to have an attractive portfolic

of investment oppertunities to deliver sustainable
growth in our reserves and production. For 2010,
our capital and exploratory budget is $4.1 billion,
with substantially all of it targeted to Exploration and
Production; $2.4 billion budgeted for production
operations, $800 miltion for developments and

$850 million for exploration.

We plan to invest about $1 bilfion per year over the
next five years in the Bakken shale play in North
Dakota to boost net production from 11,000 barrels
of oil equivalent per day currently to 80,000 barrels of
¢il equivalent per day in 2015. We also announced a
strategic trade with Shell to increase our interests in
the Valhall and Hod fields in Nerway in exchange for
Hess' share in the Clair Field in the United Kingdom
and all of our interests in Gabon.

EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION -

—Higher production in 2009 was underpinned —_
by strong volumes from the Shenzi Field in the
deepwater Gulf of Mexico, a full year of Phase 2
natural gas sales at the Malaysia/Thailand JDA and
overall solid operating performance.

We advanced several key developments in our
global portfelio throughout the year, including the
Vathall redevelopment and gas [ift projects, offshore



development at Ujung Pangkah in Indonesia, front-
end engineering and design for the Tioga Gas Plant
expansion in North Dakota and development aptions
for the Pony Field in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico.

in exploration, we strengthenad our future growth
options with continued success at our 100 percent
owned WA-380-P Block offshore Australia, where in
2009 we drilled seven wells, six of which were natural
gas discoveries. In offshore Libya, we successfully
tested the A1 discovery well on our 100 percent
owned Area 54 license and subsequently drilled and
successfully tested an appraisat well.

MARKETING AND REFINING

Our financial results in Marketing and Refining were
lower in 200¢ than the previous year as the weak
econemy had a negative impact on our business,
particularly in refining, where cur HOVENSA joint
ventura experienced losses from significantly lowar
distillate crack spreads and narrower light/heavy
crude oil differentials.

Energy Marketing, which provides energy to more
than 18,000 commercial and industrial customers
in the eastern United States, generated continued
growth with increased sales of natural gas, fuel oil
and electricity.

Retail Marketing, which has 1,357 gasoline and
convenience stores along the East Coast of the U.S.,
experienced a decline in fuel volumes and margins
but an increase in convenience store sales, which
were bolstered by the continued roll-out of Dunkin'
Donuts offerings.

SAFETY AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In 2009, our safety performance_improved for the
fifth consecutive year as we reduced our combined
employee and contractor incident rate by nearly 25
percent. This progress is a resuit of the engagement
of our entire work force and the success of cur
management systems.

QOur company is committed to¢ making a long-lasting
positive impact on the communities where we

operate. Qur educational partnership in Equatorial
Guinea is helping transform primary education across
the nation through model schoois and teacher
training, with 800 teachers enrolled in a two-year
certification course graduating in early 2010. In Libya,
we started work with the National Qil Corporation
and Partners Harvard Medical International on a
program to address the high rate of diabetes in the
ceuntry, concentrating on disease prevention and
treatment and the training of medical personnel. In
5t. Lucia, we partnered with the International

Medical Corps to assess the needs of St. Jude
Hospital following a devastating fire. We contributed
initial emergency supplies and developed a long
term plan to provide equipment and medical training.

Hess recsived significant recognition last year for

our efforts to build a sustainable enterprise. We
were honored to receive the Besponsible CEC of
the Year Award from CRQO Magazine, achieve a
grade of A+ by the Global Reporting Initiative for our
annual Sustainability Report and rank in the Carbor
Disclosure Project Global 500 Leadership index.

We deeply appreciate the hard work and dedication
of our employees to build a company that has

the speed, agility and entrepreneurial spirit of an
independent and the global reach of companies
many times our size. We are grateful, as always, for
the outstanding advice and guidance of our Board
of Directors. We especially want to thank you, our
stockholders, for your continued interest and suppaort.

3%6.4@“

John B. Hess —
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

March 3, 2010
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PRODUCTION

In 2009, net production averaged 408,000 barrels
of ¢il eguivalent per day, up frcm 381,000 barrels
of cil equivalent per day in 2008. This increase
resulted from the start-up of the Shenzi Fisld in
the deepwater Gulf of Mexice, higher production
at the Malaysia/Thaiiand Joint Develcpment Area
{UDA) and strong operating performance across
the porttolio.

in the United States, the Shenzi Fieid (Hess 28%)
achieved first preduction in March and ended the
year strongly with net production of nearty 40,000
barrels of cil equivalent per day. The Conger Fisld,
which is also in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico,
recovered from 2008 hurricane damage and with
the addition of two wells ended 2009 producing
16,000 net barrels of oil equivalent per day. During
the year, we continued to build our position in the
North Dakcta Bakken shale play. We increased
our land holdings, drilled 33 wells and raised our
net production to more than 11,000 barrels of cil
equivalent per day at year end.

In the Malaysia/Thailand JDA, a full year of Phase
2 natural gas sales was achieved at Block A-18
(Hess 50%). Net natural gas sates from the block
reached 319 million cubic feet per day in December.
In Russia, continued development drilling in
conjunction with strong reservoir performance
enabled production to achieve peak rates of 40,000
barrels of oil equivalent per day at year end.

In December, the company announced a strategic
asset trade with Shell through which Hess will
assume Shell’s 28 percent interest in the Valhall
Field and 25 percent interest in the sateflite Hod
Field in Norway. In return, Shell will assume Hess’
9 percent interest in the Clair Field in the United
Kingdom and all of Hess' interests in Gabon.

DEVELOPMENT

In North America, the company continued the
development of the Residual Oil Zone at the
Seminole San Andres Unit {Hess 34%) in the
Permian Basin in West Texas with the expansion

of the Seminole gas plant and the development

of the West Bravo Dome CO, Field. The company
also completed front end engineering and design
(FEED} for the Ticga gas plant expansion associated
with the Bakken oil shale development in the
Williston Basin in North Dakota.

At the Hess operated Pony Field (Hess 100%),

in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico, we completed
FEED for the topsides, hull and subsea equipment
and continued discussions on a joint operating
agreement with the Knotty Head partnership in the
adjacent block to the south. In 2010, the company
plans to drill an additional appraisal well on Green
Canyon Block 469 to test the eastern extent of the
Pony structure.



In Indenesia, the company commissioned the
Ujung Pangkah tiquefied petroleum gas processing
facility (Hess 75%) during the first guarter while
progressing the offshors development via a
second wellhead platform and production and
utility platforms,

In the Norwegian North Sea, the company approved
the Valhall Flank Gas Lift project (Hess 28%) that

is advancing in parallel with the ongoing Valhall
Redevelopment. The redevelopment project
achieved major milestones in 2009 with installation
of the new jacket and cngoing fabrication of the
main deck and personnel accommodations.

EXPLORATION

In 2002, Hess acquired new acreage in the United
States, Indonesia, Australia and Norway which
builds upon existing positions and adds significant
exploration opportunities to the portfolio. Of
particular note were the acquisition of more than
80,000 net acres in the Marcellus unconventional
shale gas play in northeastern-Pennsylvania and the
awarding of the South Sesulu Block in Indonesia.

2009 was another active year for exploration and
appraisal drilling and resulted in successful wells
in Australia, Malaysia, Libya, the United Kingdom

and Peru. In Australia, the second phase of drilling
on the 100 percent owned WA-320-P Block
commenced with seven wells being drilled, six

of which resulted in natural gas discoveries.

.In total, 11 exploration wells have now been

drilled on the license, nine of which have
discovered gas accumulations. Exploration
drilling alsc commenced on the nearby WA-404-P
Block (Hess 50%) with a gas discovery on the
Martell prospect. Exploration drilling will continue
in 2010 on both Australia licenses in parallel

with analysis of commercialization opticns.

In Libya the A1-54/01 discovery on the Arcus
Al-Bahar prospect in 2,800 feet of water was
re-entered and successfully tested utilizing the
newly built Stena Forth driliship, which is under
long term contract to Hess. The rig then drilled
and successfully tested the down-dip appraisal
well A2-54/01.

In Brazil two wells were drilled on the BM-5-22
License (Hess 40%) in 7,000 feet of water; the
Azulao well resulted in the filing of a notice of
discovery and the Guarani well wasexpensed.
A third well on the license is planned in 2010,

In addition, exploitation drilling continued in 2010
with successful activity in the United Kingdom,
Russia and onshore Libya.
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REFINING

QOur HOVENSA joint venture refinery in the United
States Virgin Islands is one of the largest in the
world. Jointly owned by Hess and Petroleos de
Venezuela S.A., the facility is strategically positicned
and enjoys strong economies of scale.

The refinery has 500,000 barrels per day of crude
distillation capacity and a 150,000 barrel per day
fluid catalytic cracking unit {FCC), which allows it to
make significant volumes of high-quality gasoline
and distillates. In addition, the refinery has a 58,000
barrel per day delayed coking unit, which enables
the refinery to process' lower-cost heavy crude oils.
Gross crude runs at the refinery averaged 402,000
barrels per day in 2009 versus 441,000 barrels per
day in 2008. Lower crude runs in 2009 reflected
the weak margin environment and unplannad
maintenance during the year.

Our Port Reading, New Jersey FCC facility located
near New York Harbor produces gasoline and fuel
oil primarily for markets in the Northeast United
States. The facility averaged feedstock runs of
about 63,000 barrels per day in 2009 versus
64,000 barrels per day in 2008,

SUPPLY & TERMINALS

Hess operates a network of 20 refined product
terminals on the East Coast of the United States,
as weil as an cil storage facility in St. Lucia.

Cur East Ceast terminals provide the company

a competitive advantage in the supply of refined
products to our Retail and Energy Marketing
businesses. Third-party utilization of our storage
tanks was high throughout the year, generating
incremental revenue for the Hess terminal network,

in 2009, Hess terminals in Baltimore, Maryland
and in Syracuse, New York added renewable fuels
blending capability, and our marine bunker fuels
business added a port location in Charleston,
South Carolina.

ENERGY MARKETING

Hess Energy Marketing is a major supplier of natural
gas, fuel oil and electricity to commercial, industrial
and utility customers in the Eastern United States.

In 2009, natural gas volumes increased by nearly
3 percent and electricity volumas increased by
more than 36 percent compared with 2008. Strong
customer relationships and multi-commodity
product offerings position Hess Energy Marksting
for continued growth.

RETAIL MARKETING

Hess is the leading independent gasoline
convenience store retailer on the East Coast
with 1,357 Hess branded locations.

Annual convenience store revenues in 2002,
excluding petroleum products, were approximately
$1.2 billion, an increase of more than 10 percent
from 2008. During the year, the company acquired
11 gasoline-convenience stores in Cape Cod,
increasing our market presence in Massachusetts.
We expanded our Dunkin' Donuts offering to 367
Hess and WilcoHess locations by the end of 2009.

13
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Our company is committed to meeting the global
demand for energy in a manner that safequards the
health and safety of cur employees, preserves the
environment and makes a sustainable and positive
impact on the communities where we operate.

In 2009, we improved our safety performance for
the fifth consecutive year, reducing our combined
employee and contractor safety incident rate

by nearly 25 percent. Our safety and health
management systems support cur commitment
to continuous improvement.

We made progress on climate change by setting

a greenhouse gas intensity reduction target for
2013 that is 20 percent below the 2008 baseline
for cur oil and gas operations. Emission reductions
are being achieved through projects in Algeria

and Equatoerial Guinea that enhance production
while reducing the amount of gas flared. We have
also instituted a company-wide energy efficiency
program, obtaining 10 percent of all electricity used
in our operations from renewable sources.

Our management systems establish expectations
for resource conservation, pollution prevention and
facility design optimization to minimize the potential
environmental impacts from our activities. In 2009,
the volume of oil spilled from our operations was
75 percent less than 2008.

We partner with a variety of stakeholders to
advance education and health in communities
where we operate. In Equaterial Guinea, we are
helping transform primary education on a national
scale with model schools, teacher training and
materials and building renovations. Our commitment
to improving education is also evident in Thailand,
where we are helping schools enhance library
services for their students. In Libya, the company
together with the National Qil Corporation and
Partners Harvard Mecical International conducted
a study to develop a plan for a diabetes prevention,
treatment and training program. In Indonesia,
community programs are providing new water wells
and distribution networks for clean drinking water.

The company engages in voluntary initiatives in
support of human rights, environmental protection
and financial transparency. Hess has endorsed
four major voluntary frameworks: The Voluntary
Principles, the Universal Declaration on Human
Rights, the United Nations Global Compact, and the
Extractive Industries Transparency Initiative. In 2009,
we perfermed a Human Rights Risk Assessment in
Southeast Asia and conducted training to conform
with the voluntary multi-stakeholder initiatives we
have endorsed.

We are proud of the progress we made in 2009
and we will continue toc pursue our strategy to
improve our performance and develop partnerships
in social responsibility.
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Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the
Exchange Act. Yes O No

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to
file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant submiited electronically and posted on its Corporate website, if any, every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter)
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such
files). Yes No [

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein,
and will not be contained, to the best of Registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by
reference in Part T of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. .

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a

smaller reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company”
in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer [ Non-accelerated filer ] Smaller reporting company [J
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act). Yes O No

The aggregate market value of voting stock held by non-affiliates of the Registrant amounted to $17,579,000,000
computed using the outstanding common shares and closing market price on June 30, 2009.

At December 31, 2009, there were 327,229,488 shares of Common Stock outstanding,
Part I is incorporated by reference from the Proxy Statement for the annual meeting of stockholders to be held on May 5, 2010.
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PART I

Items 1 and 2. Business and Properties

Hess Corporation (the Registrant) is a Delaware corporation, incorporated in 1920, The Registrant and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the Corporation or Hess) is a global integrated energy company that operates
in two segments, Exploration and Production (E&P) and Marketing and Refining (M&R). The E&P segment
explores for, develops, produces, purchases, transports and sells crude ¢il and natural gas. These exploration and
production activities take place principally in Algeria, Australia, Azerbaijan, Brazil, Colombia, Denmark, Egypt,
Equatorial Guinea, Gabon, Ghana, Indonesia, Libya, Malaysia, Norway, Peru, Russia, Thailand, the United
Kingdom and the United States. The M&R segment manufactures refined petrolenm products and purchases,
markets and trades, refined petroleum products, natural gas and electricity. The Corporation owns 50% of a refinery
joint ventare in the United States Virgin Islands. An additional refining facility, terminals and retail gasoline
stations, most of which include convenience stores, are located on the East Coast of the United States.

Exploration and Production

The Corporation’s total proved developed and undeveloped reserves at December 31 were as follows:

Crude Oil Total Barrels of
and il
Natoral Gas Equivalent
Liquids Natural Gas (BOE)*
2009 2008 2049 2008 2009 2008
(Millions of barrels) {Millions of mef) {Millions of barrels)
Developed
United States . ........ 154 119 205 202 188 153
Burope.............. 171 192 417 502 241 276
Africa .............. 241 237 59 60 251 247
Asia and other ........ 27 23 864 667 170 134
593 571 1,545 1,431 850 810
Undeveloped
United States . ........ 95 108 101 74 112 120
Europe.............. 159 140 225 137 197 162
Africa .............. 73 87 12 9 75 89
Asia and other ... ..... 47 64 938 1,122 203 251
374 399 1,276 1,342 587 622
Total
United States . ........ 249 227 306 276 300 273
Burope.............. 330 332 642 639 438 438
Africa .............. 34 324 71 69 326 336
Asia and other ... ..... 74 87 1,802 1,789 373 385
967 970 2,821 2,773 1,437 1,432

¥ Reflects natural gas reserves converted on the basis of relative energy content (six mcf equals one barrel).

On a barrel of oil equivalent (boe) basis, 41 % of the Corporation’s worldwide proved reserves are undeveloped
at December 31, 2009 (43% at December 31, 2008). Proved reserves held under production sharing contracts at
December 31, 2009 totaled 24% of crude oil and natural gas liquids and 57% of natural gas reserves (28% and 58%
respectively, at December 31, 2008).

The Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) revised its 0il and gas reserve estimation and disclosure
standards effective December 31, 2009. See the Supplementary Oil and Gas Data on pages 77 through 84 in the
accompanying financial statements for additional information on the Corporation’s oil and gas reserves.
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Worldwide crude oil, natural gas liquids and natural gas production was as follows:

Crude oil (thousands of barrels per day)
United States

OnshOTe. . .. . e e e
Offshore . ... ... i e e e e e

Europe

United Kingdom . ............. . ... .. ot

Natural gas liquids (thousands of barrels per day)
United States

ONShoOTe. . ... i e e e
Offshore . ..ot e et e e e

Eurcpe

United Kingdom . ......... ... . i
NOrWAY . e e e e

Natural gas (thousands of mef per day)
United States

Onshore. . ... ... .. ittt i e e
Offshore ... ... .. . i i i e i e i e iiiiaans

Europe

United Kingdom ... ... .. ... . i,
NOTWAY . . e e e e e

8

151

2008

255

2007

15
16

31

38
19
12
24

93

56
22
14
23

115
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